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PROSPECTUS
Non-offering Prospectus
October 9, 2018

CANNAMERICA BRANDS CORP.
No securities are being offered pursuant to this Prospectus
This non-offering prospectus ("Prospectus") is being filed by CannAmerica Brands Corp.
("CannAmerica" or the "Company") with the securities regulatory authorities in the province of
British Columbia.
The Company is hereby qualifying for distribution in the province of British Columbia all of its
currently issued and outstanding common shares (the "Shares").
There is no market through which these securities may be sold and purchasers may not be able to
resell securities purchased under this prospectus. This may affect the pricing of the securities in the
secondary market, the transparency and availability of trading prices, the liquidity of the securities,
and the extent of issuer regulation. See 'Risk Factors'. Listing will be subject to the Company fulfilling
all of the listing requirements of the Canadian Securities Exchange (the "CSE").
As at the date of this Prospectus, the Company does not have any of its securities listed or quoted,
has not applied to list or quote any of its securities, and does not intend to apply to list or quote any
of its securities, on the Toronto Stock Exchange, Aequitas NEO Exchange Inc., a U.S. marketplace, or
a marketplace outside Canada and the United States of America (other than the Alternative
Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange or the PLUS markets operated by PLUS Markets
Group plc).
The Company has applied to list its Shares on the CSE. Listing of its Shares will be subject to the
Company fulfilling all of the listing requirements of the CSE, including without limitation, the
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distribution of the Shares to a minimum number of public shareholders and the Company meeting
certain financial and other requirements.
An investment in the securities of the Company is speculative and involves a high degree of risk. In
reviewing this Prospectus, you should carefully consider the matters described under the heading
"Risk Factors".
Certain legal matters relating to the securities will be passed upon by DuMoulin Black LLP, Vancouver,
British Columbia on behalf of the Company. No person is authorized by the Company to provide any
information or make any representations other than those contained in this Prospectus in connection
with the issue and sale of the securities offered hereunder.
Prospective investors are advised to consult their own tax advisors regarding the application of
Canadian federal income tax laws to their particular circumstances, as well as any other provincial,
foreign and other tax consequences of acquiring, holding, or disposing of Shares, including the
Canadian federal income tax consequences applicable to a foreign controlled Canadian corporation
that acquires Shares.
Prospective investors should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference
into this Prospectus. The Company has not authorized anyone to provide you with different
information. Readers should assume that the information appearing in this Prospectus is accurate
only as of its date, regardless of its time of delivery. The Company's business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects may have changed since that date.
The Company's head office is located at Suite 3123, 595 Burrard Street, Three Bentall Centre, Vancouver,
British Columbia, V7X 1J1, and its registered and records office is located at 10th Floor, 595 Howe
Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2T5.
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GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS
The following is a glossary of certain terms used in this Prospectus. Terms and abbreviations appearing in
the documents attached as schedules to the Prospectus may be defined separately and the terms and
abbreviations defined below may not be used therein, except where otherwise indicated. Words below
importing the singular, where the context requires, include the plural and vice versa, and words importing
any gender include all genders.
BCBCA

means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia), including the regulations
thereunder, as amended.

Board

means the board of directors of the Company.

CBD

means Cannabidiol, a constituent of the cannabis plant.

CEO

Chief Executive Officer.

CFO

Chief Financial Officer.

Cole Memorandum

The memorandum dated August 29, 2013 addressed to "All United States
Attorneys" from James M. Cole, Deputy Attorney General of the United States,
and having the subject line "Guidance Regarding Marijuana Enforcement", which
offered guidance to federal enforcement agencies as to how to prioritize civil
enforcement, criminal investigations and prosecutions regarding marijuana in all
states.

Company

CannAmerica Brands Corp. (formerly Transform Capital Corp.), a British Columbia
company incorporated under the BCBCA on March 13, 2017.

CHC

CannAmerica Holdings Corp. (formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)

CSA

The Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. 812.

CSE

Canadian Securities Exchange.

DAFF

DAFF International, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of CannAmerica Holdings
Corp.

Department of Justice

The United States Department of Justice.

Escrow Agreement

means the Escrow Agreement between the Company and TrustCo dated October
9, 2018.

Final Exchange Bulletin

means the bulletin issued by the CSE relating to the Listing, which evidences final
CSE acceptance of the Listing.

Financial Statements

means the financial statements attached to this Prospectus as Schedule A, being
the financial statements of the Company, CannAmerica Holdings Corp. and DAFF.
Schedule A includes the following audited financial statements: CannAmerica
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Brands Corp. for the period from incorporation on March 13, 2017 to March 31,
2017 and for the year ended March 31, 2018; CannAmerica Holdings Corp. for
the period of incorporation from December 11, 2017 to March 31, 2018; and
DAFF International, LLC for the period of incorporation on September 12, 2016
to March 31, 2017 and for the year ended March 31, 2018. Schedule A includes
the reviewed consolidated financial statements for CannAmerica Brands Corp.
for the quarter ended June 30, 2018.
IFRS

International Financial Reporting Standards.

Listing

means the listing of the Shares on the CSE.

Listing Date

means the date on which the Shares are listed for trading on the CSE.

MD&A

means management's discussion and analysis.

Medical Cannabis

means cannabis that is grown and sold to approved, medical patients pursuant
to applicable State specific laws and regulations for medical purposes (as
opposed to recreational purposes).

Merger

means the acquisition by the Company of 100% of the issued and outstanding
common shares of CannAmerica Holdings Corp. pursuant to the Share Exchange
Agreement.

NI 41-101

National Instrument 41‐101 – General Prospectus Requirements.

NI 52-110

National Instrument 52-110 – Audit Committees.

NI 58-101

National Instrument 58-101 – Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices.

NP 51-201

National Policy 51-201 – Disclosure Standards.

Prospectus

means this prospectus dated as of the date on the cover page.

Recreational Cannabis

means cannabis that is grown and sold recreationally to adults over the age of
21, pursuant to applicable State specific laws and regulations.

Retail Cannabis

means cannabis that is cultivated, manufactured, distributed, or sold by a
licensed cannabis cultivation facility or a licensed cannabis products
manufacturing facility to a licensed retail dispensary for re-sale to adult, retail
customers. "Retail Cannabis" does not include industrial hemp, nor does it
include fiber produced from stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds of the plant,
sterilized seed of the plant which is incapable of germination, or the weight of
any other ingredient combined with marijuana to prepare topical or oral
administrations, food, drink or other product.

Sessions
Memorandum

has the meaning given to such term under the heading “Risk Factors – Risks
Specifically Related to the United States Regulatory System”.
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Shares

means the common shares without par value of the Company.

Share Exchange
Agreement

means the share exchange agreement dated May 30, 2018 between the
Company and CannAmerica Holdings Corp., which merger was completed on
May 30, 2018.

State

means a U.S. state.

THC

means Tetrahydrocannabinol, the principal psychoactive constituent of the
cannabis plant.

Trump Administration

means the administration of current United States President Donald Trump.

TrustCo

means National Issuer Services Ltd., the registrar and transfer agent of the
Company.
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CURRENCY
In this Prospectus, unless otherwise indicated, all dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars and
references to "$" are to Canadian dollars.
CAUTION REGARDING BUSINESS
The Company has material ancillary involvement in the Medical Cannabis and Recreational Cannabis
industries in the United States. The Company has not been provided with, nor is aware of any information
indicating that any of its customers are not compliant with the applicable licensing or regulatory
framework governing the Medical Cannabis and Recreational Cannabis industries in their applicable U.S.
State.
The States of Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, California, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, Florida, Hawaii,
Illinois, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Montana, Nevada, New
Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania,
Rhode Island, Vermont, Washington and West Virginia, along with the District of Columbia, have legalized
Medical Cannabis. The following States have legalized Medical Cannabis, with the following limitations:








Alabama (non-psychoactive cannabidiol (“CBD”) oil only);
Georgia and Virginia (CBD oil less than 5% THC only);
Indiana (CBD oil for patients with epilepsy only);
Iowa (cannabis oil less than 3% THC only);
Kentucky, Mississippi, Missouri, North Carolina, Wisconsin and Wyoming (CBD oil only);
South Carolina and Tennessee (cannabis oil less than 0.9% THC only); and
Utah (terminally ill patients only; CBD oil for patients with epilepsy).

Only the States of Alaska, California, Colorado, Maine, Massachusetts, Nevada, Oregon, Vermont and
Washington, along with the District of Columbia, have legalized the recreational use of marijuana. The
States of Connecticut, Delaware, Illinois, Maryland, Minnesota, Mississippi, Missouri, Nebraska, New
Hampshire, New York, North Carolina, Ohio and Rhode Island, along with the cities of Atlanta, Georgia
and Albequerque, New Mexico, have decriminalized the recreational use of marijuana. THC and marijuana
remain a controlled Schedule 1 drug under U.S. Federal Law although the federal government's position
has been not to enforce these laws in states that have regulations in place. The Company's objective is to
capitalize on the opportunities presented as a result of the changing regulatory environment governing
the THC and marijuana industry in the United States and internationally.
This Prospectus relates to the business of an entity that plans to derive a substantial portion of its
revenues in the Recreational Cannabis industry in certain U.S. States, which industry is not currently legal
in Canada.
Under the Controlled Substances Act (the "CSA"), the policies and regulations of the United States Federal
Government and its agencies are that THC and cannabis has a high potential for abuse, no accepted
medical benefit and a lack of safety for the use of the drug under medical supervision. A range of activities
including cultivation and the personal use of cannabis is prohibited, unless and until the United States
Congress amends the CSA with respect to THC and marijuana. The timing or scope of any such potential
amendments are not assured and there is a risk that federal authorities may enforce current federal law,
which may negatively impact the business of the Company.
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On January 4, 2018, U.S. Attorney General Jeff Sessions issued a memorandum to U.S. district attorneys
which rescinded previous guidance from the U.S. Department of Justice specific to cannabis enforcement
in the United States, including the memorandum dated August 29, 2013 addressed to "All United States
Attorneys" from James M. Cole, Deputy Attorney General of the United States, and having the subject line
"Guidance Regarding Marijuana Enforcement", which offered guidance to federal enforcement agencies
as to how to prioritize civil enforcement, criminal investigations and prosecutions regarding marijuana in
all states (the “Cole Memorandum ”). With the Cole Memorandum rescinded, U.S. federal prosecutors
have been given discretion in determining whether to prosecute cannabis related violations of U.S. federal
law. If the Department of Justice policy was to aggressively pursue financiers or equity owners of cannabisrelated business, and United States Attorneys followed such Department of Justice policies through
pursuing prosecutions, then the Company could face (i) seizure of its cash and other assets used to support
or derived from its U.S. cannabis-related business, and (ii) the arrest of its employees, directors, officers,
managers and investors, who could face charges of ancillary criminal violations of the CSA for aiding and
abetting and conspiring to violate the CSA by virtue of providing financial support to state-licensed or
permitted cultivators, processors, distributors, and/or retailers of cannabis.
Additionally, as has recently been affirmed by U.S. Customs and Border Protection, employees, directors,
officers, managers and investors of the Company who are not U.S. citizens face the risk of being barred
from entry into the United States for life.
There are a number of risks associated with the business of the Company. See section entitled "Risk
Factors" for a detailed list of all relevant risk factors, including "Non-compliance with federal, provincial
or state laws and regulations, or the expansion of current, or the enactment of new laws or regulations,
could adversely affect the Company's business". The Company may become subject to additional
government regulation and legal uncertainties that could restrict the demand for its services or increase
its cost of doing business, thereby adversely affecting its financial results.
CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
Certain statements contained in this Prospectus constitute forward-looking statements. The use of any of
the words "anticipate", "continue", "estimate", "expect", "may", "will", "project", "should", "believe" and
similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ
materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking statements. The Company believes the
expectations reflected in those forward-looking statements are reasonable but no assurance can be given
that these expectations will prove to be correct and such forward-looking statements included in this
Prospectus should not be unduly relied upon. These statements are current only as of the date of this
Prospectus. The Company does not have any policies or procedures in place concerning the updating of
forward-looking information other than those required under applicable securities laws.
In particular, this Prospectus contains forward-looking statements pertaining to the following:







the business and operations of the Company;
the Company's business objectives and discussion of trends affecting the business of the
Company;
the funds available to the Company and the principal purposes of those funds;
anticipated revenues and cash flows from operations and funding requirements of the Company;
capital, operating and general expenditures;
expectations regarding the ability to raise capital;
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the Company's expectations regarding acceptance of its products by the market;
market competition and advances of competitive products;
expansion plans to licensees in other States;
anticipated revenues to be realized by the Company from future contracts; and
treatment under governmental regulatory regimes and expectations with respect to regulatory
approvals.

Assumptions underlying the Company's working capital requirements are based on management's
experience with other companies in the sector. Forward-looking statements pertaining to the Company's
need for and ability to raise capital in the future are based on the projected costs of operating the
Company and management's experience with raising funds in current market circumstances. Forwardlooking statements regarding treatment by governmental authorities assumes no material change in
regulations, policies, or the application of the same by such authorities.
Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a
result of the risk factors set forth below and elsewhere in this Prospectus:





















liabilities inherent in the Company's operations;
inability to acquire funds necessary to acquire necessary assets and pay off debt as well as for
general working capital and continuing operations;
regulatory changes or actions that may alter or prohibit investment in the Company's business or
that result in a restriction in the use of cannabis;
the Company's operations, investment strategies and profitability may be adversely affected by
competition from other companies in the sector;
general public acceptance of the marijuana industry;
the impact of changes in the number of marijuana users in the United States;
fluctuations in the currency markets and stock market volatility;
disruptions to the credit markets and delays in obtaining financing;
uncertainties associated with business opportunities that may be presented to, or pursued by the
Company;
operating or technical difficulties in connection with business activities;
the possibility of cost overruns or unanticipated expenses;
the risk that there may not be an active or liquid market for the Company's shares;
changes in interest rates;
the Company may never pay dividends;
the risks associated with obtaining and renewing necessary licenses and permits;
competition for, among other things, capital, acquisitions, equipment and skilled personnel;
changes in national and local government legislation, taxation, controls, regulations and political
or economic developments in Canada and the United States;
risks associated with inability to obtain adequate insurance for operations;
the Company's directors and officers may serve on the boards and as officers of other companies
whose interests may conflict with that of the Company; and
the other factors discussed under "Risk Factors".

This list of factors should not be construed as exhaustive. All subsequent forward-looking information
attributable to the Company herein is expressly qualified in its entirety by the cautionary statements
contained in or referred to herein.

SUMMARY OF PROSPECTUS
The following is a summary of the principal features of the Prospectus and should be read together with
the more detailed information and financial data and statements contained elsewhere in this Prospectus.
Purchasers should carefully consider, among other things, the matters discussed under "Risk Factors".
The Company
The Company was incorporated under the BCBCA on March 13, 2017. On May 31, 2018, the Company
changed its name from "Transform Capital Corp." to "CannAmerica Brands Corp.". The Company's head
office is located at Suite 3123, 595 Burrard Street, Three Bentall Centre, Vancouver, British Columbia, V7X
1J1 and its registered and records office is located at 10th Floor, 595 Howe Street, Vancouver, British
Columbia.
The Company is not a reporting issuer in any jurisdiction and the Shares are not listed or posted for trading
on any stock exchange. The Company has applied, concurrent with the filing of this Prospectus, to list its
Shares on the CSE. Listing will be subject to the Company fulfilling all of the listing requirements of the
CSE.
See "Corporate Structure".
Principal Business
The Company owns a portfolio of brands in the Medical Cannabis and Recreational Cannabis space with
licensees in the States of Colorado, Nevada and Maryland. The Company's principal business is to build on
and maximize the value of its brands by promoting, marketing and licensing these brands through various
distribution channels, including to dispensaries, wholesalers and distributors in the United States.
As at April 30, 2018, the Company had three licensing contracts in place.
See "General Development of the Business" and "Description of the Business".
Business Objectives
The Company's business objectives over the next 12 months are to:







complete the Listing;
sign additional brand licensing agreements with licensees;
implement its investment strategy;
develop and improve its risk management processes;
solidify its market presence; and
identify future acquisition and partnership opportunities.

See "Business Objectives and Milestones".
Risk Factors
The activities of the Company are subject to many of the risks inherent in the Medical Cannabis and
Recreational Cannabis industry as well as the risks normally encountered in a newly established business,
including but not limited to: liabilities inherent in the Company's operations; fluctuations in the currency
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markets and stock market volatility; disruptions to the credit markets and delays in obtaining financing;
uncertainties associated with business opportunities that may be presented to, or pursued by the
Company; operating or technical difficulties in connection with business activities; the possibility of cost
overruns or unanticipated expenses; there may not be an active or liquid market for the Company's
shares; changes in interest rates; the Company may never pay dividends; the risks associated with
obtaining and renewing necessary licenses and permits; competition for, among other things, capital,
acquisitions, equipment and skilled personnel; changes in national and local government legislation,
taxation, controls, regulations and political or economic developments in Canada and the United States;
risks associated with inability to obtain adequate insurance for operations; and the Company's directors
and officers may serve on the boards and as officers of other companies whose interests may conflict with
that of the Company.
An investment in the Company's securities is suitable only for those knowledgeable and sophisticated
investors who are willing to risk a loss of their entire investment. Investors should consult with their
professional advisors to assess an investment in the Company's securities.
There is currently no public market for the Shares and there can be no assurance that an active market
for the Shares will develop or be sustained after the Listing. The value of the Shares is subject to volatility
in market trends and conditions generally, notwithstanding any potential success of the Company in
creating revenues, cash flows or earnings.
See "Risk Factors".
Summary of Selected Financial Information
The table below summarizes selected combined financial data for and should be read in conjunction with
the Financial Statements and MD&A. The selected financial information from April 1, 2018 to June 30,
2018 has been derived from the Financial Statements and accompanying notes of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The financial statements of the Company have been subject to a review engagement by
Dale Matheson Carr-Hilton Labonte LLP. The selected financial information set out below may not be
indicative of the Company's future performance.
As at June 30, 2018
Financial positions
Current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Total liabilities
Share capital
Deficit
Total shareholders’ equity
Financial results
Revenue
Gross Margin
Expenses

$1,546,722
$9,148,805
$335,973
$4,155,595
$3,015,201
($1,104,139)
$4,993,210
For the quarter ended
June 30, 2018
$231,275
$123,140
$1,227,279
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Net loss
Loss per share – basic and diluted

($1,104,139)
($0.05)

Available Funds
The Company's estimated working capital as at July 31, 2018 is $2,515,000. Significant changes in working
capital since March 31, 2018 include additional funding from private placements and payment of liabilities
in DAFF. The funds expected to be available to the Company are described below:
Funds Available
Estimated working capital as of July 31, 2018

$2,515,000

Net Funds Available (unaudited)

$2,515,000

Use of Proceeds
The Company's estimated working capital as at July 31, 2018 is intended to be used as follows:
Principal Purpose
Accomplish business milestones
Annual estimated general and administrative costs
Interest on long term debt

$170,000
(1)

$556,000
$221,000

Repayment of portion of notes payable (2)

$1,568,000

Total

$2,515,000

Notes:
(1) The estimated general and administrative costs for the next 12 months are as follows:
Wages
Professional fees
Travel and miscellaneous
Total

$330,000
$161,000
$65,000
$556,000

Wages include a portion of the salary for the CEO, COO and operating staff. Remaining staff wages
are included in the $170,000 noted above to accomplish business milestones. Professional fees
include legal, audit and accounting fees.
(2) The remaining balance of the notes payable after this assumed repayment is $2,251,622.
The Company estimates that its current working capital combined with cash flow from license operations
over the next twelve months will fund operations for at least one year. The estimated total capital and
operating costs necessary for the Company to achieve its business objectives for the next 12 months is
$947,000.

10

During the year ended March 31, 2018, DAFF entered into an assignment and assumption agreement with
a related company, His Way Herbs, LLC. to acquire a portfolio of cannabis brands. The consideration paid
was the assumption of $5,798,665 in total liabilities. The principal purpose of the proceeds of
indebtedness of $5,798,665 was to acquire the intellectual property for the CannAmerica and Americanna
brands. The financial statements for the Company as at June 30, 2018 disclose remaining notes payable
totaling $3,819,622. These notes are due 13 months after the date the Company becomes a reporting
issuer. Any remaining unallocated funds will be used to repay these notes payable. The Company expects
to generate operating cash flow to repay the notes. In the event operating cash flow is not sufficient to
repay the notes, the Company will seek additional financing through debt or equity issuances. The ability
of the Company to generate sufficient operating cash flow or obtain debt or equity financing in the future
is a material assumption. There is no assurance that the business will be profitable or that the Company
will be successful in obtaining future financing.
While the Company intends to spend its current working capital as stated above, there may be
circumstances where, for sound business reasons, a re-allocation of funds may be necessary or advisable.
The actual amount that the Company spends in connection with each of the intended uses of proceeds
may vary significantly from the amounts specified above, and will depend on a number of factors,
including those listed under the heading "Risk Factors".
See "Use of Proceeds and Available Funds".
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
Name, Address and Incorporation
The Company was incorporated pursuant to the BCBCA on March 13, 2017. On May 31, 2018 the Company
changed its name from "Transform Capital Corp." to "CannAmerica Brands Corp.". The Company's head
office is located at Suite 3123, 595 Burrard Street, Three Bentall Centre, Vancouver, British Columbia, V7X
1J1 and its registered and records office is located at 10th Floor, 595 Howe Street, Vancouver, BC V6C 2T5.
The Company has one wholly-owned subsidiary, CannAmerica Holdings Corp. (formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
(“CHC”) which acquired DAFF (formerly CannAmerica LLC), a Colorado limited liability company, on
May 18, 2018. The Company completed the Merger with CHC on May 30, 2018 pursuant to the Share
Exchange Agreement. See "Reorganizations and Significant Acquisitions" and "Material Contracts". For an
organizational chart of the Company’s subsidiaries, please refer to “Reorganizations and Significant
Acquisitions”.
DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS
Corporate Overview
The Company owns a portfolio of brands in the cannabis space with licensees currently in the states of
Colorado, Nevada and Maryland. The Company currently owns two brands, CannAmerica and AmeriCanna
which are licensed to manufacturers and wholesale licensees.
The Company generates revenue through license agreements whereby licensees are granted rights to
utilize the brand names and related intellectual property. Revenue from these licensing agreements is
generated through licensee purchases of branded packaging and uninfused product ingredients from the
Company. The Company’s revenue also includes a percentage of licensee sales for some licensee
contracts. This business model allows the Company to maintain a low overhead as it is not responsible for
the cultivation or extraction of the cannabis that is later incorporated into the branded product. Licensees
are responsible to infuse, manufacture and assemble the branded products that are then ultimately sold
to the end consumer.
Licensing Relationships
As of June 30, 2018, the Company had three licensing agreements with licensees in the States of Colorado,
Nevada and Maryland (collectively the “Licensees”).
Colorado
The Licensee in Colorado operates a 15,000 square foot manufacturing facility with over four years in the
regulated Colorado marijuana manufacturing market. Production of CannAmerica branded
products commenced in June 2018, with over 575,000 gummies produced to date. The Licensee is
currently selling to over 350 dispensaries in Colorado and has established itself through historical sales
since the recreational marketplace began in 2014. Additionally, the Licensee also owns separate
cultivation and dispensaries in Colorado that were established at the start of the regulated medical
marijuana program in Colorado in 2011.
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Nevada
The Licensee in Nevada operates a 30,000 square foot cultivation and manufacturing facility that sells
through 63 dispensaries in Nevada and is one of the original recipients of medical and recreational licenses
to cultivate, produce and distribute cannabis products in the State of Nevada. Production of CannAmerica
branded products commenced in August 2018 and over 150,000 gummies have been produced to date.
Maryland
The Licensee operates a 7,500 square foot facility and was one of the first extraction licenses issued in
Maryland. The Licensee currently holds one of only 15 licenses in Maryland. Operations relating to
CannAmerica’s license agreement commenced in August 2018 and the Licensee is currently processing
materials and building inventory for sales to begin in the near future.
The Company's license agreements apply to specific geographical territories and distribution channels in
which the licensed products may be sold. Other significant terms outlined in the licence agreements
typically include the duration of the contract, payment frequency and applicable minimum thresholds.
As the Company grows its existing brands and acquires new brands, the Company intends to increase the
share of the Company's international revenue primarily through additional licenses, partnerships and
other arrangements. The Company believes that its business model enables it to use the Company's brand
management expertise to continue to grow the Company's portfolio of brands and generate new revenue
streams without significantly changing the Company's core infrastructure. The Company believes that its
business model provides numerous benefits, including:






Potential for financial upside without the investment and management risks and capital demands
associated with traditional cultivation, manufacturing and wholesale operating companies;
Diversification resulting from both broad demographic appeal and distribution through a range of
distribution channels;
Growth opportunity through expansion of existing brands into new categories and geographic
areas and through acquisitions;
Reduced regulatory risks since the cultivation, manufacturing and retail license maintenance are
the responsibilities of the licensees; and
Reduced operational risks since inventory and other typical wholesale operating functions are the
responsibilities of the Licensees.

Licensing revenues for the year ended March 31, 2018 represented fees earned from mid-December 2017
to March 31, 2018 and were concentrated with one Licensee in the State of Colorado which represented
100% of the Company's revenue for the year. Subsequent to year end, the Company signed an additional
two licensing agreements in the States of Nevada and Maryland and expects to further reduce revenue
concentration for the upcoming year.
The Company aims to maximize the value of the Company's brands by promoting, marketing and licensing
the brands through various distribution channels, including to dispensaries, wholesalers and distributors
in the United States. The Company's core strategy is to enhance and monetize the global reach of the
Company's existing brands, and to pursue additional strategic acquisitions to grow the scope of and
diversify the Company's portfolio of brands.
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The Company aims to acquire well-known consumer brands in the cannabis space with high potential for
growth and strong brand awareness. The Company is also seeking to diversify the Company's portfolio by
evaluating the strength of targeted brands and the expected viability and sustainability of future royalty
streams. Upon the acquisition of a brand, the Company seeks to partner with wholesalers and
dispensaries to drive incremental value and maximize brand equity. The Company focuses on certain key
initiatives in the Company's licensing and brand management business. These initiatives include:





Maximizing the value of the Company's existing brands by creating efficiencies, adding additional
product categories, expanding distribution and retail presence and optimizing sales through
innovative marketing that increases consumer brand awareness and loyalty;
Expanding through e-commerce channels;
Developing international expansion through licenses, partnerships and other arrangements with
retailers and wholesalers outside the United States; and
Acquiring consumer brands (or the rights to such brands) with high consumer awareness, broad
appeal and applicability to a wide range of product categories.

The Company's business is designed to continually build upon and add to the value of the Company's
brands through license agreements with partners that are responsible for manufacturing and distributing
the Company's licensed products. The Company's brands are licensed for the cannabis space and the
Company seeks to select licensees who have demonstrated the ability to cultivate, manufacture, produce
and sell quality products in their respective licensed categories.
Company History and Growth Plans
The Company’s business has been built from the foundation of a management team consisting of experts
in the fields of cannabis, branding and capital markets. The brands AmeriCanna and CannAmerica (the
“Brands”) and all related intellectual property (“IP”) were acquired by DAFF from His Way Herbs LLC
(“HWH”), a cannabis cultivation and extraction company formed by the founders of DAFF, Dan Anglin
(“Anglin”) and Frank Falconer (“Falconer”). The valuation of the Brands purchased from HWH was
determined using a valuation technique based on a value of expected revenue.
Anglin is the principal shareholder and officer of HWH. His Way Herbs is a related party to the Company.
DAFF operates as a pure play branding company using the IP acquired from HWH. Although DAFF has only
been operational since mid-December 2017, the Brands have been in existence since early 2016.
The Company expects to increase its licensing revenue over the coming months as the Brands in the state
of Colorado continue to sell into dispensaries. Furthermore, increased revenue is expected through
expansion into various US states, of which Maryland and Nevada have already been licensed.
The Company is exploring new territories to expand into via licensing its existing Brands. The Company is
selecting these target states on the basis of the size of the population and the legal status of medical and
recreational cannabis in each state.
On this basis, the Company plans to expand into the following states:


California - The Company has established relationships with licensed cannabis businesses across
California that it will engage with for licensing agreements in 2018. California has both medical
and recreational regulated sales, and also allows for edible products in the market, making it a
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desirable prospect for the Company’s future expansion. Based on geography and population size,
management has targeted California as an opportune state with potential for multiple licensees
within established territories.


Oregon - The Company has established relationships with licensed cannabis businesses in Oregon
that it will engage with for licensing agreements in 2018/2019. Oregon has both medical and
recreational regulated sales, and also allows for edible products in the market, meeting the
Company’s criteria for engaging with a licensee to expand the brand into the market. Oregon has
similar population and land mass to Colorado and Nevada, making the projected performance of
the brands similar to Colorado and Nevada. Based on geography and population, it is expected
that only one licensee will be necessary in the state of Oregon for statewide distribution.



Washington - The Company has established multiple relationships with licensed cannabis
businesses in Washington that it will engage with for licensing agreements in 2018/2019.
Washington has blended medical and recreational sales, making the state one unified
marketplace, and also allows for edible products in the market, meeting the Company’s criteria
for engaging with a licensee to expand the brand into the market. Oregon has similar population
and land mass to Colorado and Nevada, making the projected performance of the brands similar
to Colorado and Nevada. Based on geography and population, it is expected that only one licensee
will be necessary in the state of Oregon for statewide distribution.



Arizona - The Company has established relationships with licensed cannabis businesses in Arizona
that it will engage with for licensing agreements in 2018/2019. Arizona is currently only a medical
cannabis marketplace, and also allows for edible products in the market, meeting the Company’s
criteria for engaging with a licensee to expand the brand into the market. Arizona has similar
population and land mass to Colorado and Nevada’s medical market, making the projected
performance of the brands similar to Colorado and Nevada medical sales. Based on geography
and population, it is expected that only one licensee will be necessary in the state of Arizona for
statewide distribution.

Description of the Company’s Brands and Intellectual Property
In May 2018, the Company acquired the CannAmerica and AmeriCanna brands through the indirect
acquisition of DAFF. DAFF is primarily focused on THC infused gummy candies ("Gummies") in the legal
cannabis market in the State of Colorado. The AmeriCanna brand can be found in over 400 dispensaries
in the state of Colorado.
The Company's licensing and branding agreements essentially grant rights to the application, manufacture
and/or production of certain proprietary blends, formulas and licensed products to licensees. The
Company has created a proprietary blend of cannabis oil ("Blend") to be applied to the raw material
("Substrate") for the licensed products including a precise formulation (the "Ethanol Formula") designed
to optimize the function of the equipment that is used to apply the Blend to the Substrate.
Description of the Company’s License Arrangements
The Company has licensed the Brands, proprietary processes and packaging containing IP to Licensees in
the States of Colorado, Nevada and Maryland. These Licensees own and operate facilities that
manufacture medical and/or retail cannabis products in their respective States. The Licensees are
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responsible for maintaining their good standing with the regulatory bodies that govern legal cannabis in
their respective States.
Under the terms of the brand licensing agreements, each Licensee will purchase certain units of packaging
and Substrate from the Company at a fixed price per unit and in some cases there is a fee based on a
percentage of sales by the Licensee. The IP means any of the following that is provided by the Company
to the Licensee for the application, manufacture, and/or production of the Blend, Ethanol Formula or the
licensed products: (i) all proprietary processes, formulas, specifications, standards, procedures, methods,
know-how, trade secrets, unique and innovative uses of an existing invention, trade names, copyrights,
design rights, trademarks, word marks, service marks, design marks, certification marks and marks or
other designation of origin, whether or not protected by copyright, trademark or similar law, and all other
intellectual property rights and marks owned held, controlled or otherwise utilized with permission by the
Company pertaining to the Licensee and/or its brands and associated logos exclusively within the
applicable State the Licensee operates, (ii) all intellectual property and rights pertaining to the Company
and/or its brands and logos exclusively within the State in which the Licensee operates, and (iii) the
Company's material vendor relationships, including, but not limited to, its Substrate, packaging and
labelling vendors.
Specialized Skill and Knowledge
In order to successfully run an edibles branding business, specialized skills and knowledge of marijuana,
specialized equipment, distillate extraction, product infusion, food regulations, product sales, marketing
and distribution is required. The CEO, Dan Anglin, has over six years of experience in the industry and was
a former owner of Edipure, one of the first cannabis edibles companies in the United States which
participated in extraction, production, marketing and distribution of cannabis edibles. Mr. Anglin
subsequently founded the AmeriCanna brand on the same principles of extraction, manufacturing and
distribution to build a successful brand of cannabis edibles in the highly competitive market of Colorado
cannabis sales. Cannabis extraction is a scientific process that uses specialized laboratory equipment and
formulations. The process itself involves the use of hydrocarbon or other solvent based extractions to
separate and isolate the compounds of the cannabis plant into its pure form. This requires in-depth
knowledge of chemical properties and plant interactions. Specialized equipment for extraction incudes a
closed loop extraction system which produces raw cannabis oil. Raw cannabis oil is then required to be
winterized and distilled to produce pure oil for use in edibles infusion. Once the extraction is complete,
the extracted material or distillate oil is then incorporated into the edible product which requires
knowledge of metered dosing pharmaceutical principles as well as food safety rules and regulations.
Marketing and distribution is also specialized for the cannabis industry and utilizes the experience and
business relationships of the Company's current CEO to capitalize on favourable methodologies, processes
and pricing. Brand recognition is also key for this business and has a direct relationship with the successful
implementation and application of the specialized skills and processes described above.
Competition
The Company operates in a highly competitive market, both for the Company's individual brands and for
the Company as a whole.
The Company's brands are subject to extensive competition from various domestic brands. Each of the
Company's brands has a number of competitors within its specific product categories and distribution
channels that compete with the product categories and distribution channels in which the brands'
products are sold. The Company's brands also compete with dispensaries and other distribution channels
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that carry the Company’s brand's product lines along with other products offered by these dispensaries
and distribution channels. Competitive factors include design, style, quality, price, name recognition,
service and advertising.
In addition, the Company faces competition in establishing and maintaining licensee relationships for the
Company's existing brands. Competitors may seek to enter into brand licensing arrangements with the
Company's current or potential licensees, which may inhibit the Company's ability to enter into or
maintain licensing arrangements. In addition, the dispensaries that currently sell the Company's branded
products may develop their own brands or acquire brands rather than purchase products from
the Licensees, which could make it more difficult for the Licensees to achieve their sales targets.
The Company also competes with other brand management companies, for acquisitions of accretive
brands, particularly brands with high consumer awareness, broad appeal and applicability to a wide range
of product categories.
New Products
The Company is currently working to launch new medical gummies as well as cookies in both the medical
and recreational markets in both Colorado and Nevada in 2018. In Maryland, the Company plans to
introduce lozenges and multiple concentrates products, as well as vapor pens, for the medical market.
Components
For the edibles business, the Company is required to source Substrate, packaging, and processing
equipment. The Company purchases these items directly from the manufacturers. The equipment
provider provides all the necessary certifications for installation in a certified laboratory.
Trademarks
The Company's trademark is registered in the state of Colorado and is pending registration federally in
the United States and Canada. The trademark covers logo formats, as well as in combination with a variety
of ancillary marks for use with respect to a broad range of product categories, including gummy
confections, merchandise and various other goods and services.
The Company monitors on an ongoing basis unauthorized use and filings of the Company's trademarks
and patents and relies primarily upon a combination of federal, state and local laws, as well as contractual
restrictions, to protect the Company's intellectual property rights, both domestically and internationally.
Cycles
The Company's business cycle is not seasonal.
Economic Dependence
For the year ended March 31, 2018, 100% of the Company's revenues were derived from one Licensee
and therefore an economic dependence existed based on the resulting revenue concentration. Since year
end, the Company has entered into two additional brand licensing agreements, thereby increasing the
number of brand licensing agreements to three, and expects to continue adding additional licensees
through the year to continue to reduce its economic dependence on any one specific Licensee.
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Environmental Protection
The Company's business did not have any environmental protection requirements during the most recent
financial year end and the Company does not expect to have any such requirements in the future.
Employees
As of May 2018, the Company had a total of 5 employees and area-specific consultants working to support
the Company's continuing operations. None of the employees are represented by a labor union. The
Company considers its relationship with its employees to be satisfactory.
Foreign Operations
The Company does not have any foreign operations and is not dependent on foreign operations.
Lending
The Company does not have any current or near term lending operations.
Reorganizations and Significant Acquisitions
On May 18, 2018, CHC entered into an agreement with the members of DAFF (the “Equity Purchase
Agreement”) to acquire 100% of the membership interests in DAFF (the “DAFF Acquisition”).
The total consideration for the DAFF Acquisition consisted of the following:




$250,000 payable directly to DAFF as working capital on closing, an aggregate of US$4,500,000
payable to the creditors of DAFF, of which US$1,750,000 was paid on closing;
35.83 common shares in the capital of CHC issued to the former members of DAFF on closing;
15 common share purchase warrants issued to the former members of DAFF on closing; and

14.17 common share purchase warrants to be issued to the former members of DAFF conditional upon
DAFF attaining certain earnings targets.
On May 30, 2018, the Company entered into an agreement with the shareholders of CHC (the “Share
Exchange Agreement”) to acquire 100% of the shares of CHC pursuant to the following consideration:





issuance of 29,166,000 Shares to the shareholders of CHC (the “Consideration Shares”);
contingent share consideration of 2,833,334 Shares to the CEO and COO of CHC conditional upon
them attaining certain earnings targets;
issuance of 3,000,0000 warrants of the Company to the CEO and COO exercisable at $0.50 per
share for a period of 24 months following the closing of a public listing of the Company (the
“Public Listing”); and
Subsequent to the closing of the acquisition of CHC, DAFF had a carrying balance of US$2,750,000
payable to various creditors (“Notes Payable”). The Company agreed to advance funds to DAFF
to pay down the Notes Payable based on the following terms:
o if the Company has not completed its Public Listing within 150 days, the entire Notes
Payable are payable. Otherwise, the entire Notes Payable are payable 13 months from
the date of the Public Listing;
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o
o

if the Company completes a financing subsequent to a Public Listing of more than
US$5,000,000, the balance of the Notes Payable would be payable; and
if the Company completes a financing subsequent to a Public Listing of less than
US$5,000,000, 50% of the proceeds of the financing will be advanced to DAFF to pay down
the Notes Payable.

The conversion ratio for the Consideration Shares was calculated based on the number of Shares
outstanding in the Company prior to the acquisition of CHC and the Company’s most recent financing
price of $0.20 per Share immediately prior to the acquisition of CHC. Immediately prior to the acquisition
of CHC, the Company had 7,360,001 Shares outstanding and had raised $1,413,500. Pursuant to
negotiations between the Company and CHC and as set out in the Share Exchange Agreement, the
Company agreed to issue the former CHC shareholders 29,166,000 Shares, representing approximately
80% of the outstanding Shares of the Company on a post-Merger basis. This resulted in a 200,000:1 share
exchange ratio in the Share Exchange Agreement.


The following Consideration Shares are subject to escrow or resale restrictions:
o 5,500,000 Consideration Shares are subject to the Escrow Agreement in accordance with
NP 46-201;
o 1,800,000 Consideration Shares are subject to a contractual restriction on resale until
March 31, 2019; and
o 1,800,000 Consideration Shares are subject to a contractual restriction on resale until
September 30, 2019; and
o 1,800,000 Consideration Shares are subject to a contractual restriction on resale until
December 31, 2019; and
o 1,800,000 Consideration Shares are subject to a contractual restriction on resale until
March 31, 2020; For further details of the escrow and resale restrictions applicable to the
Company’s Shares, please refer to the section “ESCROWED SECURITIES AND SECURITIES
SUBJECT TO CONTRACTUAL RESTRICTION ON TRANSFER.”

The purchase price of CHC is equal to the 7,360,001 shares outstanding in CBC multiplied by the last issue
price of the most recent financing of $0.20 per share for a total of $1,472,000. The Company determined
the valuation of CHC using a multiple of expected revenue to be derived from DAFF.
Upon completion of the Merger, CHC became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and DAFF
continued to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of CHC as set out in the following organizational chart:

CannAmerica Brands Corp.

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.

DAFF International LLC
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The acquisition of CHC by the Company will be treated as a reverse-takeover transaction and the
acquisition of DAFF by CHC will be accounted for as a business combination in the financial statements of
the Company. The purchase price allocation for the consolidated entity will be determined prior to the
release of the Company’s annual audited financial statements with reference to a professional valuation
to determine the allocation between net assets and goodwill.
Prior to the Acquisition, the officers and director of CHC and two of the former members of DAFF, being
Dan Anglin and Frank Falconer, were arm’s length parties to the Company. Upon completion of the
Merger, Jordan Crockett was appointed a director of the Company, Dan Anglin was appointed Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and Frank Falconer was appointed Chief Operating Officer of the
Company.
History
Since incorporation, the Company has taken the following steps to develop its business:
(1)

Acquired two well-known consumer brands, CannAmerica and AmeriCanna, through the
acquisition of CannAmerica Holdings Corp. which owns 100% of DAFF;

(2)

DAFF expanded branding and licensing agreements in the States of Colorado, Nevada and
Maryland;

(3)

On June 9, 2017, DAFF acquired a 10% equity interest in a processing company (“Processing Co.”)
located in Maryland, USA with primary business operations in cannabis extraction and production.
As consideration for the equity investment, DAFF provided equipment, intellectual property,
labour and technical assistance to establish operations necessary for Processing Co. to obtain a
license from the Maryland Medical Cannabis Commission. During the six months following
granting of the license, DAFF may purchase up to 30% of the total equity for $2,500,000 USD.

(4)

recruited directors and officers with the skills required to operate a publicly listed company;

(5)

raised aggregate gross proceeds of $1,412,000 through the sale of 7,060,000 special warrants in
November 2017;

(6)

the Company raised aggregate gross proceeds of $3,947,659.20 at a price of $0.30 per Share
through the issuance of 13,158,864 Shares pursuant to a Private Placement that closed in two
tranches on August 31, 2018 and September 6, 2018 (the “Private Placement”); the Shares issued
pursuant to the Private Placement will be subject to a four month contractual restriction on
transfer from the Listing Date and the proceeds raised will be utilized for ongoing expansion;

(7)

engaged auditors and legal counsel in connection with the Prospectus filing and Listing; and

(8)

the funds raised have provided sufficient capital to carry on the Company's business to date, and
to cover the costs associated with the preparation and filing of this Prospectus and the application
for the Listing.

The Company intends to grow its business in the current financial year through increased sales in its
existing licensing agreements, entering into additional brand licensing agreements with new licensees and
by increasing the Company's portfolio of brands offered. Since March 31, 2018, the Company has added
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two new Licensees located in Nevada and Maryland, respectively, and is currently in negotiations with
potential licensees in other states.
RISK FACTORS
Risks Specifically Related to the United States Regulatory System
Some of the Company's planned business activities, while believed to be compliant with certain
applicable U.S. state and local laws, are illegal under United States federal law.
Cannabis is illegal under federal U.S. law. Unlike in Canada which has federal legislation uniformly
governing the cultivation, distribution, sale and possession of Medical Cannabis under the Access to
Cannabis for Medical Purposes Regulations, investors are cautioned that in the United States, marijuana
is largely regulated at the state level. Although certain states and territories of the U.S. authorize medical
or recreational cannabis production and distribution by licensed or registered entities, under U.S. federal
law, the possession, use, cultivation, and transfer of cannabis and any related drug paraphernalia is illegal
and any such acts are criminal acts under federal law under any and all circumstances under the U.S.
Controlled Substances Act. The Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution establishes that the
United States Constitution and federal laws made pursuant to it are paramount and in case of conflict
between federal and state law, the federal law must be applied. An investor's contribution to and
involvement in such activities may result in federal civil and/or criminal prosecution, including forfeiture
of his, her or its entire investment.
Violations of any federal laws and regulations could result in significant fines, penalties, administrative
sanctions, convictions or settlements arising from civil proceedings conducted by either the federal
government or private citizens, or criminal charges, including but not limited to disgorgement of profits,
cessation of business activities or divestiture. This could have a material adverse effect on the Company,
including its reputation and ability to conduct business, its holding (directly or indirectly) of marijuana
licenses in the United States, the listing of its securities on various stock exchanges, its financial position,
operating results, profitability or liquidity or the market price of its publicly traded shares. In addition, it
is difficult to estimate the time or resources that would be needed for the investigation of any such
matters or its final resolution because, in part, the time and resources that may be needed are dependent
on the nature and extent of any information requested by the applicable authorities involved, and such
time or resources could be substantial.
In addition, since the possession and use of cannabis and any related drug paraphernalia is illegal under
U.S. federal law, the Company may be deemed to be aiding and abetting illegal activities through the
contracts it has entered into and the products that it intends to provide. As a result, U.S. law enforcement
authorities, in their attempt to regulate the illegal use of cannabis and any related drug paraphernalia,
may seek to bring an action or actions against the Company, including, but not limited to, aiding and
abetting another's criminal activities. The Federal aiding and abetting statute provides that anyone who
"commits an offense against the United States or aids, abets, counsels, commands, induces or procures
its commission, is punishable as a principal." As a result of such an action, the Company may be forced to
cease operations and its investors could lose their entire investment. Such an action would have a material
negative effect on the Company's business and operations.
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The Company's investments and operations in the United States may be subject to heightened scrutiny.
For the reasons set forth above, the Company's existing investments and operations in the United States,
and any future investments or operations, may become the subject of heightened scrutiny by regulators,
stock exchanges and other authorities in Canada. As a result, the Company may be subject to significant
direct and indirect interaction with public officials. There can be no assurance that this heightened
scrutiny will not in turn lead to the imposition of certain restrictions on the Company's ability to invest in
the United States or any other jurisdiction. It has also been reported by certain publications (the
"Publications") in Canada that The Canadian Depository for Securities Limited is considering a policy shift
that would see its subsidiary, CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc. ("CDS"), refuse to settle trades for
cannabis issuers that have investments in the United States. CDS is Canada's central securities depository,
clearing and settlement hub settling trades in the Canadian equity, fixed income and money markets. On
February 8, 2018, CDS signed the CDS Memorandum of Understanding (the “CDS MOU”) with the Aequitas
NEO Exchange Inc., the CSE, the Toronto Stock Exchange and the TSX Venture Exchange (collectively, the
“Exchanges”). The CDS MOU outlines CDS’ and the Exchanges’ understanding of Canada’s regulatory
framework applicable to the rules and procedures and regulatory oversight of the Exchanges and CDS.
The CDS MOU confirms, with respect to the clearing of listed securities, that CDS relies on the Exchanges
to review the conduct of listed issuers. As a result, there currently is no CDS ban on the clearing of
securities of issuers with marijuana-related activities in the United States. However, if CDS were to
proceed in the manner suggested by these publications, and apply such a policy to the Company, it would
have a material adverse effect on the ability of Common Shares to make trades. In particular, the Common
Shares would become highly illiquid as investors would have no ability to effect a trade of Common Shares
through the facilities of a stock exchange.
Government policy changes or public opinion may also result in a significant influence over the regulation
of the cannabis industry in Canada, the United States or elsewhere. A negative shift in the public's
perception of Medical or Recreational Cannabis in the United States or any other applicable jurisdiction
could affect future legislation or regulation. Among other things, such a shift could cause state
jurisdictions to abandon initiatives or proposals to legalize medical and/or Recreational Cannabis, thereby
limiting the number of new state jurisdictions into which the Company could expand. Any inability to fully
implement the Company's expansion strategy may have a material adverse effect on the Company's
business, financial condition and results of operations.
There is uncertainty surrounding the Trump Administration and Attorney General Jeff Sessions and their
influence and policies in opposition to the cannabis industry as a whole.
There continues to be uncertainty as to the position the United States and the Trump Administration will
take with respect to cannabis and the federal government’s enforcement of federal law in relation to
cannabis. Implementation by the U.S. of new legislative or regulatory regimes could impose additional
costs on the Company, decrease U.S. demand for the Company’s services or otherwise negatively impact
the Company, which may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition
and operations.
On January 4, 2018 the Cole Memorandum was rescinded by Attorney General Jeff Sessions. While this
did not create a change in federal law, as the Cole Memorandum was not itself law, the revocation
removed the Department of Justice’s guidance to U.S. attorneys that state-regulated cannabis industries
substantively in compliance with the Cole Memorandum’s guidelines should not be a prosecutorial
priority.
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Attorney General Jeff Sessions also issued a one-page memorandum known as the “Sessions
Memorandum.” This confirmed the rescission of the Cole Memorandum and explained that the Cole
Memorandum was “unnecessary” due to existing general enforcement guidance as set forth in the U.S.
Attorney’s Manual. The U.S. Attorney’s Manual enforcement priorities, like those of the Cole
Memorandum, are also based on the federal government’s limited resources, and include “law
enforcement priorities set by the Attorney General,” the “seriousness” of the alleged crimes, the
“deterrent effect of criminal prosecution,” and “the cumulative impact of particular crimes on the
community.” The Sessions Memorandum emphasizes that marijuana is a Schedule I controlled substance,
and states the statutory view that it is a “dangerous drug and that marijuana activity is a serious crime.”
The approach to the enforcement of cannabis laws in the U.S. may be subject to change or may not
proceed as previously outlined.
The Cole Memorandum outlined certain priorities for the Department of Justice relating to the
prosecution of cannabis offenses. In particular, the Cole Memorandum noted that in jurisdictions that
have enacted laws legalizing cannabis in some form and that have also implemented strong and effective
regulatory and enforcement systems to control the cultivation, distribution, sale and possession of
cannabis, conduct in compliance with those laws and regulations is less likely to be a priority at the federal
level. Notably, however, the Department of Justice has never provided specific guidelines for what
regulatory and enforcement systems it deems sufficient under the Cole Memorandum standard.
However, as noted above, on January 4, 2018 (post year-end) the Cole Memorandum was revoked by
Attorney General Jeff Sessions. Given this revocation, the Department of Justice under the Trump
Administration or an aggressive U.S. federal prosecutor could allege that the Company, its board of
directors, and officers, “aided and abetted” or otherwise involved themselves in violations of federal law.
Under these circumstances, it is possible that the federal prosecutor would seek to seize the assets of the
Company, and to recover the “illicit profits” previously distributed to shareholders resulting from any of
the foregoing financing or services. In these circumstances, the Company’s operations would cease,
shareholders may lose their entire investment and directors, officers and/or shareholders may be left to
defend any criminal charges against them at their own expense and, if convicted, be sent to federal prison.
With regards to the foregoing, U.S. federal law does not deal separately with CBD and THC and so there
is a degree of uncertainty with respect to the legality of CBD-only products derived from industrial hemp
grown in the United States.
Regulatory scrutiny of the Company's industry may negatively impact its ability to raise additional
capital.
The Company's business activities rely on newly established and/or developing laws and regulations in
various states in the United States. These laws and regulations are rapidly evolving and subject to change
with minimal notice. Regulatory changes may adversely affect the Company's profitability or cause it to
cease operations entirely. The cannabis industry may come under the scrutiny or further scrutiny by the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration, Securities and Exchange Commission, the Department of Justice
("DOJ"), the Financial Industry Regulatory Advisory or other federal, Washington State or other applicable
state or non-governmental regulatory authorities or self-regulatory organizations that supervise or
regulate the production, distribution, sale or use of cannabis for medical or nonmedical purposes in the
United States. It is impossible to determine the extent of the impact of any new laws, regulations or
initiatives that may be proposed, or whether any proposals will become law. The regulatory uncertainty
surrounding the cannabis industry may adversely affect the business and operations of the Company,
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including without limitation, the costs to remain compliant with applicable laws and the impairment of its
ability to raise additional capital, which could reduce, delay or eliminate any return on investment in the
Company.
The Company may have difficulty accessing the service of banks and processing credit card payments in
the future, which may make it difficult for the Company to operate.
In February 2014, the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network ("FinCEN") bureau of the U.S. Treasury
Department issued guidance (which is not law) with respect to financial institutions providing banking
services to cannabis business, including burdensome due diligence expectations and reporting
requirements. This guidance does not provide any safe harbors or legal defenses from examination or
regulatory or criminal enforcement actions by the DOJ, FinCEN or other federal regulators. Thus, most
banks and other financial institutions do not appear to be comfortable providing banking services to
cannabis-related businesses, or relying on this guidance, which can be amended or revoked at any time
by the Trump Administration. In addition to the foregoing, banks may refuse to process debit card
payments and credit card companies generally refuse to process credit card payments for cannabisrelated businesses. As a result, the Company may have limited or no access to banking or other financial
services in the United States, and may have to operate the Company's U.S. business on an all-cash basis.
The inability or limitation in the Company's ability to open or maintain bank accounts, obtain other
banking services and/or accept credit card and debit card payments may make it difficult for the Company
to operate and conduct its business as planned. The Company is actively pursuing alternatives that ensure
its operations will continue to be compliant with the FinCEN guidance and existing disclosures around
cash management and reporting to the IRS once it moves from development into production.
U.S. Federal trademark and patent protection may not be available for the intellectual property of the
Company due to the current classification of cannabis as a Schedule I controlled substance.
As long as cannabis remains illegal under U.S. federal law as a Schedule I controlled substance pursuant
to the CSA, the benefit of certain federal laws and protections which may be available to most businesses,
such as federal trademark and patent protection regarding the intellectual property of a business, may
not be available to the Company. As a result, the Company's intellectual property may never be
adequately or sufficiently protected against the use or misappropriation by third-parties. In addition, since
the regulatory framework of the cannabis industry is in a constant state of flux, the Company can provide
no assurance that it will ever obtain any protection of its intellectual property, whether on a federal, state
or local level.
The Company's and its Licensees' contracts may not be legally enforceable in the United States.
Because the Company's contracts involve cannabis and other activities that are not legal under U.S.
federal law and in some jurisdictions, the Company and the Licensees may face difficulties in enforcing
their contracts in U.S. federal and certain state courts.
It may be difficult, if not impossible, for U.S. holders of the Company’s securities to resell them over the
CSE.
It has recently come to management’s attention that all major securities clearing firms in the U.S. have
ceased participating in transactions related to securities of Canadian public companies involved in the
medical marijuana industry. This appears to be due to the fact that marijuana continues to be listed as a
controlled substance under U.S. federal law, with the result that marijuana-related practices or activities,
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including the cultivation, possession or distribution of marijuana, are illegal under U.S. federal law.
However, management understands that the action by U.S. securities clearing firms also extends to
securities of companies that carry on business operations entirely outside the U.S. Accordingly, U.S.
residents who acquire securities of the Company may find it difficult – if not impossible – to resell such
securities over the facilities of any Canadian stock exchange on which the shares may then be listed. It
remains unclear what impact, if any, this and any future actions among market participants in the U.S. will
have on the ability of U.S. residents to resell any securities of the Company that they may acquire in open
market transactions.
Canadian Investors in the Company’s Securities and the Company’s directors, officers and employees
may be subject to travel and entry bans into the United States
News media have reported that United States immigration authorities have increased scrutiny of
Canadian citizens who are crossing the United States–Canada border with respect to persons involved in
cannabis businesses in the United States. There have been a number of Canadians barred from entering
the United States as a result of an investment in or act related to United States cannabis businesses. In
some cases, entry has been barred for extended periods of time.
The majority of persons travelling across the Canadian and U.S. border do so without incident. Some
persons are simply barred entry one time. The U.S. Department of State and the Department of Homeland
Security has indicated that the United States has not changed admission requirements in response to the
pending legalization in Canada of recreational cannabis, but anecdotal evidence indicates that the United
States may be increasing enforcement of its federal laws regarding marijuana-related practices or
activities, including the cultivation, possession or distribution of marijuana.
Admissibility to the United States may be denied to any person working or ‘having involvement in’ the
marijuana industry, including in in States where it is deemed legal, according to United States Customs
and Border Protection. Additionally, legal experts have indicated that if the admission criteria are applied
broadly, this may result in a determination that the act of investing, working or collaborating with a U.S.
cannabis company is considered trafficking in a Schedule I controlled substance or aiding, abetting,
assisting, conspiring or colluding in the trafficking of a Schedule I controlled substance. Inadmissibility in
the United States implies a lifetime ban for entry as such designation is not lifted unless an individual
applies for and obtains a waiver.
Company directors, officers or employees traveling from Canada to the United States for the benefit of
the Company may encounter enhanced scrutiny by United States immigration authorities that may result
in the employee not being permitted to enter the United States for a specified period of time. If this
happens to Company directors, officers or employees, then this may reduce our ability to manage our
business effectively in the United States.
Due to the classification of cannabis as a Schedule I controlled substance under the CSA, banks and other
financial institutions which service the cannabis industry are at risk of violating certain financial laws,
including anti-money laundering statutes.
Because the manufacture, distribution, and dispensation of cannabis remains illegal under the CSA, banks
and other financial institutions providing services to cannabis-related businesses risk violation of federal
anti-money laundering statutes (18 U.S.C. §§ 1956 and 1957), the unlicensed money-remitter statute (18
U.S.C. § 1960) and the U.S. Bank Secrecy Act. These statutes can impose criminal liability for engaging in
certain financial and monetary transactions with the proceeds of a "specified unlawful activity" such as
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distributing controlled substances which are illegal under federal law, including cannabis, and for failing
to identify or report financial transactions that involve the proceeds of cannabis-related violations of the
CSA. The Company may also be exposed to the foregoing risks. In the event that any of the Company's
investments, or any proceeds thereof, any dividends or distributions therefrom, or any profits or revenues
accruing from such investments in the United States were found to be in violation of money laundering
legislation or otherwise, such transactions may be viewed as proceeds of crime under one or more of the
statutes noted above or any other applicable legislation. This could restrict or otherwise jeopardize the
ability of the Company to declare or pay dividends, effect other distributions or subsequently repatriate
such funds back to Canada. the foreseeable future, in the event that a determination was made that any
such investments in the United States could reasonably be shown to constitute proceeds of crime, the
Company may decide or be required to suspend declaring or paying dividends without advance notice and
for an indefinite period of time.
State and local laws and regulations may heavily regulate brands and forms of cannabis products and
there is no guarantee that the Company’s proposed products and brands will be approved for sale and
distribution in any state.
States only allow the manufacture, sale and distribution of cannabis products that are grown in that state
and may require advance approval of such products. Certain states and local jurisdictions have
promulgated certain requirements for approved cannabis products based on the form of the product and
the concentration of the various cannabinoids in the product. There is no guarantee that the Company’s
products will be approved to the extent necessary. If the products are approved, there is a risk that any
state or local jurisdiction may revoke its approval for such products based on changes in laws or
regulations or based on its discretion or otherwise.
Lack of Access to United States Bankruptcy Protections
Because cannabis is a Schedule I substance under the CSA, many courts have denied cannabis businesses
federal bankruptcy protections, making it difficult for lenders to be made whole on their investments in
the cannabis industry in the event of a bankruptcy. If the Company or one of its Licensees were to
experience a bankruptcy, there is no guarantee that United States federal bankruptcy protections would
be available to the Company or its Licensee, which would have a material adverse effect.
Risks Generally Related to the Company
The failure of the Licensees to fulfill their financial obligations with respect to royalty payments under
their license agreements or to otherwise adequately produce, market and sell products bearing the
Company's brand names in their respective license categories could have a material adverse effect on
the Company's business, financial condition and results of operations.
The Company's revenues are almost entirely dependent on royalty payments made to the Company
pursuant to license agreements entered into with licensees of the Company's brands. The failure of the
Licensees to satisfy their financial obligations under these agreements, or their inability to operate
successfully or at all, could result in a breach of an agreement, early termination of an agreement or nonrenewal of an agreement. A decrease or elimination of revenue could have a material adverse effect on
the Company's financial condition, results of operation and cash flows.
During the term of a license agreement, the Company's revenues and the value of the Company's brands
substantially depend upon the Licensee's ability to maintain the quality and marketability and market
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acceptance of the branded products licensed to such licensee and their failure to do so could negatively
affect consumer perception of the Company's brands and harm the Company's future growth and
prospects. Further, the failure of the Licensees to meet their production, manufacturing and distribution
requirements, or a weak economy or softness in the cannabis space could cause the Licensees to default
on their obligations. In addition, the Licensees' inability to maintain market acceptance of the Company's
brands or the Company's failure to monitor the Licensees' compliance with their license agreements or
take appropriate corrective action when necessary may subject the Company's intellectual property
assets to cancellation, loss of rights or devaluation and any devaluation of the Company's intellectual
property could cause a material impairment in the carrying value of such intellectual property, potentially
resulting in a charge as an expense to the Company's results of operations. If such developments occur or
the Licensees are otherwise not successful, the value and recognition of the Company's brands, as well as
the Company's business, financial condition and results of operations, could be materially adversely
affected.
The Company's business depends on continued market acceptance of the Company's brands and the
products bearing these brands.
The cannabis space is highly susceptible to changes in consumer preferences and continued market
acceptance of the Company's brands and the Licensees' products, as well as market acceptance of any
future products bearing the Company's brands and is subject to a high degree of uncertainty. In order to
generate revenues and profits, the Licensees must continually develop product offerings that appeal to
consumers. Generally, the Company does not retain the rights to monitor the products that the Licensee's
design and produce with the exception of the brands licensed by the Company and can provide no
assurance that licensees will develop, market and sell other products and brands that appeal to
consumers. Any significant changes in consumer preferences or any inability on the Licensees' part to
anticipate or react to such changes could reduce demand for the Company's branded products and erode
the competitiveness of such products, which would negatively affect the Company's financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.
The continued success of the Company's brands and branded products and market acceptance of new
products and product categories are also dependent on the Company's ability to continually improve the
effectiveness of the Company's marketing efforts. The Company devotes significant resources and
expenditures to promoting the Company's brands and new product launches, but there can be no
assurance as to the Company's continued ability to effectively execute the Company's marketing
programs. To the extent the Licensees misjudge the market for the Company's brands and branded
products, or the Company's marketing efforts are unsuccessful, the Company's business, results of
operations and prospects will be adversely affected.
The Company has incurred a substantial amount of indebtedness in connection with the Company's
acquisition, which could adversely affect the Company's financial condition and results of operations.
The financial statements for the Company as at June 30, 2018 disclose notes payable totaling $3,819,622.
These notes are due 13 months after the date the Company becomes a reporting issuer. There is no
assurance that the business will generate sufficient operating cash flow to repay the debt or that the
Company will be successful in obtaining future financing.
The Company's high level of indebtedness increases the possibility that the Company may be unable to
generate cash sufficient to pay when due the principal of, interest on or other amounts due in respect of
such indebtedness. In addition, the Company may incur additional debt from time to time to finance

27

strategic acquisitions, investments, joint ventures or for other purposes, subject to the restrictions
contained in the documents that govern the Company's indebtedness. If the Company incurs additional
debt, the risks associated with the Company's leverage, including the Company's ability to service debt,
would increase.
The Company's increased level of indebtedness could have other important consequences, which include,
but are not limited to, the following:






a substantial portion of the Company's cash flow from operations could be required to pay
principal and interest on the Company's debt;
the Company's leverage could increase the Company's vulnerability to general economic
downturns and adverse competitive and industry conditions, placing the Company at a
disadvantage compared to those of the Company's competitors that are less leveraged;
the Company's debt service obligations could limit the Company's flexibility in planning for, or
reacting to, changes in the Company's business and in the brand licensing industry;
the Company's failure to comply with the restrictive covenants in the documents governing the
Company's indebtedness could result in an event of default that, if not cured or waived, results in
foreclosure on substantially all of the Company's assets; and
the Company's level of debt may restrict the Company from raising additional financing on
satisfactory terms to fund strategic acquisitions, investments, joint ventures and other general
corporate requirements.

The Company cannot be certain that its earnings will be sufficient to allow the Company to pay principal
and interest on its debt and meet its other obligations. If the Company does not have sufficient earnings,
it may be required to seek to refinance all or part of the Company's then existing debt, sell assets, make
additional borrowings or sell more securities, none of which the Company can guarantee that it will be
able to do.
The Company may require additional capital to finance the acquisition of additional brands, and the
Company's inability to raise such capital on beneficial terms or at all could limit the Company's growth.
The Company may, in the future, require additional capital to help fund all or part of potential acquisitions.
If, at the time required, the Company does not have sufficient cash to finance those additional capital
needs, the Company will need to raise additional funds through equity and/or debt financing. The
Company cannot guarantee that, if and when needed, additional financing will be available to the
Company on acceptable terms or at all. If additional capital is needed and is either unavailable or cost
prohibitive, the Company's growth may be limited as the Company may need to change the Company's
business strategy to slow the rate of, or eliminate, the Company's expansion plans. In addition, any
additional financing the Company undertakes could impose additional covenants upon the Company that
restrict the Company's operating flexibility, and, if the Company issues equity securities to raise capital,
the Company's existing stockholders may experience dilution or the new securities may have rights senior
to those of the Company's common stock.
The Company or the Licensees may not be able to continue to compete successfully because of intense
competition within the Licensees' markets, the strength of some of their competitors or other factors.
The Company's licenses are for products primarily in the cannabis markets, in which the Licensees face
intense competition. Competitive factors in these markets include quality, price, name recognition,
service and advertising. Changing customer preferences and the limited availability of shelf space in
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dispensaries could materially and adversely affect the competitive position of the Licensees' products.
Many of the Licensees' competitors have greater financial, distribution, marketing and other resources
than the Licensees and have achieved significant name recognition for their brands. The Licensees may
be unable to successfully compete in the markets for their products, which would adversely affect the
Company's revenues and cash flows, and the Company may not be able to continue to compete
successfully with respect to the Company's licensing arrangements.
The Company may not be able to adequately protect the Company's intellectual property rights, which
could compromise its competitive position and decrease the value of the Company's brands.
The loss of or inability to enforce the Company's proprietary rights of its intellectual property could
materially and adversely affect the Company's business and financial condition. For instance, if any third
party independently develops similar products to those marketed and distributed by the Licensees or
manufactures knock-offs of such products, it may harm the reputation of the Company's brands, decrease
their value or cause a decline in the Licensees' sales and thus the Company's revenues.
The Company may need to bring legal claims to enforce or protect the Company's intellectual property
rights. Any litigation, whether successful or unsuccessful, could result in substantial costs and diversions
of resources and negatively impact the Company's business operations. In addition, notwithstanding the
rights the Company have secured in the Company's intellectual property, third parties may bring claims
against the Company or the Licensees alleging that the Company or the Licensees have infringed on their
intellectual property rights or that the Company or the Licensees' intellectual property rights are not valid.
Any claims against the Company or the Licensees, with or without merit, could be time consuming and
costly to defend or litigate and therefore could adversely affect the Company's business. In addition, to
the extent that any of the Company's intellectual property assets is deemed to violate the proprietary
rights of third parties in any litigation or proceeding or as a result of any claim, then the Company or the
Licensees may be prevented from using it, which could cause a breach or termination of license
agreements. If the Licensees are prevented from using the intellectual property that the Company has
licensed to them, the revenues of the Licensees will be reduced with respect to those intellectual property
assets, and the related royalty payments the Company receives could be reduced. Litigation with respect
to the Company's intellectual property or breaches of the Company's license agreements could result in
a judgment or monetary damages.
The Company depends upon the services of the Company's key executives, including the Company's
Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Dan Anglin. If the Company loses the services of Mr. Anglin or other key
executives, the Company may not be able to fully implement the Company's business plan and future
growth strategy, which would harm the Company's business and prospects.
The Company's success is largely dependent upon the expertise and knowledge of the Company's Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Dan Anglin, and other key members of the executive team, whom the Company
relies upon to formulate the Company’s business strategies. The Company's key executives leadership and
experience in the cannabis industry are essential to the successful implementation of the Company's
business and marketing strategy. The Company does not carry key person life insurance covering the
Company's key executives. The loss of the services of the Company's key executives could have a material
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adverse effect on the Company's business prospects, financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows.
The Company's results of operations may fluctuate significantly, which makes it difficult to predict the
Company's performance and could result in volatility in the Company's stock price.
The Company may experience variations in its revenue and results of operations from quarter to quarter.
This variability is affected by numerous factors, including:






the timing of the introduction of new licensed products by the Licensees;
the level of consumer acceptance of the Company's brands and licensed products;
general economic and industry conditions in the cannabis space;
the availability of viable licensees that meet the Company's brand criteria; and
the timing and amount of marketing and other expenditures.

Because of these fluctuations in the Company's revenues, operating expenses and cash flows, it could be
difficult to make period-to-period comparisons of the Company's result of operations and liquidity and it
may be difficult for securities analysts and investors to predict the Company's performance. As a result,
the Company's results of operations in any particular quarter may be below the expectations of securities
analysts or investors. Fluctuations in the Company's performance and the failure to meet analyst
expectations could cause declines or volatility in the Company's stock price.
The Company does not foresee paying dividends in the foreseeable future.
The Company has not paid dividends and does not anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable future.
Instead, the Company plans to retain any earnings to maintain and expand existing licensing operations,
further develop the Company's brands and finance the acquisition of additional assets and search for new
opportunities.
The Company has a significant amount of intangible assets, including the Company's trademarks,
recorded on the Company's balance sheet.
If there are changes in market conditions and declines in the estimated fair value of these assets, the
Company may have to write-down intangible assets and may be required to record impairments of the
Company's intangible assets in the future which could adversely affect the Company's results of
operations.
The Company's business, financial condition and results of operations could suffer in the event of
security breaches, cyber-attacks or unauthorized disclosures of personal information.
In conducting their businesses, including their e-commerce businesses, the Licensees and retail partners
obtain and transmit confidential information about their customers, including credit card and other
personal information, through their websites and their information technology systems. To the best of
the Company's knowledge, the Licensees have not experienced any material misappropriation, loss or
other unauthorized disclosure of confidential or personally identifiable information as a result of a security
breach or cyber-attack. If the Licensees experience such a security breach or cyber-attack, it could
adversely affect their business and operations, including damaging their reputation and their relationships
with their customers, exposing them to risks of litigation and liability. There can be no assurance that the
Licensees will not experience any future security breaches, cyber-attacks or unauthorized disclosures. The
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Licensees may incur significant costs to comply with laws regarding the protection and unauthorized
disclosure of personal information, which could also negatively affect their ability to generate sales and
make royalty payments to the Company, resulting in a material adverse effect on its business, financial
condition and results of operations.
The size of the Company's target market is difficult to quantify and investors will be reliant on their own
estimates on the accuracy of market data.
Because the cannabis industry is in an early stage with uncertain boundaries, there is a lack of information
about comparable companies available for potential investors to review in deciding about whether to
invest in the Company and, few, if any, established companies whose business model the Company can
follow or upon whose success the Company can build. Accordingly, investors will have to rely on their own
estimates in deciding about whether to invest in the Company. There can be no assurance that the
Company's estimates are accurate or that the market size is sufficiently large for its business to grow as
projected, which may negatively impact its financial results. The Company regularly purchases and follows
market research.
USE OF PROCEEDS AND AVAILABLE FUNDS
The Company's estimated working capital as at July 31, 2018 is $2,515,000. Significant changes in working
capital since March 31, 2018 include additional funding from private placements and payment of liabilities
in DAFF. The funds expected to be available to the Company are described below:
Funds Available
Estimated working capital as of July 31, 2018

$2,515,000

Net Funds Available (unaudited)

$2,515,000

Use of Proceeds
The Company's estimated working capital as at July 31, 2018 is intended to be used as follows:
Principal Purpose
Accomplish business milestones

$170,000

Annual estimated general and administrative costs (1)
Interest on long term debt

$556,000
$221,000

Repayment of a portion of notes payable (2)

$1,568,000

Total

$2,515,000

Notes:
(1) The estimated general and administrative costs for the next 12 months are as follows:
Wages

$330,000

Professional fees

$161,000

Travel and miscellaneous

$65,000

Total

$556,000
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Wages include a portion of the salary for the CEO, COO and operating staff. Remaining staff wages are
included in the $170,000 noted above to accomplish business milestones. Professional fees include legal,
audit and accounting fees.
(2) The remaining balance of the notes payable after this assumed repayment is $2,251,622.

The Company estimates that its current working capital combined with cash flow from license operations
over the next twelve months will fund operations for at least one year. The estimated total capital and
operating costs necessary for the Company to achieve its business objectives for the next 12 months is
$947,000.
During the year ended March 31, 2018, DAFF entered into an assignment and assumption agreement with
a related company, His Way Herbs, LLC. (the “Agreement”) to acquire a portfolio of cannabis brands. The
consideration paid was the assumption of $5,798,665 in total liabilities. The principal purpose of the
proceeds of indebtedness of $5,798,665 was to acquire the intellectual property for the CannAmerica and
Americanna brands. The financial statements for the Company as at June 30, 2018 disclose remaining
notes payable totaling $3,819,622. These notes are due 13 months after the date the Company becomes
a reporting issuer. As at Any remaining unallocated funds will be used to these notes payable. The
Company expects to generate operating cash flow to repay the notes. In the event operating cash flow is
not sufficient to repay the notes, the company will seek additional financing through debt or equity
issuances. The ability of the Company to generate sufficient operating cash flow or obtain debt or equity
financing in the future is a material assumption. There is no assurance that the business will be profitable
or that the Company will be successful in obtaining future financing.
While the Company intends to spend its current working capital as stated above, there may be
circumstances where, for sound business reasons, a re-allocation of funds may be necessary or advisable.
The actual amount that the Company spends in connection with each of the intended uses of proceeds
may vary significantly from the amounts specified above, and will depend on a number of factors,
including those listed under the heading "Risk Factors".
Business Objectives and Milestones
The objectives that the Company expects to accomplish using its estimated working capital as at July
31, 2018, are to obtain a listing of its Shares on the CSE as well as the following milestones:
Milestone

Description

Estimated Cash
Required

Estimated Time
Frame

1.

Commence operations in Maryland

$50,000

September
2018

2.

Commence operations in Nevada

$50,000

July 2018

3.

Ongoing distribution under current licensing
arrangement in Colorado

$50,000

September
2018

4.

Expansion of licensing into Canada

$20,000

July 2019

While the Company intends to spend its current working capital as stated above, there may be
circumstances where, for sound business reasons, a re-allocation of funds may be necessary or advisable.
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The actual amount that the Company spends in connection with each of the intended uses of proceeds
may vary significantly from the amounts specified above, and will depend on a number of factors,
including those listed under the heading "Risk Factors".
The Company has not yet achieved positive operating cash flow, and there are no assurances that the
Company will not experience negative cash flow from operations in the future.
DIVIDENDS OR DISTRIBUTIONS
The Company has not paid dividends since its incorporation. While there are no restrictions in the
Company's articles or pursuant to any agreement or understanding which could prevent the Company
from paying dividends or distributions, the Company has limited cash flow and anticipates using all
available cash resources to fund working capital and grow its business. As such, there are no plans to pay
dividends in the foreseeable future. Any decisions to pay dividends in cash or otherwise in the future will
be made by the Board on the basis of the Company's earnings, financial requirements and other conditions
existing at the time a determination is made.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Company's Financial Statements and MD&A are included as schedules to this Prospectus as Schedule
"A" and Schedule "B" respectively. The Financial Statements and the financial data derived therefrom and
included in this Prospectus have been prepared in accordance with IFRS. The Company's MD&A included
herein should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements and the disclosure contained in this
Prospectus.
DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL
Common Shares
The Company's authorized capital consists of an unlimited number of Shares, of which 49,684,865 Shares
are issued and outstanding as at the date of this Prospectus. Holders of the Shares are entitled to one
vote per Share at all meetings of the holders of Shares and to participate in any distribution of the
Company's property or assets upon liquidation or wind-up.
CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION
The following tables provide information about capitalization as of the date of this Prospectus:
Description of security

Number authorized to be issued

Amount outstanding as of the
date of this Prospectus

Shares

No maximum

49,684,865
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OPTIONS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES
The Board has adopted a stock option plan (the "Stock Option Plan") whereby the maximum number of
Shares that may be reserved for issuance under outstanding stock options is 15% of the Company's issued
and outstanding Shares on a non-diluted basis, as constituted on the date of any grant of options under
the Stock Option Plan.
The purpose of the Stock Option Plan is to allow the Company to grant options to directors, officers,
employees and consultants, as additional compensation and as an opportunity to participate in the
success of the Company. The granting of such options is intended to align the interests of such persons
with that of the Company's shareholders.
Under the Stock Option Plan, options will be exercisable over periods of up to 10 years as determined by
the Board and are required to have an exercise price no less than the closing market price of the Shares
on the trading day immediately preceding the day on which the Company announces the grant of options
(or, if the grant is not announced, the date specified in an Option Agreement as the date on which the
option is granted), less the applicable discount, if any, permitted by the policies of the CSE and approved
by the Board. Pursuant to the Stock Option Plan, the Board may from time to time authorize the issue of
options to directors, senior officers, employees and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries or
employees of companies providing management or consulting services to the Company or its subsidiaries.
The maximum number of Shares which may be issued pursuant to options previously granted and those
granted under the Stock Option Plan or any other stock option plan of the Company will be 15% of the
issued and outstanding Shares at the time of the grant. In addition, the number of Shares which may be
reserved for issuance to any one individual may not exceed (without the requisite disinterested
shareholder approval) 5% of the issued Shares on a yearly basis or 2% if the optionee is engaged in investor
relations activities or is a consultant. The Stock Option Plan permits the Board to specify a vesting
schedule in its discretion, subject to the CSE's minimum vesting requirements, if any. Unless otherwise
specified by the Board at the time of granting an option, and subject to the other limits on option grants
set out in the Stock Option Plan, all options granted under the Stock Option Plan shall vest and become
exercisable in full upon grant, except options granted to consultants performing investor relations
activities, which options must vest in stages over twelve months with no more than one-quarter of the
options vesting in any three month period.
The Stock Option Plan provides that if a change of control (as defined in the Stock Option Plan) occurs, or
if the Company is subject to a take-over bid, all Shares subject to options shall immediately become vested
and may thereupon be exercised in whole or in part by the option holder. The Board may also accelerate
the expiry date of outstanding options in connection with a take-over bid.
The Stock Option Plan contains a cashless exercise feature whereby the exercise price of options may, at
a participant's election, be advanced by an independent brokerage firm. The advance is deducted from
the proceeds of sale of the Shares issued on exercise, and the remaining proceeds are paid to the
participant.
The Stock Option Plan contains adjustment provisions with respect to outstanding options in cases of
share reorganizations, special distributions and other corporation reorganizations including an
arrangement or other transaction under which the business or assets of the Company become,
collectively, the business and assets of two or more companies with the same shareholder group upon
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the distribution to the Company's shareholders, or the exchange with the Company's shareholders, of
securities of the Company or securities of another company.
The Stock Option Plan provides that on the death or disability of an option holder, all vested options will
expire at the earlier of 365 days after the date of death or disability and the expiry date of such options.
Where an optionee is terminated for cause, any outstanding options (whether vested or unvested) are
cancelled as of the date of termination. If an optionee retires or voluntarily resigns or is otherwise
terminated by the Company other than for cause, then all vested options held by such optionee will expire
at the earlier of (i) the expiry date of such options and (ii) the date which is 90 days (30 days if the optionee
was engaged in investor relations activities) after the optionee ceases its office, employment or
engagement with the Company.
The Stock Option Plan contains a provision that if pursuant to the operation of an adjustment provision
of the Stock Option Plan, an optionee receives options (the "New Options") to purchase securities of
another company (the "New Company") in respect of the optionee's options under the Stock Option Plan
(the "Subject Options"), the New Options shall expire on the earlier of: (i) the expiry date of the Subject
Options; (ii) if the optionee does not become an eligible person in respect of the New Company, the date
that the Subject Options expire pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Stock Option Plan relating to
expiration of options in cases of death, disability or termination of employment discussed in the preceding
paragraph above (the "Termination Provisions"); (iii) if the optionee becomes an eligible person in respect
of the New Company, the date that the New Options expire pursuant to the terms of the New Company's
stock option plan that correspond to the Termination Provisions; and (iv) the date that is one (1) year after
the optionee ceases to be an eligible person in respect of the New Company or such shorter period as
determined by the Board.
All outstanding options of the Company are governed by the Stock Option Plan, including those issued
prior to the implementation of the Stock Option Plan; however, any vesting schedule imposed by the
Company's previous stock option plan or stock option agreements in respect of any options issued prior
to the implementation of the Stock Option Plan will remain in full force and effect.
In accordance with good corporate governance practices and as recommended by National Policy 51-201
– Disclosure Standards, the Company imposes black-out periods restricting the trading of its securities by
directors, officers, employees and consultants during periods surrounding the release of annual and
interim financial statements and at other times when deemed necessary by management and the Board.
In order to ensure that holders of outstanding options are not prejudiced by the imposition of such blackout periods, the Stock Option Plan contains a provision to the effect that any outstanding options with an
expiry date occurring during a management imposed black-out period or within five trading days
thereafter will be automatically extended to a date that is 10 trading days following the end of the blackout period.
The following table summarizes the allocation of the options granted by the Company up to the date of
this Prospectus:

Optionee
Executive Officers as a
group(1)

Number of
Options

Exercise Price
(CDN$)

Expiry Date

2,000,000

$0.30

May 30, 2023
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Number of
Options

Exercise Price
(CDN$)

Expiry Date

Directors as a group

900,000

$0.30

May 30, 2023

Employees as a group (2)

600,000

$0.30

May 30, 2023

Consultants as a group

600,000

$0.30

May 30, 2023

Optionee

Total:
(1)
(2)

4,100,000

This information applies to the two executive officers of the Company.
Employees who are also executive officers are excluded from this group.
PRIOR SALES

The table below sets out the prior sales of common shares in the authorized capital of the Company for
the 12-month period before the date of this Prospectus, including the Shares issued in connection with
the Merger:

Date of Issue

Type of
Securities

Reason for Issue

Number of
Securities

Issue or
Exercise Price
per Security

March 30, 2018

Common Shares

Conversion of
Special Warrants
issued in Private
Placement

7,060,000

$0.20

May 30, 2018

Common Shares

Merger

29,166,000

$0.20 (deemed)

August 31, 2018

Common Shares

Private Placement

5,852,200

$0.30

September 6, 2018

Common Shares

Private Placement

7,306,664

$0.30

ESCROWED SECURITIES AND SECURITIES SUBJECT TO CONTRACTUAL RESTRICTION ON TRANSFER
As of the date of this prospectus, the following sets out the securities of the Company that, to the
knowledge of the Company, are held in escrow or are subject to contractual restrictions on transfer.
NP 46-201 Escrow
In the event that the Shares become listed on the Exchange, the Company anticipates that it will be
classified as an "emerging issuer", as defined under NP 46-201 upon such listing. Each of: Dan Anglin; Frank
Falconer; Dylan Easterbrook; Nitin Kaushal; Jordan Crockett and Russell Henderson (collectively, the
"Principal Escrow Holders"), would fall within the definition of "principal" of an emerging issuer under NP
46-201.
Policy 2 – Qualifications for Listing of the CSE (the "CSE Policy") requires that securities issued to Related
Persons (as defined in the CSE Policy) be subject to an escrow agreement pursuant to NP 46-201.
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In accordance with applicable securities rules, the Principal Escrow Holders and their respective affiliates,
as applicable, who hold Shares have executed an escrow agreement with the Company and Trustco made
as of October 9, 2018 substantially in the form attached as an Appendix to NP 46-201 (Form 46-201F1)
(the "Escrow Agreement") in respect of an aggregate of 5,500,000 Shares. The Escrow Agreement will be
filed under the Company's profile at www.sedar.com upon listing.
Pursuant to the terms of the Standard Release Schedule included in the Escrow Agreement, for a period
of three years from the date on which the Shares are listed for trading on the Exchange, the Principal
Escrow Holders will not transfer or otherwise dispose of securities of the Company that are subject to the
Escrow Agreement unless expressly permitted by the Escrow Agreement, except that, the following
automatic timed releases will apply to such securities:
Date of Automatic Timed Release

Amount of Escrowed Securities Released

On the Listing Date

1/10 of the escrowed securities

6 months after the Listing Date

1/6 of the escrowed securities

12 months after the Listing Date

1/5 of the remaining escrowed securities

18 months after the Listing Date

1/4 of the remaining escrowed securities

24 months after the Listing Date

1/3 of the remaining escrowed securities

30 months after the Listing Date

1/2 of the remaining escrowed securities

36 months after the Listing Date

The remaining escrowed securities

The following table sets out information on the number of securities subject to the terms of the Escrow
Agreement among the Company, Trustco, the Principal Escrow Holders and the Non-Principal Escrow
Holders:
Name and Position of Escrow
Holder

Number of Escrowed Securities

Percentage of Class(1)

2,750,000 Shares

5.5%

0 Shares

0%

2,750,000 Shares

5.5%

Nitin Kaushal, Director

0 Shares

0%

Jordan Crockett, Director

0 Shares

0%

Dan Anglin
CEO & Director
Dylan Easterbrook
CFO & Corporate Secretary
Frank Falconer
COO & Director
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Name and Position of Escrow
Holder

Number of Escrowed Securities

Percentage of Class(1)

0 Shares

0%

5,500,000 Shares

11%

Russell Henderson, Director
Total
Notes:

(1) Based on 49,684,865 issued and outstanding Shares.
Contractual Restriction on Transfer
The Shares issued pursuant to the Private Placement are subject to a contractual restriction on resale and
may not be transferred until the date that is 4 months following the Listing Date.
PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS
To the knowledge of the Company's directors and officers, no persons beneficially own, or control or
direct, directly or indirectly, voting securities carrying 10% or more of the voting rights attached to any of
the Shares.
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Name, Occupation, and Security Holdings
The following table sets out the name; province and country of residence; position or offices held with
the Company; date appointed; number and percentage of voting securities of the Company that each of
the directors and executive officers beneficially owns directly or indirectly, or exercises control over as at
the date of this Prospectus.
Name, Current
Position, and
Province and
Country of
Residence
Dan Anglin
CEO
CO, USA
Frank Falconer
COO
CO, USA
Dylan Easterbrook
CFO
B.C, Canada
Nitin Kaushal (1)
Director
Ontario, Canada

Position Held
Since

Common
Shares
Beneficially
Owned or
Controlled

Number of Convertible
or Exchangeable
Securities Outstanding

Officer since
May 30, 2018

2,750,000

Officer since
May 30, 2018

Total
Ownership
on an
Undiluted
Basis(2)

Total
Ownership
on a Fullydiluted
Basis(3)

1,000,000 Options(4)
1,250,000 Warrants (5)

5.5%

8.8%

2,750,000

1,000,000 Options(4)
1,250,000 Warrants (5)

5.5%

8.8%

Officer since
May 30, 2018

0

300,000 Options(4)

0%

0.5%

Director since
May 30, 2018

0

300,000 Options(4)

0%

0.5%
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Name, Current
Position, and
Province and
Country of
Residence

Position Held
Since

Common
Shares
Beneficially
Owned or
Controlled

Number of Convertible
or Exchangeable
Securities Outstanding

Total
Ownership
on an
Undiluted
Basis(2)

Total
Ownership
on a Fullydiluted
Basis(3)

Jordan Crockett (1)
Director since
Director
0
300,000 Options(4)
0%
0.5%
May 30, 2018
B.C., Canada
Russell
Henderson(1)
Director since
0
300,000 Options(4)
0%
0.5%
Director
May 30, 2018
B.C., Canada
(1)
Member of the audit committee, of which Russell Henderson is the Chair.
(2)
Based on 49,684,865 issued and outstanding Shares.
(3)
Based on 56,784,865 issued and outstanding Shares, assuming exercise of all outstanding options
and warrants.
(4)
Represents options to purchase Shares at an exercise price of $0.30 per Share until May 30, 2023
(five years from the date of grant) pursuant to the Stock Option Plan, which options vest
immediately on the date of grant.
(5)
Represents warrants to purchase Shares at an exercise price of $0.50 per Share until 24 months
from the date of a public listing.
Management – Directors and Officers of the Company
Below is a brief description of each of the directors and executive officers of the Company including:
names; ages; positions and responsibilities; relevant background; principal occupations or employment
during the five years preceding the date of this Prospectus; and relevant experience in the industry.
Dan Anglin, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Anglin, 47, is an employee of the Company devoting 100% of his time to the ongoing operations. He
is the founder of AmeriCanna, a marijuana infused products Manufacturer and Cultivator of both Medical
and Recreational Cannabis products in Colorado. Mr. Anglin has been a high profile figure in the marijuana
industry since 2011, having owned and operated a recreational dispensary in Black Hawk, Colorado, and
co-owned one of the largest marijuana manufacturing companies in the world, EPMM LLC ("EdiPure"),
which has operations in multiple States. Mr. Anglin is considered a national expert in marijuana public
policy, having been selected to rule-making working groups for the Colorado Marijuana Enforcement
Division on more than 10 occasions, and has been instrumental in creating legislation directly at the
Colorado General Assembly that benefits the regulated cannabis industry. Mr. Anglin founded and is the
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Colorado Cannabis Chamber of Commerce, an industry-based
trade organization that is dedicated to providing advocacy and networking opportunities for the cannabis
industry, as well as promoting reasonable regulation on legal commercial cannabis businesses. Mr.
Anglin's employment agreement includes a non-competition clause for a period of 6 months postresignation/termination as well as a non-disclosure clause. Mr. Anglin obtained his BA degree at the
University of Arizona.
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Frank Falconer, Chief Operating Officer
Mr. Falconer, 41, is an employee of the Company devoting 100% of his time to the ongoing operations.
His involvement in the cannabis industry started in 2009 with the ownership and successful sale of a
marijuana edibles company, Wild Flour Baking Co. ("WFB"). Shortly after the sale of WFB, Mr. Falconer
shifted focus to distribution and development of new brands in the Colorado market. The impressive
portfolio of Infused-product brands he introduced into the market include: EdiPure, EyeChronic,
ExtractionTek, CRREO bags, Kush Bottles, ApotheCanna, PharmPods, Organa Labs Vape Pens (Open Vape),
and Atmos Vape Pens. In addition to this list of brands that Mr. Falconer introduced into the market, he
co-founded Denver Consulting Group (A Cannabis Consulting Firm, catering to clients nation-wide),
Cannascore (a compliance audit software program, tracks compliance for cannabis operations, nationwide), and now CannAmerica. Mr. Falconer's employment agreement includes a non-competition clause
for a period of 6 months post-resignation/termination as well as a non-disclosure clause. Mr. Falconer
graduated from Regis University in Colorado with a Bachelor of Business Administration and a minor in
International Marketing.
Dylan Easterbrook, CPA/CA – Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Easterbrook, 34, is an independent contractor for the Company devoting approximately 35% of his
time to the ongoing operations of the Company. Mr. Easterbrook is a seasoned accounting and financial
professional, who is currently the CFO of a Canadian cannabis company Invictus MD Strategies Inc.
(TSXV:GENE), and previously was controller of a publicly traded global fibre optic connectivity solution
provider. Prior to that role he was with Ernst & Young, one of the largest professional services firms in the
world and one of the Big Four accounting firms, where he led audit engagements for both public and
privately held companies from a variety of industries, including the emerging markets. Mr. Easterbrook is
a Canadian Chartered Professional Accountant (CPA, CA), and also holds a Bachelor of Science in Life
Sciences degree from the University of British Columbia.
Nitin Kaushal – Board Chairman and Independent Director
Mr. Kaushal, 53, serves as Managing Director, Corporate Finance at PwC Canada. He has over 30 years of
finance and investment experience in the financial, life sciences, consumer healthcare and medical device
industries. Over the course of his career, Mr. Kaushal has worked in senior roles with a number of
Canadian investment banks, including Desjardins Securities Inc., Orion Securities Inc., Vengate Capital
Partners Company, HSBC Securities Inc., Medwell Capital Corp. and Gordon Capital, and has held various
roles within the private equity/venture capital industry. In addition, he has sat on the boards of a number
of public and private companies, including Valens Groworks Corporation, Delta 9 Cannabis Inc., Viemed
Healthcare Inc., Hashchain Technology Inc. and BLVD Centers Corporation. Mr. Kaushal holds a Bachelor
of Science (Chemistry) degree from the University of Toronto and is a CPA-CA.
Mr. Kaushal's involvement with the Company will be part-time, approximating 10% of his time, on
average.
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Jordan Crockett – Independent Director
Mr. Crockett, 37, currently owns and operates a progressive commercial and residential construction
company. He has been involved in the design and construction of cannabis cultivation facilities over the
years. Mr. Crockett graduated with a degree in commerce specialising in finance at the University of British
Columbia Sauder School of Business. Mr. Crockett's involvement with the Company will be part-time,
approximating 10% of his time, on average.
Russell Henderson, CPA/CA – Independent Director and Chair of the Audit Committee
Mr. Henderson, 32, is an experienced corporate finance and strategy professional. He has advised both
private and public clients over the past five years on mergers, acquisitions, divestitures and financing
transactions with enterprise values in the hundreds of millions of dollars, most recently with MNP
Corporate Finance and Ernst & Young Orenda Corporate Finance. Prior to working in mergers &
acquisitions, Mr. Henderson spent three years working in the assurance practice of Ernst & Young LLP.
Mr. Henderson has worked with clients in a broad range of industries in Canada, the United States and
the United Kingdom.
Mr. Henderson is a Chartered Professional Accountant (CPA, CA) and holds a Bachelor of Management
and Organizational Studies specializing in Finance and Administration from the University of Western
Ontario.
Mr. Henderson's involvement with the Company will be part-time, approximating 10% of his time, on
average.
Term of Office of Directors
The term of office of the directors expires annually at the time of the Company's annual general meeting.
The term of office of the executive officers expires at the discretion of the Board.
Aggregate Ownership of Securities
As at the date of this Prospectus, the directors and executive officers of the Company as a group
beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or exercise control over 5,500,000 Shares collectively representing
11% of the 49,684,865 issued and outstanding Shares.
Conflicts of Interest
The directors of the Company are required by law to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best
interests of the Company and to disclose any interests which they may have in any project or opportunity
of the Company. If a conflict of interest arises, any director in a conflict will disclose his interest and
abstain from voting on such matter at a meeting of the Board.
To the best of the Company's knowledge, and other than as disclosed in this Prospectus, there are no
known existing or potential conflicts of interest among the Company, its promoters, directors and officers
or other members of management of the Company or any proposed promoter, director, officer or other
member of management as a result of their outside business interests, except that certain of the directors
and officers serve as directors and officers of other companies, and therefore it is possible that a conflict
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may arise between their duties to the Company and their duties as a director or officer of such other
companies.
Cease Trade Orders, Bankruptcies, Penalties or Sanctions
Cease Trade Orders
To the Company's knowledge, no existing or proposed director or executive officer of the Company is, as
at the date of this Prospectus, or was within 10 years before the date hereof, a director, chief executive
officer or chief financial officer of any company, including the Company, that:
(i)

was subject to an order that was issued while the director or executive officer was acting
in the capacity of a director, the chief executive officer or the chief financial officer
thereof; or

(ii)

was subject to an order that was issued after the director or executive officer ceased to
be a director, the chief executive officer or the chief financial officer thereof and which
resulted from an event that occurred while that person was acting in such capacity.

Bankruptcies
To the Company's knowledge, no existing or proposed director or executive officer of the Company or a
shareholder holding a sufficient number of securities of the Company to affect materially the control of
the Company:
(i)

is, as at the date of this Prospectus, or has been within the 10 years before the date
hereof, a director or executive officer of any company, including the Company, that, while
that person was acting in that capacity, or within a year of that person ceasing to act in
that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to
bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or
compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to
hold its assets; or

(ii)

has, within the 10 years before the date of this Prospectus, become bankrupt, made a
proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or became subject to
or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a
receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the director,
executive officer or shareholder.

Penalties or Sanctions
To the Company's knowledge, no existing or proposed director or executive officer of the Company or a
shareholder holding a sufficient number of securities of the Company to affect materially the control of
the Company, has been subject to:
(i)

any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to provincial and territorial
securities legislation or by a provincial and territorial securities regulatory authority or
has entered into a settlement with a provincial and territorial securities regulatory
authority; or
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(ii)

any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would be
likely to be considered important to a reasonable investor in making an investment
decision.
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis
In this section, "Named Executive Officer" means each of the following individuals:
(a)

the Company's chief executive officer, including an individual performing functions similar
to a chief executive officers (the "CEO");

(b)

the Company's chief financial officer, including an individual performing functions similar
to a chief financial officer (the "CFO");

(c)

the most highly compensated executive officer of the Company and its subsidiaries, other
than the CEO and CFO, at the end of the most recently completed financial year whose
total compensation was more than $150,000, as determined in accordance with
subsection 1.3(5) of Form 51-102F6V Statement of Executive Compensation – Venture
Issuers, for that financial year; and

(d)

each individual who would be a Named Executive Officer under paragraph (c) but for the
fact that the individual was not an executive officer of the Company and was not acting
in a similar capacity, at the end of that financial year.

The Company's Named Executive Officers for the purposes of this section are Dan Anglin, Dylan
Easterbrook and Frank Falconer (CEO, CFO and COO respectively).
The Company has not been a reporting issuer during any financial period to date. Future compensation
to be awarded or paid to the Company's directors and/or executive officers, including Named Executive
Officers, once the Company becomes a reporting issuer is expected to consist primarily of management
fees, stock options and bonuses. Payments may be made from time to time to executive officers, including
Named Executive Officers, or companies they control for the provision of consulting or management
services. Such services are paid for by the Company at competitive industry rates for work of a similar
nature by reputable arm's length services providers. Following the Listing Date, the Company expects to
pay fees for management services pursuant to the terms of the agreements summarized under "External
Management Companies" and "Employment, Consulting and Management Agreements" below. The
Company has granted incentive stock options to all of the Company's directors and management,
including Named Executive Officers, pursuant to the Stock Option Plan. The Board will from time to time
determine the stock option grants to be made pursuant to the Stock Option Plan after consultation with
the Company's compensation committee. See "Stock Option Plan" below and "Options to Purchase
Securities". In addition, it is anticipated that the Board may award bonuses, in its sole discretion, to
executive officers, including Named Executive Officers, from time to time after consultation with the
Company's compensation committee. See "Corporate Governance Disclosure – Compensation".
In assessing the compensation of its directors and executive officers, including the Named Executive
Officers, the Company does not have in place any formal objectives, criteria or analysis. Compensation
payable to executive officers and directors is currently reviewed and recommended by the Company's
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compensation committee, and ultimately approved by the Board, on an annual basis. See "Corporate
Governance Disclosure – Compensation". The Company has not established any specific performance
criteria or goals to which total compensation or any significant element of total compensation to be paid
to any Named Executive Officer is dependent. Named Executive Officers' performance is reviewed in light
of the Company's objectives from time to time and such officers' compensation is also compared to that
of executive officers of companies of similar size and stage of development in the cannabis industry.
Though the Company does not have pre-existing performance criteria, objectives or goals, it is anticipated
that, once the Company becomes a reporting issuer, the Company's compensation committee will review
all compensation arrangements and policies in place and consider recommending to the Board the
adoption of formal compensation guidelines.
Stock Option Plan
The Stock Option Plan is expected to be used to grant stock options to directors, officers (including Named
Executive Officers), employees and consultants of the Company, as additional compensation and as an
opportunity to participate in the success of the Company. The granting of such options is intended to
align the interests of such persons with that of the Company's shareholders.
In determining the number of options to be granted to directors or executive officers, including the Named
Executive Officers, the Board will take into account, among other things:
●

the number of options, if any, previously granted to each director or executive officer; and

●

the exercise price of any outstanding options to ensure that such grants are in accordance with
the policies of the CSE and closely align the interests of the directors and executive officers with
the interests of shareholders.

The independent members of the Board have the responsibility of administering the compensation
policies related to the directors and executive management of the Company, including option-based
awards.
The Stock Option Plan has not been approved by the shareholders of the Company. In accordance with
the policies of the CSE, after the Listing Date, the Company must obtain shareholder approval of its Stock
Option Plan on an annual basis at each annual general meeting of shareholders.
See "Options to Purchase Securities" for the material terms of the Stock Option Plan.
Employment, Consulting and Management Agreements
Dan Anglin has entered into an employment agreement with the Company dated May 30, 2018 which
outlines the terms and conditions under which Mr. Anglin provides services to the Company as its CEO.
Pursuant to the employment agreement, Mr. Anglin will be paid $150,000 per year. Mr. Anglin will be
reimbursed by the Company for any reasonable expenses. Mr. Anglin's employment may be terminated
at any time, with or without cause, by the Company. If the Company terminates the agreement without
cause, the Company will pay Mr. Anglin $75,000 on the termination date. If within 12 months following a
change of control, Mr. Anglin's employment agreement is terminated by the Company or by notice from
Mr Anglin, Mr. Anglin will receive a payment of $75,000.
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Frank Falconer has entered into an employment agreement with the Company dated May 30, 2018 which
outlines the terms and conditions under which Mr. Falconer provides services to the Company as its COO.
Pursuant to the employment agreement, Mr. Falconer will be paid a salary of $150,000 per year and will
be reimbursed by the Company for any reasonable expenses. Mr. Falconer's employment may be
terminated at any time, with or without cause, by the Company. If the Company terminates the agreement
without cause, the Company will pay Mr. Falconer $75,000 on the termination date. If within 12 months
following a change of control, Mr. Falconer's employment agreement is terminated by the Company or
by notice from Mr Falconer, Mr. Falconer will receive a payment of $75,000.
Dylan Easterbrook provides services to the Company under the Easterbrook Consulting Agreement as a
CFO. The current monthly fee payable to Easterbrook pursuant to the Easterbrook Consulting Agreement
is $5,000 plus taxes. The Company has granted 300,000 Options to Mr. Easterbrook and the Company will
pay for all reasonable expenses related to its advisory services, including all fees and disbursements of
Easterbrook's legal counsel, printing costs, filing fees. The Easterbrook Consulting Agreement may be
terminated by either party providing 60 days' written notice to the other party, and if so terminated, the
Company will pay all fees and reimbursable expenses incurred up to the date of termination. The
Easterbrook Consulting Agreement does not contain a specified term and will continue until terminated.
INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
No director or officer of the Company, or any associate or affiliate of such person is or has ever been
indebted to the Company; nor has any such person's indebtedness to any other entity been the subject
of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or similar arrangement or understanding provided by
the Company.
AUDIT COMMITTEE INFORMATION
Audit Committee Charter
The text of the Company's audit committee charter is attached as Schedule "C" hereto.
Composition of Audit Committee and Independence
The following are the members of the audit committee:
Russell Henderson, CPA/CA
(Chair)

Independent(1)

Financially literate(1)

Nitin Kaushal, CPA/CA

Independent(1)

Financially literate(1)

Jordan Crockett

Independent(1)

Financially literate(1)

(1)

As defined under National Instrument 52-110 Audit Committees ("NI 52-110").

Relevant Education and Experience
See "Management – Directors and Officers of the Company" concerning the education and experience of
each member of the Audit Committee relevant to the performance of their duties as a member of the
Audit Committee.
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Audit Committee Oversight
At no time has a recommendation of the Committee to nominate or compensate an external auditor not
been adopted by the Board.
Reliance on Certain Exemptions
Since the commencement of the Company's most recently completed financial year, the Company has not
relied on:
(a)

the exemption in section 2.4 (De Minimis Non-audit Services) of NI 52-110; or

(b)

the exemption in subsection 6.1.1(4) (Circumstance Affecting the Business or Operations
of the Venture Issuer) of NI 52-110; or

(c)

the exemption in subsection 6.1.1(5) (Events Outside Control of Member) of NI 52-110; or

(d)

the exemption in subsection 6.1.1(6) (Death, Incapacity or Resignation) of NI 52-110; or

(e)

an exemption from NI 52-110, in whole or in part, granted under Part 8 (Exemptions).

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures
The audit committee has not adopted any specific policies and procedures for the engagement of nonaudit services.
External Auditor Service Fees
The following table sets out the audit fees incurred by the Company since incorporation for audit fees are
as follows:
Period

Audit Fees

Audit Related Fees

Tax Fees

All Other Fees

Period from
incorporation on
March 13, 2017 to
March 31, 2018

$15,000

$0

$0

$0

Exemption
The Company is relying on the exemption in section 6.1 of NI 52-110 from the requirements of Parts 3
(Composition of the Audit Committee) and 5 (Reporting Obligations).
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURE
Board of Directors
The Company's Board consists of 5 directors, 3 of whom are independent based upon the tests for
independence set forth in NI 52-110. Nitin Kaushal, Jordan Crockett and Russell Henderson are
independent. Dan Anglin and Frank Falconer are not independent as they are executives of the Company.
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Directorships
The following director of the Company also serves as directors of other reporting issuers:
Name of Director
Nitin Kaushal

Other Reporting Issuers
Hashchain Technology Inc.
BLVD Centers Corporation
Viemed Healthcare Inc.
Valens Groworks Corporation
Delta 9 Cannabis Inc.

Name of Exchange or Market
TSXV
CSE
TSX
CSE
TSXV

Orientation and Continuing Education
The Company's corporate governance committee is responsible for, among other things, providing
suitable programs, with the assistance of management, for the orientation of new directors and the
continuing education of incumbent directors. Each new director is given an outline of the nature of the
Company's business, its corporate strategy, and current issues within the Company. New directors are
encouraged to review the Company's public disclosure records and are also required to meet with
management of the Company to discuss and better understand the Company's business and are given the
opportunity to meet with counsel to the Company to discuss their legal obligations as directors of the
Company.
Board members are encouraged to communicate with management, auditors and technical consultants;
to keep themselves current with industry trends and developments and changes in legislation with
management's assistance; and to attend related industry seminars and visit the Company's operations.
Board members have full access to the Company's records.
Ethical Business Conduct
The Board views good corporate governance as an integral component to the success of the Company and
to meet responsibilities to shareholders. The Board encourages and promotes an overall culture of ethical
business conduct by promoting compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations, providing
guidance to management to help them recognize and deal with ethical issues, promoting a culture of open
communication, honesty and accountability and ensuring awareness of disciplinary action for violations
of ethical business conduct. The Board has found that the fiduciary duties placed on individual directors
by the Company's governing corporate legislation and the common law and the restrictions placed by
applicable corporate legislation on an individual director's participation in decisions of the Board in which
the director has an interest have been sufficient to ensure that the Board operates in the best interests
of the Company.
Nomination of Directors
The Company does not have a stand-alone nomination committee. The Company's management team is
responsible for, among other things, identifying and recommending qualified candidates for appointment,
election and re-election to the Board and its committees. In recommending candidates to the Board,
management considers, among other factors and in the context of the needs of the Board, potential
conflicts of interest, professional experience, personal character, diversity, outside commitments and
particular areas of expertise. The Company's management is continually in contact with individuals
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involved with public sector issuers. From these sources, management has made numerous contacts and
if the Company requires any new directors, such individuals will be brought to the attention of the
Company's corporate governance committee. The Company conducts due diligence, reference and
background checks on any suitable candidate. New nominees must have a track record in general business
management, special expertise in an area of strategic interest to the Company, the ability to devote the
time required, integrity of character and a willingness to serve.
Compensation
The Board is responsible for, among other things, reviewing and shaping all compensation arrangements
for the executive officers and directors of the Company, including stock option grants.
To determine the recommended compensation payable, the Board will review compensation paid for
directors and executive officers of companies of similar size and stage of development in the cannabis
industry and determines an appropriate compensation reflecting the need to provide incentive and
compensation for the time and effort expended by the directors and executive officers while taking into
account the financial and other resources of the Company.
In setting the compensation, the Board will annually review the performance of the executive officers in
light of the Company's objectives and consider other factors that may have impacted the success of the
Company in achieving its objectives. For further information regarding the how the Company determines
compensation for its directors and executive officers, see "Executive Compensation".
Other Board Committees
As the directors are actively involved in the operations of the Company and the size of the Company's
operations does not warrant a larger board of directors, the Board has determined that additional
committees are not necessary at this stage of the Company's development.
Assessments
The Board does not consider that formal assessments would be useful at this stage of the Company's
development. The Board conducts informal annual assessments of the Board's effectiveness, the
individual directors. The contributions of an individual director is informally monitored by the other Board
members, having in mind the business and other strengths of the individual and the purpose of originally
nominating the individual to the Board.
To assist the Board in its assessment, the Board may receive reports from the Company's corporate
governance committee regarding its assessment of the functioning of the Board and reports from each
committee respecting its own effectiveness. As part of the assessments, the Board or the individual
committee may review their respective mandate or charter and conduct reviews of applicable corporate
policies.
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION
This prospectus is being filed in the province of British Columbia to qualify the distribution of Shares. The
Company intends to apply to list the Shares on the CSE. The listing of the Shares will be subject to the
Company fulfilling all of the listing requirements of the CSE, which cannot be guaranteed.
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This Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any of the securities
offered hereby within the U.S. or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. Persons (as defined in Regulation
S under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “U.S. Securities Act”). None of the
Shares have been or will be registered under the U.S. Securities Act, or the securities laws of any state of
the U.S. and may not be offered or sold within the U.S. or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. Persons,
except in transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and applicable
state securities laws.
PROMOTERS
Dan Anglin and Frank Falconer both took the initiative in founding the Company and, accordingly, may be
considered a promoter of the Company within the meaning of applicable securities legislation in British
Columbia.
Dan Anglin beneficially owns or controls, directly or indirectly, an aggregate of 2,750,000 Shares and has
been granted incentive stock options to purchase 1,000,000 Shares at an exercise price of $0.30 per Share
until May 30, 2023 pursuant to the Company's stock option plan. Mr. Anglin also has been granted
warrants to purchase 1,250,000 shares for $0.50 per share which expire 2 years following a public listing
of the Company.
Frank Falconer beneficially owns or controls, directly or indirectly, an aggregate of 2,750,000 Shares and
has been granted incentive stock options to purchase 1,000,000 Shares at an exercise price of $0.30 per
Share until May 30, 2023 pursuant to the Company's stock option plan. Mr. Falconer also has been granted
warrants to purchase 1,250,000 shares for $0.50 per share which expire 2 years following a public listing
of the Company.
See "Options to Purchase Securities"; "Directors and Executive Officers"; "Executive Compensation";
"Interests of Management and Others in Material Transactions" and "Reorganizations and Significant
Acquisitions" for disclosure regarding the Company's promoters.
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS
Legal Proceedings
There are no legal proceedings outstanding, threatened or pending as of the date of this Prospectus by or
against the Company or to which it is a party or its business or any of its assets is the subject of, nor to the
knowledge of the directors and officers of the Company are any such legal proceedings contemplated
which could become material to a purchaser of the Company's securities.
Regulatory Actions
There have not been any penalties or sanctions imposed against the Company by a court relating to
provincial or territorial securities legislation or by a securities regulatory authority, nor have there been
any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body against the Company, and the
Company has not entered into any settlement agreements before a court relating to provincial or
territorial securities legislation or with a securities regulatory authority.
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INTERESTS OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS
Except as disclosed below and elsewhere in this Prospectus, no director, executive officer or principal
shareholder of the Company, or associate or affiliate of any of the foregoing, has had any material interest,
direct or indirect, in any transaction within the preceding three years or in any proposed transaction that
has materially affected or will materially affect the Company.
See "Description of the Business", "Escrowed Securities and Securities Subject to Contractual Restriction
on Transfer", "Principal Shareholders", "Directors and Executive Officers", "Executive Compensation" and
"Material Contracts".
AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRARS
The auditor of the Company is Dale Matheson Carr-Hilton Labonte LLP ("DMCL") of Vancouver, British
Columbia. DMCL is independent of the Company within the meaning of the Code of Professional Conduct
of Chartered Professional Accountants of British Columbia. DMCL was first appointed as auditor of the
Company on April 30, 2018.
The transfer agent and registrar for the Shares is National Issuer Services Ltd. at its principal office at 760777 Hornby Street, Vancouver, British Columbia.
MATERIAL CONTRACTS
Other than contracts made in the ordinary course of business, the following are the only material
contracts entered into by the Company since its incorporation:
1. Escrow Agreement;
2. Stock Option Plan dated May 30, 2018 and approved by the Board of Directors;
3. Equity Purchase Agreement dated May 18, 2018 among Dan Anglin, Frank Falconer, 1144578 BC
Ltd. and Transform Capital Corp.; and
4. Share Exchange Agreement dated May 30, 2018 among Transform Capital Corp., 1144578 BC Ltd.
and the shareholders of 1144578 BC Ltd.
Copies of the material contracts will be available under the Company's profile at www.sedar.com upon
the issuance of the final receipt for this Prospectus. Particulars regarding the material contracts are
disclosed elsewhere in this Prospectus (see "Plan of Distribution"; "Escrowed Securities and Securities
Subject to Contractual Restriction on Transfer").
EXPERTS
No person whose profession or business gives authority to a statement made by such person and who is
named in this Prospectus has received or will receive a direct or indirect interest in the Company's
property or any associate or affiliate of the Company. As at the date hereof, none of the aforementioned
persons beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, securities of the Company or its associates and affiliates.
In addition, none of the aforementioned persons nor any director, officer or employee of any of the
aforementioned persons, is or is expected to be elected, appointed or employed as, a director, senior
officer or employee of the Company or of an associate or affiliate of the Company, or as a promoter of
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the Company or an associate or affiliate of the Company.
The Company's auditor, Dale Matheson Carr-Hilton Labonte, is independent in accordance with the
auditor's rules of professional conduct in the Province of British Columbia.
ENFORCEMENT OF JUDGMENTS AGAINST FOREIGN PERSONS
Dan Anglin, CEO and a Director and Frank Falconer, COO and a Director, each of whom is signing the
certificate of the Company attached to this Prospectus under Part 5 of National Instrument 41-101 –
General Prospectus Requirements, reside outside of Canada and each has appointed the Company as his
agent for service of process in Canada. These individuals and company, named below, have appointed
the following agent for service of process:
Name of Person or Company

Name and Address of Agent

Dan Anglin

CannAmerica Brands Corp. at its registered and records
office of, 10th Floor, 595 Howe Street, Vancouver, British
Columbia, V6C 2T5

Frank Falconer

CannAmerica Brands Corp. at its registered and records
office of, 10th Floor, 595 Howe Street, Vancouver, British
Columbia, V6C 2T5

It may not be possible for investors to enforce judgments obtained in Canada against any person or
company that is incorporated, continued or otherwise organized under the laws of a foreign jurisdiction
or resides outside of Canada, even if the party has appointed an agent for service of process.
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCLOSURE
Schedule A includes the following financial statements:
1.
2.
3.
4.

CannAmerica Brands Corp. for the period from incorporation on March 13, 2017 to March 31,
2017 and for the year ended March 31, 2018; and
CannAmerica Holdings Corp. for the period from incorporation on December 11, 2017 to March
31, 2018; and
DAFF International LLC. for the period from incorporation on September 12, 2016 to March 31,
2017 and for the year ended March 31, 2018; and
CannAmerica Brands Corp. for the quarter ended June 30, 2018.

The corresponding MD&A for each of the company financial statements listed above is included as
Schedule "B" to this Prospectus.
See also "Management's Discussion and Analysis".
RIGHTS OF WITHDRAWAL AND RESCISSION
Securities legislation in certain of the provinces of Canada provides purchasers with the right to withdraw
from an agreement to purchase securities. This right may be exercised within two business days after
receipt or deemed receipt of a prospectus and any amendment. In several of the provinces, the securities
legislation further provides a purchaser with remedies for rescission or, in some jurisdictions, damages if
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the prospectus and any amendment contains a misrepresentation or is not delivered to the purchaser,
provided that the remedies for rescission or damages are exercised by the purchaser within the time limit
prescribed by the securities legislation of the purchaser's province. The purchaser should refer to any
applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser's province for the particulars of these
rights or consult with a legal advisor.

SCHEDULE "A"
CANNAMERICA BRANDS CORP.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[See attached]

CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of CannAmerica Brands Corp. (formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CannAmerica Brands Corp., which comprise the
statements of financial position as at March 31, 2018 and 2017, and the statements of comprehensive loss,
changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018 and for the period from
incorporation on March 13, 2017 to March 31, 2017, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
CannAmerica Brands Corp. as at March 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

DALE MATHESON CARR-HILTON LABONTE LLP
CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANT
Vancouver, Canada
October 9, 2018

CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Statement of Financial Position
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
March 31,
2018

ASSETS
Current
Cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Other payables (Note 3)

$

$

$

1,341,202
5,000
35,000
1,381,202

$

1
1

$

33,751

$

-

Shareholders' equity
Share capital (Note 3)
Deficit
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

March 31,
2017

1
1

1,348,501
(1,050)
1,347,451
$

1,381,202

Subsequent event (Note 7)
These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on October 9, 2018:
“Michael Kriznic”
Michael Kriznic, Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

$

1

CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Statement of Comprehensive Loss
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
Period from
incorporation on
March 13, 2017 to
March 31, 2017

Year Ended
March 31,
2018
Expenses
Bank charges
Comprehensive loss for the period

$
$

1,050
(1,050)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

$
$

-

CANNAMERICA BRANDS CORP.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
Share Capital
Number
Amount
Balance – March 13, 2017 (Incorporation)
Seed share issued
Loss for the period
Balance – March 31, 2017
Shares issued for cash
Cancellation of shares
Issuance of special warrants
Conversion of special warrants
Share issuance costs
Loss for the period
Balance – March 31, 2018

1
1
35,860,000
(35,560,000)
7,060,000
7,360,001

$

1
1
208,750
(207,250)
1,412,000
(65,000)
$ 1,348,501

Reserve
Warrant
$

-

$

1,412,000
(1,412,000)
-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Deficit
$

$

(1,050)
(1,050)

Total
$

1
1
208,750
(207,250)
1,412,000
(65,000)
(1,050)
$ 1,347,451

CANNAMERICA BRANDS CORP.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Statement of Cash Flows
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

Year ended
March 31, 2018
Operating activities:
Loss for the period
Item not affecting cash:
Changes in non-cash working capital items:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Cash flows used in operating activities

$

Financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of shares, net of share issuance costs
Cash flows provided by financing activities
Change in cash
Cash, beginning of period
Cash, end of period

$

Period from
incorporation on
March 13, 2017 to
March 31,2017

(1,050)

$

-

(5,000)
(35,000)
(41,050)

-

1,348,251
1,382,251

1
1

1,341,201
1
1,341,202

1
1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

$

CANNAMERICA BRANDS CORP.
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

1.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN

CannAmerica Brands Corp. (the “Company” or “CannAmerica Brands”) was incorporated in the Province of British
Columbia on March 13, 2017, under the Business Corporations Act of British Columbia. The Company’s head office
is located at 10th Floor 595 Howe St., Vancouver, BC, V6C 2T5.
The Company was formed for the primary purpose of completing a Public Listing (“Listing”) on the Canadian
Securities Exchange (the “Exchange”). The Company’s primary business would be to identify, evaluate and acquire
assets, properties or businesses for the Listing.
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company will continue as a going concern. The
proposed business of the Company and the completion of a Listing involves a high degree of risk and there is no
assurance that the Company will identify an appropriate business for acquisition or investment, and even if so
identified and warranted, it may not be able to finance such an acquisition or investment within the requisite time
period. Additional funds may be required to enable the Company to pursue such an initiative and the Company may
be unable to obtain such financing on terms which are satisfactory to it. Furthermore, there is no assurance that the
business will be profitable. These factors indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and interpretations of the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”).
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis. The financial statements are presented in Canadian
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on October 9, 2018.
Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect reported amounts and presentation of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and disclosures
of contingencies and commitments.
Financial instruments
The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale and financial liabilities. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
financial instruments at initial recognition.
Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss when they are either held for trading for the purpose
of short-term profit taking, derivatives not held for hedging purposes, or when they are designated as such to avoid an
accounting mismatch or to enable performance evaluation where a group of financial assets is managed by key
management personnel on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.
Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in carrying value being included in profit or loss.
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and are subsequently measured at amortized cost. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets.

CANNAMERICA BRANDS CORP.
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable
payments, and it is the Company’s intention to hold these investments to maturity. They are subsequently measured
at amortized cost. Held-to-maturity investments are included in non-current assets, except for those which are expected
to mature within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are
not suitable to be classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-tomaturity investments and are subsequently measured at fair value. These are included in current assets to the extent
they are expected to be realized within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Unrealized gains and losses
are recognized in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses
on monetary financial assets.
Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at amortized cost.
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade-date, the date on which the group commits
to purchase the asset. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has been
impaired. In the case of available-for-sale financial instruments, a significant and prolonged decline in the value of
the instrument is considered to determine whether an impairment has arisen.
Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount of the
obligation can be reliably estimated. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.
Income taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the statement of income except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case the income tax is also recognized directly in
equity.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted, or substantively
enacted, at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
In general, deferred tax is recognized for unused tax losses and temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined on
a non–discounted basis using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset or liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that the assets can be recovered.

CANNAMERICA BRANDS CORP.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounting standards issued but not yet effective
The Company has reviewed new and revised accounting pronouncements that have been issued but are not yet
effective.
New standard IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
This new standard is a partial replacement of IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. IFRS
9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets, additional changes relating
to financial liabilities, a new general hedge accounting standard which will align hedge accounting more closely with
risk management. The new standard also requires a single impairment method to be used, replacing the multiple
impairment methods in IAS 39. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with
early adoption permitted. Overall, the Company does not expect the implementation of IFRS 9 to have a significant
impact on its financial assets.
New standard IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
This new standard contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers and two approaches to recognizing
revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model features a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions to
determine whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. New estimates and judgmental thresholds have been
introduced, which may affect the amount and/or timing of revenue recognized. IFRS 15 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted. Overall, the Company does not expect the
implementation of IFRS 15 to have a significant impact on its revenue.
New standard IFRS 16 “Leases”
This new standard replaces IAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretative guidance. IFRS 16 applies a control model
to the identification of leases, distinguishing between a lease and a service contract on the basis of whether the
customer controls the asset being leased. For those assets determined to meet the definition of a lease, IFRS 16
introduces significant changes to the accounting by lessees, introducing a single, on-balance sheet accounting model
that is similar to current finance lease accounting, with limited exceptions for short-term leases or leases of low value
assets. Lessor accounting is not substantially changed. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2019, with early adoption permitted for entities that have adopted IFRS 15. Overall, the Company
does not expect the implementation of IFRS 16 to have a significant impact on its assets or liabilities.
3.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized: Unlimited number of common shares without par value.
Issued share capital
On April 10, 2017 the Company completed a private placement with gross proceeds of $25,000 by issuing 5,000,000
units of the Company at the price of $0.005 per unit. Each unit consisted of one common share and one common share
purchase warrant, with each share purchase warrant being exercisable into one common share of the Company at
$0.10 per warrant for a period of 18 months. Subsequent to closing of the private placement 5,000,000 common shares
and 5,000,000 warrants were returned to treasury and cancelled. As at March 31, 2018 the Company owes $23,500
to subscribers included in other payables in relation to the cancellation of these shares.
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3.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Issued share capital
On May 5, 2017 the Company completed a private placement with gross proceeds of $175,002 by issuing 11,750,000
units. Each unit consisted of one common share and one common share purchase warrant, with each share purchase
warrant being exercisable into one common share of the Company at $0.10 per warrant for a period of 18 months. The
value assigned to these warrants was $nil. Subsequent to closing of the private placement 11,750,000 common shares
and 11,750,000 warrants were returned to treasury and cancelled. As at March 31, 2018 the Company owes $1,501 to
subscribers included in other payable in relation to the cancellation of these shares.
On November 28, 2017 the Company completed a private placement with gross proceeds of $60,250 by issuing
12,050,000 common shares. Subsequent to closing of this private placement, 11,750,000 common shares were
returned to treasury and cancelled. As at March 31, 2018 the Company owes $8,750 to subscribers included in other
payable in relation to the cancellation.
During the period ended March 31, 2017, the Company issued 1 seed share for proceeds of $1.
Special warrants
On November 28, 2017 the Company issued 7,060,000 special warrants at a price of $0.20 per warrant for gross
proceeds of $1,412,000. On March 30, 2018 the special warrants were automatically converted to 7,060,000 common
shares of the Company per the terms of the warrants.

4.

MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order
to pursue its operations and to maintain a flexible capital structure, which optimizes the costs of capital at an acceptable
risk. The Company considers its capital for this purpose to be its shareholders’ equity.
The Company’s primary source of capital is through the issuance of equity. The Company manages and adjusts its
capital structure when changes in economic conditions occur. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company
may seek additional funding. The Company may require additional capital resources to meet its administrative
overhead expenses in the long term. The Company believes it will be able to raise capital as required in the long term,
but recognizes there will be risks involved that may be beyond its control. There are no external restrictions on the
management of capital.
5.

Financial Instruments and Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is on its cash held with Bank of Montreal. The carrying amounts
represents the maximum credit exposure.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will incur difficulties meeting its financial obligations as they are due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions without incurring unacceptable losses or risking harm to
the Company’s reputation. The Company has working capital of $1,347,451 as at March 31, 2018.
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Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. The
Company has determined there is no material exposure related to interest rate risk.
Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company has determined there is no material exposure related to foreign exchange risk.

6.

INCOME TAXES

The components of the Company’s income taxes are as follows:
March 31, 2018
Net loss for the period
Statutory income tax rate
Income tax benefit computed at the statutory tax rate
Unrecognized benefit from income tax losses
Income tax recovery

$

$

(1,050)
26%
(273)
273
-

March 31, 2017
$

$

26%
-

As at March 31, 2018, the Company has approximately $273 in non-capital losses. These losses expire in 2038.
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7.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2018 the Company commenced a private placement which has yet to close
on the reporting date of these financial statements. Gross proceeds raised as of May 30, 2018 totaled $2,267,000
through the issuance of 7,156,664 common shares at a price of $0.30 per common share.
On May 30, 2018 (the “Agreement Date”), the Company entered into an agreement with the members of CannAmerica
Holdings Corp (“CannAmerica Holdings) to acquire 100% of the shares of CannAmerica Holdings (the
“Acquisition”).





issuance of 29,166,000 common shares of the Company to shareholders of CannAmerica Holdings;
contingent share consideration of 2,833,334 common shares of the Company to the CEO and COO of
CannAmerica Holdings conditional to attaining certain earnings targets;
issuance of 3,000,0000 warrants of the Company to the CEO and COO exercisable at $0.50 per share for a
period of 24 months following the closing of a Public Listing of the Company (the “Public Listing”); and
Subsequent to the closing of the Acquisition, CannAmerica Holdings subsidiary had a carrying balance of
US$2,750,000 payable to various creditors (“Notes Payable”). The Company has agreed to advance funds to
pay down the Notes Payable based on the following terms:
o if the Company has not has completed its Public Listing within 150 days of the Agreement Date,
the entire Note Payable is payable. Otherwise, the entire Note Payable is payable 13 months from
the date of the Public Listing;
o if the Company has completed a financing post Public Listing of more than US$5,000,000, the
balance of the Note Payable would be payable; and
o if the Company has completed its Public Listing, 50% of any financing post Public Listing will be
advanced to pay down the Note Payable if less than US$5,000,00.

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.
(formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Director of CannAmerica Holdings Corp. (formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CannAmerica Holdings Corp., which comprise the
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2018 and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the period from incorporation on December 11, 2017 to March 31, 2018,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
CannAmerica Holdings Corp. as at March 31, 2018 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the period
from December 11, 2017 to March 31, 2018 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Emphasis of Matter
Without qualify our opinion we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which describes certain
conditions that indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about CannAmerica
Holdings Corp.’s ability to continue as a going concern.

DALE MATHESON CARR-HILTON LABONTE LLP
CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
Vancouver, Canada
October 9, 2018

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.
(formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
Statement of Financial Position
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
March 31, 2018

ASSETS
Other receivables (Note 3)
Due from related party
TOTAL ASSETS

$
$

110,000
1
110,001

Shareholders' equity
Share capital (Note 3)

$

110,001

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

$

110,001

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Subsequent event (Note 6)
These financial statements were approved by the Director on October 9 2018:
“Jordan Crokett”
Jordan Crokett, Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.
(formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
Statement of Comprehensive Income
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

Period from
incorporation on
December 11, 2017 to
March 31, 2018
Expenses
Comprehensive income for the period

$
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

-

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.
(formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
Share capital
Number

Amount

Retained
Earnings

Balance – December 11, 2017 (Incorporation)
Seed shares issued
Issuance of common shares
Income for the period

1
110
-

$

1
110,000
-

-

Balance – March 31, 2018

111

$ 110,001

-

Total
$

1
110,000
-

$

110,001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.
(formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
Statement of Cash Flows
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
Period from
incorporation on
December 11, 2017 to
March 31, 2018
Operating activities:
Loss for the period

$

-

Item not affecting cash:
Changes in non-cash working capital items:
Due from related party
Other receivables
Cash flows used in operating activities

(1)
(110,000)
(110,001)

Financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of shares
Cash flows provided by financing activities

110,001
110,001

Change in cash

-

Cash, beginning of period

-

Cash, end of period

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

-

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.
(formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from incorporation on December 11, 2017 to March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
1.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN

CannAmerica Holdings Corp. (formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.) (The “Company” or “CannAmerica
Holdings”) was incorporated in the Province of British Columbia on December 11, 2017, under
the Business Corporations Act of British Columbia. The Company’s head office is located at 10th
floor, 595 Howe Street, Vancouver, BC, V6C 2T5.
The Company was formed to identify an appropriate business for acquisition or investment. These
financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company will continue as a going
concern which assume that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities
in the normal course of business for foreseeable future. These financial statements do not include
any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of liabilities that might be
necessary should the Company to continue as a going concern.
2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC”). The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis.
The financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Company’s functional
currency.
The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors October 9, 2018.
Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts and presentation of assets,
liabilities, revenues, expenses and disclosures of contingencies and commitments.

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.
(formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from incorporation on December 11, 2017 to March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments
The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale and financial
liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial
recognition.
Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss when they are either held for
trading for the purpose of short-term profit taking, derivatives not held for hedging purposes, or
when they are designated as such to avoid an accounting mismatch or to enable performance
evaluation where a group of financial assets is managed by key management personnel on a fair
value basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy. Such assets
are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in carrying value being included in profit or
loss.
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortized cost. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets.
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed maturities and
fixed or determinable payments, and it is the Company’s intention to hold these investments to
maturity. They are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Held-to-maturity investments are
included in non-current assets, except for those which are expected to mature within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not suitable to be classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments and are subsequently measured at
fair value. These are included in current assets to the extent they are expected to be realized within
12 months after the end of the reporting period. Unrealized gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses on
monetary financial assets.
Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at
amortized cost. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade-date,
the date on which the group commits to purchase the asset.

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.
(formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from incorporation on December 11, 2017 to March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial
instrument has been impaired. In the case of available-for-sale financial instruments, a significant
and prolonged decline in the value of the instrument is considered to determine whether an
impairment has arisen.
As of March 31, 2018, the Company has no financial assets and financial liabilities.
Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of the approval of the financial statements, a number of standards and interpretations
were in issue but not yet effective. The Company considers that these new standards and
interpretations are either not applicable or are not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
3.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized: Unlimited number of common shares without par value.
Issued share capital
During the period ended March 31, 2018, the Company issued 111 for total proceeds of $110, 001.
As at March 31, 2018, the proceeds were received but were held until such a time the Company
opens a bank account.

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.
(formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from incorporation on December 11, 2017 to March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
4.

MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a
going concern in order to pursue its operations and to maintain a flexible capital structure, which
optimizes the costs of capital at an acceptable risk. The Company considers its capital for this
purpose to be its shareholders’ equity.
The Company’s primary source of capital is through the issuance of equity. The Company manages
and adjusts its capital structure when changes in economic conditions occur. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may seek additional funding. The Company may require
additional capital resources to meet its administrative overhead expenses in the long term. The
Company believes it will be able to raise capital as required in the long term, but recognizes there
will be risks involved that may be beyond its control. There are no external restrictions on the
management of capital.
5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk, and foreign currency risk.
Risk management is carried out by the Company’s management team with guidance and policies
approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors also provides regular guidance for
overall risk management.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfil its payment
obligations. As of March 31, 2018, the Company is not exposed to any credit risk.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will incur difficulties meeting its financial obligations
as they are due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions. As of March 31, 2018, the Company is not exposed to any liquidity risk.

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.
(formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from incorporation on December 11, 2017 to March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
6.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Acquisition of DAFF International, LLC
On May 18, 2018 (the “Agreement Date”), the Company entered into an agreement with the
members of DAFF International, LLC (“DAFF”) to acquire 100% of the membership interest in
DAFF (the “Acquisition”).
The following consideration is required in connection with the transaction:
• cash on closing of US$1,750,000 to the creditors of DAFF as a partial settlement of
DAFF’s debts;
• cash on closing of US$250,000 to DAFF for working capital purposes;
• issuance of an aggregate of 35.83 common shares of the Company to the members of
DAFF;
• issuance of 15.00 common share purchase warrants of the Company to the members of
DAFF;
• issuance of 14.17 common share purchase warrants of the Company to the members of
DAFF conditional upon attaining certain targets; and
• DAFF agrees to repay the remaining payables of US$2,750,000 (“Note Payable”) as
follows:
o Within 150 days of the Agreement Date if the Company does not complete a merger
with a publicly listed company;
o 13 months from the date the Company completes a merger with a publicly listed
company;
o if the publicly listed company has completed a financing post public listing of more
than US$5,000,000, the entire balance is due; and
o if a publicly listed company has completed its public listing, 50% of any financing
post public listing if less than US$5,000,00 will pay down the outstanding
US$2,750,000.
Acquisition by CannAmerica Brands Corp
On May 30, 2018 (the “Agreement Date”), CannAmerica Brands Corp (“CannAmerica Brands”)
entered into an agreement with the Company to acquire 100% of the shares of the Company (the
“Acquisition”).
•
•
•

issuance of 29,166,000 common shares of CannAmerica Brands to shareholders of the
Company;
contingent share consideration of 2,833,334 common shares of CannAmerica Brands to the
CEO and COO of the Company conditional to attaining certain earnings targets;
issuance of 3,000,0000 warrants of CannAmerica Brands to the CEO and COO of the

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.
(formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
Notes to the financial statements
For the period from incorporation on December 11, 2017 to March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

•

Company exercisable at $0.50 per share for a period of 24 months following the closing of
a Public Listing of CannAmerica Brands (the “Public Listing”); and
Subsequent to the closing of the Acquisition, the Company subsidiary had a carrying
balance of US$2,750,000 payable to various creditors (“Notes Payable”). CannAmerica
Brands has agreed to advance funds to pay down the Notes Payable based on the following
terms:
o if CannAmerica Brands has not has completed its Public Listing within 150 days
of the Agreement Date, the entire Note Payable is payable. Otherwise, the entire
Note Payable is payable 13 months from the date of the Public Listing;
o if CannAmerica Brands has completed a financing post Public Listing of more than
US$5,000,000, the balance of the Note Payable would be payable; and
o if CannAmerica Brands has completed its Public Listing, 50% of any financing post
Public Listing will be advanced to pay down the Note Payable if less than
US$5,000,00.

DAFF International LLC

(formerly CannAmerica LLC)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Directors of DAFF International LLC (formerly CannAmerica LLC)
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DAFF International LLC, which comprise the statements
of financial position as at March 31, 2018 and 2017, and the statements of comprehensive loss, change in
members’ deficiency and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018 and from the period of incorporation
on September 12, 2016 to March 31, 2017, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of DAFF
International LLC as at March 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
ended March 31, 2018 and from the period of incorporation on September 12, 2016 to March 31, 2017 in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which describe certain
conditions that indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

DALE MATHESON CARR-HILTON LABONTE LLP
CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
Vancouver, Canada
October 9, 2018

DAFF International LLC
(Formerly CannAmerica LLC)
Statements of Financial Position
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
As at
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade receivable
Due from related parties (Note 10)

March 31, 2018

$

Investment in licensee
Intangible assets (Note 7)
TOTAL ASSETS

59,458
168,333
227,791

54,537
5,669,796
$ 5,951,960

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 8)
Notes payable (Note 9)

$

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Notes payable (Note 9)
TOTAL LIABILITIES
MEMBERS’ DEFICIENCY
Members’ interest
Deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
TOTAL MEMBERS’ DEFICIENCY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY

390,112
837,583
1,227,695

$

1
-

1

$

$

-

4,820,044
6,047,739

-

1
(94,095)
(1,685)
(95,779)
$ 5,951,960

1
1
1

Subsequent event (Note 15)
Approved by the Board
“Dan Anglin”

“Frank Falconer”

Director

Director

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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March 31, 2017

$

DAFF International LLC.
(Formerly CannAmerica LLC)
Statements of Comprehensive Loss
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

Year ended
March 31,
2018
Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross Profit

$

Operating expenses
Advertising and promotion
Office and administrative
Salaries and benefits (Note 10)
Professional fees

Other items
Interest expense (Note 9)
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss
Foreign currency translation
Comprehensive loss for the period

$

335,572
(71,874)
263,698

Period from
incorporation on
September 12,
2016 to March
31, 2017
$

-

20,255
1,157
202,756
18,989
(243,157)

-

(114,636)
(94,095)

-

(1,685)
(95,780)

$

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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DAFF International LLC
(Formerly CannAmerica LLC)
Statements of Change to Members’ Deficiency
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

Balance, September 12, 2016 (incorporation)
Issuance of members’ interest
Net income for the period
Balance, March 31, 2017
Net loss for the period
Other comprehensive income
Balance, March 31, 2018

$

$

Members’ interest
1
1
1

$

$

Retained
Earnings
(94,095)
(94,095)

$

$

Accumulated
other comprehensive
income
(1,685)
(1,685)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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$

$

Total members' equity
1
1
(94,095)
(1,685)
(95,779)

DAFF International LLC.
(Formerly CannAmerica LLC)
Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
Period from
incorporation on
September 12,
2016 to March 31,
2017

Year ended
March 31,
2018
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss for the period
Non-cash items:
Interest expense

$

(94,095)

$

-

114,636

Net changes in non-cash working capital items:
Trade receivables
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due from related parties
Cash used in operating activities
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash
Change in cash
Cash, beginning of the period
Cash, end of the period

$

(59,458)
78,021
(39,473)
(369)
369

-

-

-

Supplemental disclosure with respect to cash flows – note 12

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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DAFF International LLC. (Formerly CannAmerica LLC)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
1.

Nature of operations

DAFF International LLC (The "Company" or “DAFF”) is a Limited Liability Corporation engaged in licensing brands and
intellectual property with manufacturers and retailers in the cannabis space. The Company was incorporated in the
State of Colorado (“CO”), USA on September 12, 2016 and its head office is located at 642 Split Rock Drive, Loveland,
Colorado, 80537.
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company will continue as a going concern
which assume that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business for foreseeable future. These financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company to continue as a going
concern.
The proposed business of the Company and the completion of a listing on the Canadian Securities Exchange involves
a high degree of risk. Additional funds may be required to enable the Company to pursue its initiatives and the
Company may be unable to obtain such financing on satisfactory terms. Furthermore, there is no assurance that the
business will be profitable. These factors indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
2.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and interpretations issued by the
International Reporting Interpretation Committee (“IFRIC”) for all periods presented.
These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on October 9, 2018.
Basis of Presentation
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, modified where applicable. In addition,
these financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, except for cash flow
information.
The functional currency as determined by management of the Company is the United States Dollar (“USD”), as this
is the principal currency of the economic environment in which it operates. The presentation currency is the
Canadian Dollar.
3.

Significant accounting policies

Financial instruments
The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale and financial liabilities. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
financial instruments at initial recognition.
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DAFF International LLC. (Formerly CannAmerica LLC)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
3.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss when they are either held for trading for the purpose
of short-term profit taking, derivatives not held for hedging purposes, or when they are designated as such to avoid
an accounting mismatch or to enable performance evaluation where a group of financial assets is managed by key
management personnel on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in carrying value being included in profit
or loss.
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortized cost. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current
assets.
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments, and it is the Company’s intention to hold these investments to maturity. They are
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Held-to-maturity investments are included in non-current assets, except
for those which are expected to mature within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are
not suitable to be classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-tomaturity investments and are subsequently measured at fair value. These are included in current assets to the extent
they are expected to be realized within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Unrealized gains and losses
are recognized in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses
on monetary financial assets.
Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at amortized cost.
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade-date, the date on which the group
commits to purchase the asset.
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. At each
reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has been
impaired. In the case of available-for-sale financial instruments, a significant and prolonged decline in the value of
the instrument is considered to determine whether an impairment has arisen.
Intangible assets
The intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are comprised of the portfolio of cannabis brand. The intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

8

DAFF International LLC. (Formerly CannAmerica LLC)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
3.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of long-lived assets
Long-lived assets, including intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each statement of financial position
date or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the cash-generating unit, or "CGU"). The
recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is the higher of its fair value, less costs to sell, and its value in use. If the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment charge is recognized immediately in
profit or loss by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount. Where an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lesser of the revised
estimate of recoverable amount, and the carrying amount that would have been recorded had no impairment loss
been recognized previously.
Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount of the
obligation can be reliably estimated. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.
Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized directly in equity. Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for amendments to tax payable
with regards to previous years.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized on temporary differences, between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Temporary differences
are not provided for amounts relating to goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that do not affect either accounting or taxable loss, or differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based
on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.
A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized. To the extent that the Company does not consider it probable that a deferred
tax asset will be recovered, it is not recorded.
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DAFF International LLC. (Formerly CannAmerica LLC)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
3.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition
The Company licenses its intellectual property, brands and products to customers. The Company charges a fixed fee
per unit shipped and revenue is recognized when the goods are shipped. Revenue excludes sales tax and is recorded
net of discounts and an allowance for estimated returns unless the terms of the sale are final.
Cost of sales
Cost of sales includes the expenses incurred to acquire and produce inventory for sale, including product costs,
inbound freight and duty costs, as well as provisions related to product shrinkage, excess or obsolete inventory, or
lower of cost and net realizable value adjustments as required.
Selling and marketing costs
Selling and marketing costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs include expenses associated with sales, sample
expenses and consulting expenses in relation to marketing.
Foreign currency translation
Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date
of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the period-end exchange rate. Non-monetary
items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Nonmonetary items measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were
determined.
Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items or on settlement of monetary items are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise, except where deferred in
equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge.
Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognized in other comprehensive
income in to the extent that gains and losses arising on those non-monetary items are also recognized in other
comprehensive income.
Standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The Company has reviewed new and revised accounting pronouncements that have been issued but are not yet
effective.
New standard IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
This new standard is a partial replacement of IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. IFRS 9
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets, additional changes relating
to financial liabilities, a new general hedge accounting standard which will align hedge accounting more closely with
risk management. The new standard also requires a single impairment method to be used, replacing the multiple
impairment methods in IAS 39. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early
adoption permitted. Overall, the Company does not expect the implementation of IFRS 9 to have a significant impact
on its financial assets.
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DAFF International LLC. (Formerly CannAmerica LLC)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
3.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)
New standard IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
This new standard contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers and two approaches to
recognizing revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model features a contract-based five-step analysis of
transactions to determine whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. New estimates and judgmental
thresholds have been introduced, which may affect the amount and/or timing of revenue recognized. IFRS 15 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted. Overall, the
Company does not expect the implementation of IFRS 15 to have a significant impact on its revenue.
New standard IFRS 16 “Leases”
This new standard replaces IAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretative guidance. IFRS 16 applies a control model
to the identification of leases, distinguishing between a lease and a service contract on the basis of whether the
customer controls the asset being leased. For those assets determined to meet the definition of a lease, IFRS 16
introduces significant changes to the accounting by lessees, introducing a single, on-balance sheet accounting model
that is similar to current finance lease accounting, with limited exceptions for short-term leases or leases of low
value assets. Lessor accounting is not substantially changed. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2019, with early adoption permitted for entities that have adopted IFRS 15. Overall, the
Company does not expect the implementation of IFRS 16 to have a significant impact on its assets or liabilities.
4.

Critical accounting estimates and significant management judgements

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make certain estimates, judgments and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual outcomes could differ from these estimates.
These financial statements include estimates that, by their nature, are uncertain. The impacts of such estimates
are pervasive throughout the financial statements and may require accounting adjustments based on future
occurrences.
Significant assumptions about the future and other sources of estimation uncertainty that management has made
at the financial position reporting date, that could result in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities, in the event that actual results differ from assumptions made, relate to, but are not limited to, the
following:
Carrying value and recoverability of intangible assets – the Company has determined that intangible assets that are
capitalized have future economic benefits and are expected be economically recoverable. The assessment of any
impairment of these assets is dependent upon estimates of recoverable amounts that take into account factors such
as economic and market condition and useful lives of assets.
Income taxes – in assessing the probability of realizing deferred tax assets, management makes estimates related
to the expectation of future taxable income, applicable tax opportunities, expected timing of reversals of existing
temporary differences and the likelihood that the tax position taken will be sustained upon examination by
applicable tax authorities. In making its assessment, management give additional weight to positive and negative
evidence that can be objectively verified.
While management believes that these estimates are reasonable, actual results could differ from those estimates
and could impact future results of operation and cash flows.
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DAFF International LLC. (Formerly CannAmerica LLC)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
4.

Critical accounting estimates and significant management judgements (continued)

Other significant judgments
The preparation of these financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Company to make judgments,
apart from those involving estimates, in applying accounting policies. The most significant judgments in applying the
Company’s financial statements include:
• The assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and whether there are events or
conditions that may give rise to significant uncertainty; and
• The fair value and classification of financial instruments;
5.

Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that there are adequate capital resources to safeguard the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern through the optimization of its capital structure. The capital
structure consists of members’ equity and notes payable. The basis for the Company’s capital structure is
dependent on the Company’s expected business growth and changes in business environment. In order to
facilitate the management of capital, the Company prepares annual expenditure budgets which are updated as
necessary and are reviewed and periodically approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new shares through private placement, incur debt or return
of capital to shareholders.
There have been no changes made to the capital management policy during the year ended March 31, 2018.
6.

Financial risk management

Financial risk
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, and
foreign currency risk.
Risk management is carried out by the Company’s management team under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors also provides regular guidance for overall risk management.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfil its payment obligations. The
Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its accounts receivable and its due from related party balances.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company has a planning and budgeting process in place to help determine the funds required to support the
Company’s normal operating requirements on an ongoing basis.
Historically, the Company's primary source of funding has been through funding from related parties. The
Company’s access to financing is always uncertain. There can be no assurance of continued access to significant
related party financing.
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DAFF International LLC. (Formerly CannAmerica LLC)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
6.

Financial risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in interest rate. The Company
is exposed to interest rate risk on its debt instruments and has determined there is no material exposure related to
interest rate risk.
Foreign currency risk
The Company’s functional currency is the United States Dollar and major transactions are transacted in the United
States Dollar. As of March 31, 2018, the Company had all of its financial liabilities denominated in the United States
Dollar. Management believes that the foreign exchange risk related to currency conversion is minimal and therefore
does not hedge its foreign exchange risk.
7.

Intangible assets

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company entered into an assignment and assumption agreement with a
company controlled by an officer of the Company, His Way Herbs, LLC. (the “Agreement”) to acquire a portfolio of
cannabis brands. The consideration paid was the assumption of $5,798,665 in total liabilities in exchange for $128,869
in amounts due from related parties and $5,669,796 of intangible assets. The intangible assets consist of:

Balance, beginning
Addition
Balance, ending

8.

March 31, 2018
$
5,669,796
$
5,669,796

March 31, 2017
$
$
-

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
March 31, 2018

Accounts payables
Accrued liabilities
Payroll liabilities

$

$
9.

346,196
19,329
24,587
390,112

March 31, 2017
$

$

-

Notes payable

On March 1, 2018, the Company assumed a promissory note from His Way Herbs, LLC whereby US$ 3,650,000 was
lent from HWH Holdings LLC, a Colorado limited liability company. The note bears an interest of 9% per annum and
is due 13 months after the date on which any affiliate that directly or indirectly holds the equity interests in the
Company and becomes a reporting public Company under applicable Canadian Law. As of March 31, 2018, the
balance of the principal and accrued interest is $4,820,044 (2017 - $nil).
On March 1, 2018, the Company assumed $630,583 in notes payable as consideration paid for intangible assets. The
amounts are non-interest bearing and due on demand.
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DAFF International LLC. (Formerly CannAmerica LLC)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
10. Related party transactions
His Way Herbs, LLC is controlled by an officer of the Company and is a related party. The acquisition of intangible
assets described in note 7 and assumption of liabilities described in note 9 are considered a related party transactions.
Summary of key management personnel compensation:
Key management personnel include those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Company as a whole. The Company has determined that key management personnel
consist of members of the Company's Board of Directors and corporate officers. The remuneration of directors and
key management personnel included in salaries and wages during the year ended March 31, 2018 was $97,134, (2017
- $nil).
As at March 31, 2018, $168,333 (2017 - $nil), is owed to the Company from His Way Herbs, LLC.
11. Income taxes
The provision for income taxes is calculated as follows:
March 31, 2018
$
(94,095)
25.6%
(24,117)
24,117

Net loss
Statutory income tax rate
Expected tax recovery at statutory income tax rates
Deductible temporary differences

March 31, 2017
$
25.6%
-

Temporary differences that give rise to the following deferred tax assets and liabilities at are:

March 31, 2018
Deferred tax assets
Non-capital loss carry forwards
Valuation allowance

March 31, 2017

$

24,117

$

$

(24,117)
-

$

-

Tax attributes are subject to review, and potential adjustment, by tax authorities.
As at March 31, 2018, the Company has non-capital losses of approximately $94,095 to offset against future income,
expiring in 2038.
12. Supplemental disclosure with respect to cash flows
Significant non-cash transaction for the year ended March 31, 2018 consist of
a. The Company acquired assets including amounts receivable from related parties and intangible assets
totaling $5,798,655 by assumption of an equivalent amount of accounts payable and notes payable.
b. Included in accounts payable are purchases of equipment for a licensee totally $54,537
During the period from incorporation on September 12, 2016 to March 31, 2017, the Company did not have any
significant non-cash transactions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2018
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
13. Investment in Licensee
During the year, the Company received a 10% equity investment in a licensee in Maryland and received an option to
purchase an additional 30% equity investment for USD$2,500,000. No cash consideration was paid for the initial
investment; however, the Company will provide equipment, intellectual property, labour and technical assistance
to establish operations necessary for the licensee to obtain a license. The investment was recorded at the fair value
of the equipment purchase obligation on the statement of financial position.
14. Major Customer
During the year ended March 31, 2018, one customer individually represented 100% of total revenue.
15. Subsequent event
On May 18, 2018 (the “Agreement Date”), CannAmerica Holdings Inc. acquired 100% of the Company from the
members of the Company.
The following consideration is required in connection with the transaction:
• cash on closing of US$1,750,000 to the creditors of the Company as a partial settlement of the Company’s
debts (paid);
• cash on closing of US$250,000 to the Company for working capital purposes (paid);
• issuance of an aggregate of 35.83 common shares of CannAmerica Holdings to the members of the
Company (issued);
• issuance of 15.00 common share purchase warrants of CannAmerica Holdings to the members of the
Company (issued);
• issuance of 14.17 common share purchase warrants of CannAmerica Holdings to the members of the
Company conditional upon attaining certain targets (issued); and
• The Company agrees to repay the remaining payables of US$2,750,000 (“Note Payable”) as follows:
o Within 150 days of the Agreement Date if CannAmerica Holdings does not complete a merger with
a publicly listed company;
o 13 months from the date CannAmerica Holdings completes a merger with a publicly listed
company;
o if the publicly listed company has completed a financing post public listing of more than
US$5,000,000, the entire balance is due; and
o if a publicly listed company has completed its public listing, 50% of any financing post public listing
if less than US$5,000,000 will pay down the outstanding US$2,750,000.
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CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Unaudited Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2018

CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Condensed interim consolidated statements of financial position
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
June 30,
2018
$
(unaudited)

March 31,
2018
$

973,490
410,333
–
35,000
127,899
1,546,722

–
–
110,001
–
–
110,001

55,563
14,934
5,814,989
1,716,597
9,148,805

–
–
–
–
110,001

335,973
335,973

–
–

11

3,819,622
4,155,595

–
–

13
13

3,015,201
2,275,686
757,907
(1,104,139)
48,555
4,993,210
9,148,805

110,001
–
–
–
–
110,001
110,001

Notes
Assets
Current
Cash
Accounts receivable
Deposits
Prepaid expenses
Inventory

5

6

Investment in licensee
Equipment
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Total assets

7
8
9
4

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

10

Notes payable
Total liabilities
Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Share subscriptions
Contributed surplus
Deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity
Nature of operations (Note 1)
Subsequent event (Note 13)

Approved by the Board of Directors:
“Russell Henderson”
Russell Henderson, Director

“Dan Anglin”
Dan, Anglin, CEO

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
statements.

1

CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Condensed interim consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss
(Unaudited – expressed in Canadian dollars)
Three months ended June 30,
2018
2017
$
Notes
$
Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross margin
Expenses
Advertising and promotion
Bank charges
Depreciation
Interest expense
Office and administration
Professional fees
Salaries and benefits
Share-based compensation
Loss before other items
Listing expense
Foreign exchange loss
Net loss for the period
Foreign currency translation
Comprehensive loss for the period
Loss per common share – basic and diluted
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

8
11

12
12,13
3

231,275
108,135
123,140

–
–
–

22,448
2,123
375
23,704
4,014
288,737
72,262
570,118
(860,641)
(226,195)
(17,303)
(1,104,139)
48,555
(1,055,584)
(0.05)
20,174,704

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
statements.
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CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Condensed interim consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity
(Unaudited – expressed in Canadian dollars)

Balance, March 31, 2018
Cancellation of shares
Acquisition of DAFF (Note 4)
Reverse takeover of CannAmerica
(Note 3):


Acquisition of CannAmerica
(Note 3)
 Outstanding CannAmerica
shares
 Elimination of CannAmerica
Holdings common shares
 Elimination of CannAmerica
share capital
Share subscription
Share-based compensation (Note
13)
Net loss
Foreign currency translation
adjustment
Balance, June 30, 2018
Balance, March 31, 2017
Balance, June 30, 2017

Number of
shares
111
(1)
35.83

Share
Contributed
Share capital subscription
surplus
$
$
$
110,001
–
–
–
–
–
1,433,200
–
187,789
–

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income
$
–
–
–

Deficit
$
–
–
–

Total
$
110,001
–
1,620,989

29,166,000

1,472,000

–

–

–

–

1,472,000

7,360,001

1,413,500

–

–

–

–

1,413,500

(145.83)

–

–

–

–

–

–

-

(1,413,500)

–

–

–

2,275,686
–

570,118

–

–

2,275,686
570,118

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
48,555

(1,104,139)
–

(1,104,139)
48,555

36,526,001

3,015,201

2,275,686

757,907

48,555

(1,104,139)

4,993,210

–
–

–
–

–
–

(1,413,500)

–
–

–
–

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements
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CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Condensed interim consolidated statements of cash flows
(Unaudited – expressed in Canadian dollars)

Notes
Operating activities
Net loss
Items not affecting cash
Listing expense
Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation
Interest expense
Changes in non-cash working capital balances
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in inventory
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities
Investing activities
Purchase of equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Acquisition of DAFF
Acquisition of CHC
Net cash provided by investing activities
Financing activities
Proceeds from subscriptions
Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash
Increase in cash
Cash, beginning
Cash, end

Three months ended June 30,
2018
2017
$
$
(1,104,139)

–

226,195
375
570,118
23,704

–
–
–
–

360,368
25,626
(197,592)
(95,345)

–
–
–
–

(6,861)
(7,918)
26,559
980,563
992,343

–

83,686
83,686
(7,194)

–
–

973,490
–
973,490

–
–
–

Supplemental cash flow information (Note 14)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial
statements
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CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements
For the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Unaudited – expressed in Canadian dollars)
1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS
CannAmerica Brands Corp. (formerly Transform Capital Corp.) (“CannAmerica”) was incorporated in
the province of British Columbia on March 13, 2017, under the Business Corporations Act of British
Columbia. CannAmerica’s head office is located at Suite 3123, 595 Burrard Street, Three Bentall
Centre, Vancouver, British Columbia, V7X 1J1, and its registered and records office is located at 10th
Floor, 595 Howe Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2T5.
These unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of CannAmerica and its legal subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Company”). On
May 30, 2018, CannAmerica entered into an agreement with the shareholders of CannAmerica
Holdings Corp. (“CannAmerica Holdings”) whereby 100% of the common shares and warrants of
CannAmerica Holdings were exchanged for common shares of CannAmerica (“CannAmerica Holdings
Acquisition”) (Note 3). The CannAmerica Holdings Acquisition is a reverse takeover of a non-operating
company whereby CannAmerica Holdings, the legal subsidiary, has been determined to have acquired
control of CannAmerica and to be the acquirer for accounting purposes. In accordance with the
principles of reverse takeover accounting, CannAmerica will report the operations of CannAmerica
Holdings and its related historical comparatives as its continuing business, except for the legal capital
shown in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and in Note 13, which have
been adjusted to reflect the share capital of CannAmerica.
CannAmerica Holdings Corp. was incorporated in the Province of British Columbia on December 11,
2017, under the Business Corporations Act of British Columbia and was formed to identify an
appropriate business for acquisition or investment. CannAmerica Holdings completed a business
combination (Note 4) on May 18, 2018 and now owns a portfolio of brands in the medical and
recreational cannabis space in the United States through its wholly owned subsidiary DAFF
International LLC. The Company's principal business is to build on and maximize the value of its brands
by promoting, marketing and licensing these brands through various distribution channels, including
dispensaries, wholesalers and distributors. The Company currently has three brand licensing
agreements with licensees in the states of Colorado, Nevada and Maryland. CannAmerica has applied
for a public listing (a “Public Listing”) on the Canadian Securities Exchange (the “CSE”).
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company will continue as a going
concern, which assumes the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business for the foreseeable future. These financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should
the Company to continue as a going concern. The proposed business of the Company and the
completion of a CSE listing involves a high degree of risk. Additional funds may be required to enable
the Company to pursue its initiatives and the Company may be unable to obtain such financing on
satisfactory terms. Furthermore, there is no assurance that the business will be profitable. These factors
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance
These unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) applicable to the preparation of interim financial statements,
including IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting. In preparation of these unaudited condensed interim
consolidated financial statements, the Company has consistently applied the same accounting policies
disclosed in the Company’s audited annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018,
with the exception of the accounting standards adopted in the current year, as described below.
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CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements
For the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Unaudited – expressed in Canadian dollars)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
These unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on September 7, 2018.

Basis of presentation and measurement
These unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements are a continuation of the
consolidated financial statement of CannAmerica Holdings.
These unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries on a historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based upon the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.
These unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction
with the audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 for the CannAmerica,
CannAmerica Holdings Corp. and DAFF International LLC.

Basis of consolidation
These unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of CannAmerica and its legal subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Company”).
Subsidiaries are those entities which CannAmerica controls by having the power to govern the financial
and operational policies of the entity. This control is generally evidenced through owning more than
50% of the voting rights or currently exercisable potential voting rights of a company’s share capital. All
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.
Percentage ownership interest
June 30, 2018
March 31, 2018
100%
CannAmerica Holdings Corp.
0%
100%
DAFF International LLC
0%
CannAmerica Holdings is a legal subsidiary of CannAmerica Brands Corp. Note 3 describes a reverse
takeover transaction which occurred on May 30, 2018 whereby CannAmerica Holdings is considered
the acquirer. The transaction resulted in CannAmerica reporting the operations of CannAmerica
Holdings and its related historical comparatives as its continuing business, except for the legal capital
shown in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and in Note 13, which have
been adjusted to reflect the share capital of the CannAmerica.
Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of CannAmerica and CannAmerica Holdings is the Canadian dollar. The
functional currency of the foreign operation, DAFF, is the US dollar. These unaudited condensed interim
consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars.
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CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements
For the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Unaudited – expressed in Canadian dollars)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
Significant accounting policies
Business combinations
Judgment is used in determining whether an acquisition is a business combination or an asset
acquisition. In a business combination, all identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired are recorded at their fair values. In determining the allocation of the purchase price in a
business combination, including any acquisition related contingent consideration, estimates including
market based and appraisal values are used. The contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

New accounting standards adopted in the current year
On April 1, 2018, the Company adopted amendments to IFRS 2, “Share-based Payment”. The
amendments provide clarification on how to account for certain types of share-based transactions. The
adoption of this amendment did not have any impact on the Company’s unaudited condensed interim
consolidated financial statements.
On April 1, 2018, the Company adopted IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”. IFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial instruments, a single forward-looking
expected credit loss impairment model and a substantially reformed approach to hedge accounting.
The Company adopted a retrospective approach and as IFRS 9 did not impact the Company’s
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities there was no significant impact on the
carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments at the transition date. The introduction of the
new expected credit loss impairment model did not have a material impact on the Company’s unaudited
condensed interim consolidated financial statements.
On April 1, 2018, the Company adopted IFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The
objective of IFRS 15 is to provide a single, comprehensive revenue recognition model for all contracts
with customers. The underlying principle is that an entity will recognize revenue to depict the transfer
of goods or services to customers at an amount that the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for
those goods or services. It also contains new disclosure requirements. The Company elected to apply
IFRS 15 using a full retrospective approach. Under IFRS 15, revenue from licensees would be
recognized in the form of fixed fees per unit shipped and is charged at a point in time when control over
the goods has been transferred to the customer. The Company transfers control and satisfies its
performance obligation upon shipment and acceptance by the licensee, which is consistent with the
Company’s former revenue recognition policy under IAS 18. Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 did not
have a material impact on the Company’s unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial
statements.
New accounting standards issued but not yet effective
New standard IFRS 16, "Leases" is not yet effective for the period ended June 30, 2018 and has not
been applied in preparing these unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements. The
Company has not early adopted this new standard.
Other accounting standards or amendments to existing accounting standards that have been issued
but have future effective dates are either not applicable or are not expected to have a significant impact
on the Company’s unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements.
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(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements
For the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Unaudited – expressed in Canadian dollars)

3. REVERSE TAKEOVER TRANSACTION
On May 30, 2018 (the “Agreement Date”), CannAmerica entered into an agreement with the
shareholders of CannAmerica Holdings whereby 100% of the common shares and warrants of
CannAmerica Holdings were exchanged for common shares of CannAmerica.
The aggregate consideration for the CannAmerica Holdings Acquisition was comprised of:
(i) 29,166,000 common shares (200,000 shares of CannAmerica in exchange for 1 share of
CannAmerica Holdings)
(ii) 2,833,333 common shares contingent on attaining certain earning targets; and
(iii) 3,000,000 warrants with an exercise price of $0.50 per share exercisable for a period 24
months following close of a Public Listing.
The CannAmerica Holdings Acquisition is a reverse takeover of a non-operating company whereby
CannAmerica Holdings, the legal subsidiary, has been determined to have acquired control of
CannAmerica on the Agreement Date and to be the acquirer for accounting purposes. The transaction
does not constitute a business combination as CannAmerica, prior to the Acquisition, did not meet the
definition of a business under IFRS. Accordingly, the CannAmerica Holdings Acquisition has been
accounted for as an acquisition by CannAmerica Holdings of CannAmerica’s net assets. In accordance
with the principles of reverse takeover accounting, CannAmerica will report the operations of
CannAmerica Holdings and its related historical comparatives as its continuing business, except for
the legal capital shown in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and in Note
13, which have been adjusted to reflect the share capital of CannAmerica.
The acquisition consideration deemed to have been transferred by CannAmerica Holdings, the legal
subsidiary, is in the form of equity instruments previously issued by CannAmerica, the legal parent
company which comprises the outstanding equity instrument of CannAmerica immediately prior to the
reverse takeover. The acquisition date fair value of the deemed consideration was estimated to be
$0.20 per share using the latest private placement completed by CannAmerica. The difference between
the consideration paid to acquire CannAmerica and the net asset value of CannAmerica is recorded
as a listing expense to net loss as follows:

Consideration – 7,360,001 shares at $0.20 per share
Cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Share subscriptions
Total net assets acquired
Listing expense

As at May 30,2018
$
1,472,000
980,563
2,500,000
35,000
(77,758)
(2,192,000)
1,245,805
226,195
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CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements
For the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Unaudited – expressed in Canadian dollars)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL
On May 18, 2018 (the “DAFF Agreement Date”), CannAmerica Holdings entered into an agreement
with the shareholders of DAFF to acquire 100% of the common shares of DAFF (the “DAFF
Acquisition”).
The aggregate consideration for the DAFF Acquisition was comprised of:
(i) $2,255,000 (US$1,750,000) payable to the creditors of DAFF as a partial settlement of DAFF’s
debts;
(ii) $322,000 (US$250,000) to DAFF for working capital purposes;
(iii) 35.83 common shares of CannAmerica Holdings;
(iv) 15 warrants of CannAmerica Holdings;
(v) 14.17 shares of CannAmerica Holdings issuable conditional upon attaining certain targets; and
(vi) $3,544,000 (US$2,750,000) payable to the creditors of DAFF for the remaining settlement of
DAFF’s debts (the “Note Payable”) as follows:
a. Within 150 days of the DAFF Agreement Date if CannAmerica Holdings does not
complete a merger with a publicly listed company (“Merged Company”);
b. If CannAmerica Holdings has completed a merger with a publicly listed company, the
due date is extended to 13 months from the date of a public listing of the Merged
Company;
c. If the publicly listed company has completed a financing post public listing of more than
US$5,000,000, the entire balance is due; and
d. If a publicly listed company has completed its public listing, 50% of any financing post
public listing if less than US$5,000,000 will pay down the outstanding Note Payable.
The Company has determined that the DAFF Acquisition is a business combination as the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed constitute a business. The transaction was accounted for using the
acquisition method of accounting whereby the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed were
recorded at their estimated fair value at the measurement date of May 18, 2018.
The allocation of the purchase price in the DAFF Acquisition to the total fair value of net assets acquired
is as follows:
$
Fair value of net assets acquired
Cash
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Investment
Equipment
Intangible assets

26,559
142,593
153,525
54,015
8,136
5,645,241
6,030,069

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Notes payable
Identifiable net assets acquired
Goodwill

(455,807)
(5,669,870)
(95,608)
1,716,597
1,620,989
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CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements
For the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Unaudited – expressed in Canadian dollars)
4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL (cont’d)
$
Consideration paid
Fair value of 35.83 common shares of the CannAmerica Holdings
Fair value of 15 common share purchase warrants of CannAmerica Holdings

1,433,200
187,789
1,620,989

The warrants have an estimated fair value of $187,789, calculated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model assuming the warrants will expire 24 months following the date the warrants were
granted, an average risk-free interest rate of 1.88%, an expected dividend rate of 0%, and an average
expected annual volatility of 100%. Warrants issued pursuant to the DAFF Acquisition were exchanged
for 3,000,000 warrants of CannAmerica as part of the CannAmerica Holdings Acquisition.
The accounting for the DAFF Acquisition business combination has not yet been finalized and the
Company is reporting provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is not complete. These
provisional amounts may be adjusted during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities
may be recognized, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at
the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date.
5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Trade accounts receivable
GST and taxes recoverable

June 30,
2018
$
382,618
27,715
410,333

March 31,
2018
$
-

June 30,
2018
$
127,899

March 31,
2018
$
-

6. INVENTORY

Substrate

For the three months ended June 30, 2018, the amount of inventory recognized in cost of sales was
$108,135.
7.

INVESTMENT IN LICENSEE
The Company owns a 10% equity investment in a licensee. No cash consideration was paid for the
initial investment; however, the Company will provide equipment, intellectual property, labour and
technical assistance to establish operations necessary for the licensee to obtain a license. The
investment was recorded at the fair value of the equipment purchase obligation on the statement of
financial position. The Company has the option to purchase an additional 30% equity investment for
US$2,500,000.
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CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements
For the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Unaudited – expressed in Canadian dollars)
8. EQUIPMENT
Total
$
Cost
Balance, March 31, 2018
Additions
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Balance, June 30, 2018

–
14,959
350
15,309

Balance, March 31, 2018
Accumulated depreciation
Balance, June 30, 2018

–
375
375

Balance, March 31, 2018
Balance, June 30, 2018

–
14,934

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
On May 18, 2018, the Company entered into an agreement with the shareholders of DAFF to acquire
100% of the common shares of DAFF. As part of the DAFF Acquisition, the Company acquired a
portfolio of medical and recreational cannabis brands, which was previously acquired from His Way
Herbs, LLC, a related party.
Total
$
–
5,653,159
161,830
5,814,989

Balance, March 31, 2018
Additions
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Balance, June 30, 2018

10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
June 30,
2018
$
213,187
88,250
34,536
335,973

Trade accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Payroll liabilities
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March 31,
2018
$
-

CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements
For the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Unaudited – expressed in Canadian dollars)

11. NOTES PAYABLE
As part of the DAFF Acquisition (Note 4), the Company assumed multiple promissory notes, including
a promissory note due to His Way Herbs, LLC in the amount of US$3,650,000. The note bears interest
at 9% per annum, with interest beginning to accrue on June 1, 2018 and is due 13 months after the
date on which any affiliate that directly or indirectly holds the interest in the Company becomes a
reporting public Company under applicable Canadian Law. During the period the Company repaid
US$1,200,000 of the balance owing and recorded interest expense of $23,704. As of June 30, 2018,
the balance of the principal and accrued interest is $3,424,584.
The Company also assumed US$650,000 in notes payable as part of the DAFF acquisition. During the
period ended June 30, 2018, the Company repaid US$350,000. The notes payable are non-interest
bearing and due 13 months after the date on which any affiliate that directly or indirectly holds the
interest in the Company and becomes a reporting public Company under applicable Canadian Law. As
of June 30, 2018, the balance of the principal is $395,040.
12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
For the three months ended June 30, 2018, the Company was charged $14,011 in salaries (2017: $nil)
by the Chairman and CEO of the Company.
For the three months ended June 30, 2018, the Company was charged $14,011 in salaries (2017: $nil)
by the COO of the Company.
For the three months ended June 30, 2018, the Company was charged $5,000 in management fees
(2017: $nil) by the CFO of the Company.
His Way Herbs, LLC is controlled by the CEO of the Company and is a related party. The acquisition
of intangible assets described in Note 9 is a related party transaction.
Key management personnel compensation
Key management is comprised of the Company’s directors and executive officers. The Company
incurred the following key management compensation charges during the three months ended June
30, 2018 and 2017:
2018
$
33,022
486,686

Salaries, bonuses, fees and benefits
Share based compensation
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2017
$
–
–

CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements
For the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Unaudited – expressed in Canadian dollars)
13. SHARE CAPITAL
As at June 30, 2018, the Company was in the process of a private placement and raised gross proceeds
of $2,275,686 from the subscription of 7,585,621 common shares. As of June 30, 2018, the private
placement was not completed, and the proceeds received have been presented as a liability on the
financial statements. Subsequent to the period ended June 30, 2018, these shares were issued to the
subscribers.
Warrants
Movements in the number of warrants outstanding and their related weighted average exercise prices
are as follows:
Weighted
average
Number of exercise price
warrants
$
Outstanding, March 31, 2018
–
–
Outstanding, June 30, 2018
3,000,000
0.50
The following summarizes information about the outstanding share purchase warrants exercisable to
acquire common shares of the Company as at June 30, 2018:
Number of
warrants
outstanding
3,000,000

Exercise
price
$
0.50

Expiry date
May 30, 2020

Options
On May 30, 2018 the Company granted 4,100,000 stock options to acquire common shares. The
options have a term of 5 years, with an exercise price of $0.30 and vested immediately. The fair value
of the options granted during the period using the Black Scholes option pricing model was $570,118
using the following assumptions: estimated volatility of 100%, expected life of 5 years and a risk free
rate of 2.11%.
Movements in the number of options outstanding and their related weighted average exercise prices
are as follows:
Weighted
average
Number of exercise price
options
$
Outstanding, March 31, 2018
–
–
Outstanding, June 30, 2018
4,100,000
0.30

The following summarizes information about the outstanding stock options exercisable to acquire
common shares of the Company as at June 30, 2018:
Number of
options
outstanding
4,100,000

Exercise
price
$
0.30
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Expiry date
May 30, 2023

CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)
Notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements
For the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Unaudited – expressed in Canadian dollars)
14. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Three months ended June 30,
2018
2017
$
$
Non-cash transactions
Fair value of net assets from acquisitions (Note 3 and 4)
Fair value of accounts receivable
Fair value of inventory
Fair value of investment in licensee
Fair value of goodwill
Fair value of equipment
Fair value of intangible assets
Fair value of accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Fair value of notes payable
Fair value of subscription proceeds
Shares issued
Warrants issued

2,642,593
153,525
54,015
1,716,597
8,136
5,645,241
(538,795)
(5,675,100)
(2,192,000)
(2,905,200)
(187,789)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

The non-cash transactions noted above represent the fair value of the net assets of DAFF and
CannAmerica Brands Corp. resulting from the business combination and reverse takeover
transactions described in Notes 3 and 4. The amounts did not result in an exchange or receipt of
cash.
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SCHEDULE "B"
CANNAMERICA BRANDS CORP.
MD&A
[See attached]

CANNAMERICA BRANDS CORP. (FORMERLY TRANSFORM CAPITAL CORP.)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(All amounts expressed in CAD dollars, unless otherwise stated)

BACKGROUND
The following management discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the results of operations and financial condition
should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of CannAmerica Brands Corp. (the “Company” or
“CannAmerica Brands”) for the year ended March 31, 2018, and accompanying notes thereto. The financial statements
are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and all amounts are presented in
Canadian dollars unless noted otherwise.
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARDING LOOKING STATEMENTS
This MD&A contains certain statements that may constitute “forward-looking statements”. Forward-looking statements
include but are not limited to, statements regarding future expansion, business goals, anticipated business developments
and the timing thereof, regulatory compliance, sufficiency of working capital, business and financing plans, and other
forward-looking statements including but not limited to information concerning intentions, plans and future actions of
the Company.
In connection with the forward-looking information contained in this Management Discussion and Analysis, the
Company has made assumptions about the Company’s ability to acquire assets or businesses; and operate in the future
without any regulation or law imposed which would prevent the Company from operating its business.
The forward-looking information in this MD&A reflects the current expectations, assumptions and/or beliefs of the
Company based on information currently available to the Company. Although the Company believes that such
statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Forward-looking
statements are typically identified by words such as: believe, expect, anticipate, intend, estimate, postulate and similar
expressions, or which by their nature refer to future events. The Company cautions that any forward-looking statements
by the Company are not guarantees of future performance, and that actual results may differ materially from those in
forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including, but not limited to, the Company’s ability to continue
its projected growth, to raise the necessary capital or to be fully able to implement its business strategies.
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
CannAmerica Brands Corp. (the “Company” or “CannAmerica Brands”) was incorporated in the Province of British
Columbia on March 13, 2017, under the Business Corporations Act of British Columbia. The Company’s head office is
located at 10th Floor 595 Howe St., Vancouver, BC, V6C 2T5.
The Company was formed for the primary purpose of completing a Public Listing (“Listing”) on the Canadian Securities
Exchange (the “Exchange”). The Company’s primary business would be to identify, evaluate and acquire assets,
properties or businesses for the Listing.
HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
Special warrants
On November 28, 2017 the Company issued 7,060,000 special warrants at a price of $0.20 per warrant for gross proceeds
of $1,412,000. On March 30, 2018 the special warrants were automatically converted to 7,060,000 common shares of
the Company per the terms of the warrants.

CannAmerica Brands Corp.

(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(All amounts expressed in Cdn dollars, unless otherwise stated)
SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION FOR MOST RECENT COMPLETED QUARTERS

Total revenue
Net income
Basic and diluted income per
share

Total revenue
Net income
Basic and diluted income per
share

March 31,
2018
$
(264)
(2.40)

December 31,
2017
$
(262)
(2.38)

September 30,
2017
$
(262)
(2.38)

June 30,
2017
$
(262)
(2.38)

March 31,
2017
$
-

December 31,
2016
$
-

September 30,
2016
$
-

June 30,
2016
$
n/a
n/a
n/a

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
The Company has not commenced earning revenue and has limited history. The Company is reliant on external financing
to take advantage of growth opportunities and its ability to continue as a going concern is dependent on the Company’s
ability to identify and acquire profitable assets, properties and businesses.
At March 31, 2018, the Company had working capital of $1,347,451, compared to March 31, 2017 of $nil.
The net change in the Company’s cash position as at March 31, 2018 was $1,341,202. Operating activities used cash of
$41,050 which was primarily due to an operating loss combined with changes in working capital items. Investing
activities used cash of $NIL. Financing activities generated cash of $1,382,251.
OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA
As at the date of this report, 7,360,001 common shares were issued and outstanding, with no options and no warrants.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Operating revenues for the year ended March 31, 2018, totaled $nil.
Operating expenses for the year ended March 31, 2018, totaled $1,050 and consisted of bank charges.
The Company’s operations are in their infancy and no comparative or trend discussion is relevant.
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CannAmerica Brands Corp.

(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(All amounts expressed in Cdn dollars, unless otherwise stated)
SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION FOR MOST RECENT COMPLETED YEARS
March 31,
2017
$
$nil
nil
nil

Total revenue
Net loss
Basic and diluted loss per share

March 31,
2018
$
$0
($1,050)
(0.01)

Total assets of the company totaled $1,381,202 as at March 31, 2018 compared to $1 as of March 31, 2017. The increase
in assets was primarily due to the equity raise completed during the year.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
None.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
The Company has prepared the accompanying audited annual financial statements using accounting policies consistent
with IFRS. Significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 of the Company’s annual financial statements.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual outcomes
could differ from these estimates.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
All financial instruments are recorded initially at fair value. In subsequent periods, all financial instruments are measured
based on the classification adopted for the financial instruments: held to maturity, loans and receivables, fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale, fair value through profit or loss liabilities or other liabilities. Fair value through
profit or loss assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with the change in the fair value recognized
in net loss during the period. Held to maturity assets, loans and receivable, and other liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Available for sale assets are subsequently measured at fair
value with the change in fair value recorded in other comprehensive loss, except for equity instruments without a quoted
market price in active markets and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, which are measured at cost.
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CannAmerica Brands Corp.

(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(All amounts expressed in Cdn dollars, unless otherwise stated)
Fair Values
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were presented on the Company’s statement of financial
position as at March 31, 2018, as follows:

Cash
Accounts
receivable
Other payables

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted prices in
Significant other
Significant
active markets for
observable
unobservable
identical instruments
inputs
inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
$
$
$
$1,341,202
–
–

Balance,
March 31,
2018
$
$1,341,202

$5,000

-

-

$5,000

($33,751)

-

-

($33,751)

The Company is exposed to one variety of financial instrument related risks. The Board of Directors approves and
monitors the risk management processes, inclusive of documented investment policies, counterparty limits, and
controlling and reporting structures.
The principal financial instruments used by the Company, from which financial instrument risk arises are cash and cash
equivalents, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities.
The Company’s financial instruments are exposed to certain financial risks, which include the following:
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is on its cash held with Bank of Montreal. The carrying
amounts represents the maximum credit exposure.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will incur difficulties meeting its financial obligations as they are due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions without incurring unacceptable losses or risking harm
to the Company’s reputation. The Company has working capital of $1,347,451 as at March 31, 2018.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. The
Company has determined there is no material exposure related to interest rate risk.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS
The Company has not entered into any significant off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments.
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CannAmerica Brands Corp.

(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(All amounts expressed in Cdn dollars, unless otherwise stated)
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2018 the Company commenced a private placement which has yet to close.
Gross proceeds raised as of May 30, 2018 totaled $2,267,000 through the issuance of 7,156,664 common shares at a
price of $0.30 per common share.
On May 30, 2018 (the “Agreement Date”), the Company entered into an agreement with the members of CannAmerica
Holdings Corp. (CannAmerica Holdings) to acquire 100% of the shares of CannAmerica Holdings (the “Acquisition”).
The following consideration is required in connection with the transaction:





issuance of 29,166,666 common shares of the Company to shareholders of CannAmerica Holdings;
contingent share consideration of 2,833,334 common shares of the Company to the CEO and COO of
CannAmerica Holdings conditional to attaining certain earnings targets;
issuance of 3,000,0000 warrants of the Company to the CEO and COO exercisable at $0.50 per share for a
period of 24 months following the closing of a Public Listing of the Company (the “Public Listing”); and
Subsequent to the closing of the Acquisition, CannAmerica Holdings subsidiary had a carrying balance of
US$2,750,000 payable to various creditors (“Notes Payable”). The Company has agreed to advance funds to
pay down the Notes Payable based on the following terms:
o if the Company has not has completed its Public Listing within 150 days of the Agreement Date, the
entire Note Payable is payable. Otherwise, the entire Note Payable is payable 13 months from the date
of the Public Listing;
o if the Company has completed a financing post Public Listing of more than US$5,000,000, the balance
of the Note Payable would be payable; and
o if the Company has completed its Public Listing, 50% of any financing post Public Listing will be
advanced to pay down the Note Payable if less than US$5,000,00.

The following Consideration Shares are subject to escrow or resale restrictions:
o 5,500,000 Consideration Shares are subject to the Escrow Agreement in accordance with NP 46-201;
o 2,800,000 Consideration Shares are subject to a contractual restriction on resale until December 31,
2018; and
o 2,800,000 Consideration Shares are subject to a contractual restriction on resale until June 30, 2019.
The acquisition consideration deemed to have been transferred by CannAmerica Holdings, the legal subsidiary, is in the
form of equity instruments previously issued by CannAmerica,Brands Corp. the legal parent company which comprises
the outstanding equity instrument of CannAmerica Brands Corp. immediately prior to the reverse takeover. The
acquisition date fair value of the deemed consideration was estimated to be $0.20 per share using the latest private
placement completed by CannAmerica Brands Corp. CannAmerica Brands Corp. determined the valuation of the
Company using a multiple of expected revenue to be derived from DAFF.
The acquisition of CannAmerica Holdings by the Company will be treated as a reverse-takeover transaction.
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CannAmerica Brands Corp.

(formerly Transform Capital Corp.)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(All amounts expressed in Cdn dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Upon completion of the Aquisitions, CannAmerica Holdings Corp. became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and DAFF International LLC continued to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of CannAmerica Holdings Corp. as set out in
the following organizational chart:
CannAmerica Brands Corp.

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.

DAFF International LLC

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The information provided in this report is the responsibility of management. In the preparation of these statements,
estimates are sometimes necessary to make a determination of future values for certain assets or liabilities. Management
believes such estimates have been based on careful judgments and have been properly reflected in the accompanying
financial statements.
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CANNAMERICA HOLDINGS CORP. (FORMERLY 1144578 BC LTD.)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(All amounts expressed in CAD dollars, unless otherwise stated)

BACKGROUND
The following management discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the results of operations and financial condition be
read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of CannAmerica Holdings Corp. (the “Company” or
“CannAmerica Holdings”) for the year ended March 31, 2018, and accompanying notes thereto. The financial statements
are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and all amounts are presented in
Canadian dollars unless noted otherwise.
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARDING LOOKING STATEMENTS
This MD&A contains certain statements that may constitute “forward-looking statements”. Forward-looking statements
include but are not limited to, statements regarding future expansion, business goals, anticipated business developments
and the timing thereof, regulatory compliance, sufficiency of working capital, business and financing plans, and other
forward-looking statements including but not limited to information concerning intentions, plans and future actions of
the Company.
In connection with the forward-looking information contained in this Management Discussion and Analysis, the
Company has made assumptions about the Company’s ability to acquire assets or businesses; and operate in the future
without any regulation or law imposed which would prevent the Company from operating its business.
The forward-looking information in this MD&A reflects the current expectations, assumptions and/or beliefs of the
Company based on information currently available to the Company. Although the Company believes that such
statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Forward-looking
statements are typically identified by words such as: believe, expect, anticipate, intend, estimate, postulate and similar
expressions, or which by their nature refer to future events. The Company cautions that any forward-looking statements
by the Company are not guarantees of future performance, and that actual results may differ materially from those in
forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including, but not limited to, the Company’s ability to continue
its projected growth, to raise the necessary capital or to be fully able to implement its business strategies.
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
CannAmerica Holdings Corp. (formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.) (The “Company” or “CannAmerica Holdings”) was
incorporated in the Province of British Columbia on December 11, 2017, under the Business Corporations Act of British
Columbia. The Company’s head office is located at 10th floor, 595 Howe Street, Vancouver, BC, V6C 2T5. The
Company was formed to identify acquisitions.
HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
During the period ended March 31, 2018, the Company issued 111 shares for total proceeds of $110,001. As at March
31, 2018, the proceeds were received but were held until such a time the Company opens a bank account.

CannAmerica Holdings Corp. (Formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(All amounts expressed in Cdn dollars, unless otherwise stated)
SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION FOR MOST RECENT COMPLETED QUARTERS

Total revenue
Net income
Basic and diluted income per
share

March 31,
2018
$
-

December 31,
2017
$
-

The company was incorporated on December 11, 2017 and had no revenue or expenses from the time of incorporation
to March 31, 2018.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
The Company has not commenced operations and has limited history. The Company is reliant on external financing to
take advantage of growth opportunities and its ability to continue as a going concern is dependent on the Company’s
ability to identify and acquire profitable assets, properties and businesses.
At March 31, 2018, the Company had working capital of $110,001.
The net change in the Company’s cash position as at March 31, 2018 was $nil.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA
As at the date of this report, 111 common shares were issued and outstanding, with no options and no warrants.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
There were no revenues or expenses for the period from incorporation on December 11, 2017 to March 31, 2018.
The Company’s operations are in their infancy and no comparative or trend discussion is relevant.
SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION FOR MOST RECENT COMPLETED YEARS

Total revenue
Net income
Basic and diluted loss per share
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March 31,
2018
$
$nil
$nil
nil

CannAmerica Holdings Corp. (Formerly 1144578 BC Ltd.)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(All amounts expressed in Cdn dollars, unless otherwise stated)
Total assets of the company totaled $110,001 as at March 31, 2018.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
None.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
The Company has prepared the accompanying audited annual financial statements using accounting policies consistent
with IFRS. Significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 of the Company’s annual financial statements.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual outcomes
could differ from these estimates.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
All financial instruments are recorded initially at fair value. In subsequent periods, all financial instruments are measured
based on the classification adopted for the financial instruments: held to maturity, loans and receivables, fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale, fair value through profit or loss liabilities or other liabilities. Fair value through
profit or loss assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with the change in the fair value recognized
in net loss during the period. Held to maturity assets, loans and receivable, and other liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Available for sale assets are subsequently measured at fair
value with the change in fair value recorded in other comprehensive loss, except for equity instruments without a quoted
market price in active markets and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, which are measured at cost.
The Company’s financial instruments are exposed to certain financial risks, which include the following:
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfil its payment obligations. As of March 31,
2018, the Company is not exposed to any credit risk.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will incur difficulties meeting its financial obligations as they are due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions. As of March 31, 2018, the Company is not exposed
to any liquidity risk.
OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS
The Company has not entered into any significant off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Acquisition of DAFF International, LLC
On May 18, 2018 (the “Agreement Date”), the Company entered into an agreement with the members of DAFF
International, LLC (“DAFF”) to acquire 100% of the membership interest in DAFF (the “Acquisition”).
The following consideration is required in connection with the transaction:







cash on closing of US$1,750,000 to the creditors of DAFF as a partial settlement of DAFF’s debts;
cash on closing of US$250,000 to DAFF for working capital purposes;
issuance of an aggregate of 35.83 common shares of the Company to the members of DAFF;
issuance of 15.00 common share purchase warrants of the Company to the members of DAFF;
issuance of 14.17 common share purchase warrants of the Company to the members of DAFF conditional upon
attaining certain targets; and
DAFF agrees to repay the remaining payables of US$2,750,000 (“Note Payable”) as follows:
o Within 150 days of the Agreement Date if the Company does not complete a merger with a publicly
listed company;
o 13 months from the date the Company completes a merger with a publicly listed company;
o if the publicly listed company has completed a financing post public listing of more than US$5,000,000,
the entire balance is due; and
o if a publicly listed company has completed its public listing, 50% of any financing post public listing if
less than US$5,000,00 will pay down the outstanding US$2,750,000.

Acquisition by CannAmerica Brands Corp
On May 30, 2018, the Company entered into an agreement with the members of CannAmerica Brands Corp.
(CannAmerica Brands) to sell 100% of the shares of the Company.
The following consideration is required in connection with the transaction:





issuance of 29,166,000 common shares of CannAmerica Brands to shareholders of CannAmerica Holdings;
contingent share consideration of 2,833,334 common shares of CannAmerica Brands to the CEO and COO of
CannAmerica Holdings conditional to attaining certain earnings targets;
issuance of 3,000,0000 warrants of CannAmerica Brands to the CEO and COO exercisable at $0.50 per share
for a period of 24 months following the closing of a Public Listing of the Company (the “Public Listing”); and
Subsequent to the closing of the sale, DAFF had a carrying balance of US$2,750,000 payable to various creditors
(“Notes Payable”). CannAmerica Brands has agreed to advance funds to pay down the Notes Payable based on
the following terms:
o if CannAmerica Brands has not has completed its Public Listing within 150 days of the Agreement Date,
the entire Note Payable is payable. Otherwise, the entire Note Payable is payable 13 months from the
date of the Public Listing;
o if CannAmerica Brands has completed a financing post Public Listing of more than US$5,000,000, the
balance of the Note Payable would be payable; and
o if CannAmerica Brands has completed its Public Listing, 50% of any financing post Public Listing will
be advanced to pay down the Note Payable if less than US$5,000,00.
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The following Consideration Shares are subject to escrow or resale restrictions:
o 5,500,000 Consideration Shares are subject to the Escrow Agreement in accordance with NP 46-201;
o 2,800,000 Consideration Shares are subject to a contractual restriction on resale until December 31,
2018; and
o 2,800,000 Consideration Shares are subject to a contractual restriction on resale until June 30, 2019.

The acquisition consideration deemed to have been transferred by CannAmerica Holdings, the legal subsidiary, is in the
form of equity instruments previously issued by CannAmerica,Brands Corp. the legal parent company which comprises
the outstanding equity instrument of CannAmerica Brands Corp. immediately prior to the reverse takeover. The
acquisition date fair value of the deemed consideration was estimated to be $0.20 per share using the latest private
placement completed by CannAmerica Brands Corp. CannAmerica Brands Corp. determined the valuation of the
Company using a multiple of expected revenue to be derived from DAFF.
The acquisition of the Company by CannAmerica Brands Corp.will be treated as a reverse-takeover transaction and
the acquisition of DAFF International LLC by the Company will be accounted for as business combination in the
financial statements of the Company. The purchase price allocation for the consolidated entity will be determined
prior to the release of the Company’s annual audited financial statements with reference to a professional valuation to
determine the allocation between net assets and goodwill.
Upon completion of the Aquisitions, the Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the CannAmerica Brands
Corp. and DAFF International LLC continued to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as set out in the
following organizational chart:
CannAmerica Brands Corp.

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.

DAFF International LLC

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The information provided in this report is the responsibility of management. In the preparation of these statements,
estimates are sometimes necessary to make a determination of future values for certain assets or liabilities. Management
believes such estimates have been based on careful judgments and have been properly reflected in the accompanying
financial statements.
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BACKGROUND
The following management discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the results of operations and financial condition
should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of DAFF International LLC (the “Company” or
“DAFF”) for the year ended March 31, 2018, and accompanying notes thereto. The financial statements are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and all amounts are presented in Canadian dollars
unless noted otherwise.
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARDING LOOKING STATEMENTS
This MD&A contains certain statements that may constitute “forward‐looking statements”. Forward‐looking statements
include but are not limited to, statements regarding future expansion, business goals, anticipated business developments
and the timing thereof, regulatory compliance, sufficiency of working capital, business and financing plans, and other
forward-looking statements including but not limited to information concerning intentions, plans and future actions of
the Company.
In connection with the forward-looking information contained in this Management Discussion and Analysis, the
Company has made assumptions about the Company’s ability to expand operations; profitably license its brands and
operate in the future without any regulation or law imposed which would prevent the Company from operating its
business. The Company has also assumed that no significant events occur outside of the Company's normal course of
business.
The forward-looking information in this MD&A reflects the current expectations, assumptions and/or beliefs of the
Company based on information currently available to the Company. Although the Company believes that such
statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Forward‐looking
statements are typically identified by words such as: believe, expect, anticipate, intend, estimate, postulate and similar
expressions, or which by their nature refer to future events. The Company cautions that any forward‐looking statements
by the Company are not guarantees of future performance, and that actual results may differ materially from those in
forward looking statements as a result of various factors, including, but not limited to, the Company’s ability to continue
its projected growth, to raise the necessary capital or to be fully able to implement its business strategies.
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND OVERALL PERFORMANCE
DAFF is a Limited Liability Corporation engaged in licensing brands and intellectual property with manufacturers and
retailers in the cannabis space. The Company was incorporated in the State of Colorado (“CO”), USA on September 12,
2016 and its head office is located at 642 Split Rock Drive, Loveland, Colorado, 80537.
The Company owns a portfolio of brands in the cannabis space currently in the states of Colorado, Nevada and
Maryland. The Company currently owns two brands, CannAmerica and AmeriCanna which are licensed to
manufacturers and wholesale licensees.
The Company generates revenue through license agreements whereby licensees are granted rights to utilize the brand
names and related intellectual property. Revenue from these licensing agreements is generated through Licensee
purchases of branded packaging and uninfused product ingredients from the Company. This business model allows the
Company to maintain a very low overhead as they are not responsible for cultivation or extraction of the cannabis that
is later incorporated into the products. Licensees are responsible to infuse, manufacture and assemble the branded
products that are then ultimately sold to the end consumer.

DAFF INTERNATIONAL LLC
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
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Licensing Relationships
The Company's license agreements require a licensee to pay royalties to the Company based upon a fixed price per
package or as a percentage of licensee sales and apply to specific geographical territories and distribution channels in
which the licensed products may be sold. Other significant terms outlined in the licence agreements typically include
the duration of the contract, payment frequency and applicable minimum thresholds.
As the Company grows its existing brands and acquires new brands, the Company intends to increase the share of the
Company's international revenue primarily through additional licenses, partnerships and other arrangements. The
Company believes that its business model enables it to use the Company's brand management expertise to continue to
grow the Company's portfolio of brands and generate new revenue streams without significantly changing the
Company's core infrastructure. The Company believes that its business model provides numerous benefits, including:






Potential for financial upside without the investment and management risks and capital demands associated with
traditional cultivation, manufacturing and wholesale operating companies;
Diversification resulting from both broad demographic appeal and distribution through a range of distribution
channels;
Growth opportunity through expansion of existing brands into new categories and geographic areas and through
acquisitions;
Reduced regulatory risks since the cultivation, manufacturing and retail license maintenance are the
responsibilities of the Licensees; and
Reduced operational risks since inventory and other typical wholesale operating functions are the
responsibilities of the Licensees.

Licensing revenues for the year ended March 31, 2018 represented fees earned from mid-December 2017 to March 31,
2018 and were concentrated with one licensee in the State of Colorado which represented 100% of the Company's
revenue for the year. Subsequent to year end, the Company signed an additional two licensing agreements in the States
of Nevada and Maryland and expects to further reduce revenue concentration for the upcoming year.
The Company aims to maximize the value of the Company's brands by promoting, marketing and licensing the brands
through various distribution channels, including to dispensaries, wholesalers and distributors in the United States. The
Company's core strategy is to enhance and monetize the global reach of the Company's existing brands, and to pursue
additional strategic acquisitions to grow the scope of and diversify the Company's portfolio of brands.
The Company aims to acquire well-known consumer brands in the cannabis space with high potential for growth and
strong brand awareness. The Company is also seeking to diversify the Company's portfolio by evaluating the strength
of targeted brands and the expected viability and sustainability of future royalty streams. Upon the acquisition of a
brand, the Company seeks to partner with leading wholesalers and dispensaries to drive incremental value and
maximize brand equity. The Company focuses on certain key initiatives in the Company's licensing and brand
management business. These initiatives include:



Maximizing the value of the Company's existing brands by creating efficiencies, adding additional product
categories, expanding distribution and retail presence and optimizing sales through innovative marketing that
increases consumer brand awareness and loyalty;
Expanding through e-commerce channels;
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Developing international expansion through licenses, partnerships and other arrangements with leading retailers
and wholesalers outside the United States; and
Acquiring consumer brands (or the rights to such brands) with high consumer awareness, broad appeal and
applicability to a wide range of product categories.

The Company's business is designed to continually build upon and add to the value of the Company's brands through
license agreements with partners that are responsible for manufacturing and distributing the Company's licensed
products. The Company's brands are licensed for the cannabis space and the Company seeks to select licensees who
have demonstrated the ability to cultivate, manufacture, produce and sell quality products in their respective licensed
categories.
Company History and Growth Plans
The Company’s business has been built from the foundation of a leading management team consisting of cannabis and
branding industry experts and capital markets experts. The brands AmeriCanna and CannAmerica (the “Brands”) and
all related intellectual property (“IP”) were acquired by DAFF from His Way Herbs LLC (“HWH”), a cannabis
cultivation and extraction company formed by the founders of DAFF, Dan Anglin (“Anglin”) and Frank Falconer
(“Falconer”). The valuation of the Brands purchased from HWH was determined using a valuation technique based on
a value of expected revenue.
Anglin is the principal shareholder and officer of HWH. His Way Herbs is a related party to the Company.
DAFF operates as a pure play branding company using the IP acquired from HWH. Although DAFF has only been in
operational since mid-December 2017, the brands AmeriCanna and CannAmerica (the “Brands”) have been in
existence since early 2016.
The Company expects to increase its licensing revenue significantly over the coming months as the Brands in the state
of Colorado continue to sell into dispensaries. Furthermore, increased revenue is expected through expansion into
various US states, of which Maryland and Nevada have already been licensed.
The Company is exploring new territories to expand the into via licensing its existing brands. The Company is
selecting these target states on the basis of the size of the population and the legal status of medical and recreational
cannabis in each state.
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HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company entered into an assignment and assumption agreement with His
Way Herbs, LLC. (the “Agreement”) to acquire a portfolio of cannabis brands. The consideration paid was the
assumption of $5,798,665 in total liabilities in exchange for $128,869 of amounts receivable and $5,669,796 of
intangible assets. See the related party transaction disclosure below.
During the year, the Company received a 10% equity investment in a licensee in Maryland and received an option to
purchase an additional 30% equity investment for USD$2,500,000. No cash consideration was paid for the initial
investment; however, the Company will provide equipment, intellectual property, labour and technical assistance to
establish operations necessary for the licensee to obtain a license. The investment was recorded at the fair value of the
equipment purchase obligation on the statement of financial position.
SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION FOR MOST RECENT COMPLETED QUARTERS

Total revenue
Net loss
Basic and diluted loss per share

Total revenue
Net income
Basic and diluted income per
share

March 31,
2018
$
335,572
(94,095)
-

December 31,
2017
$
-

September 30,
2017
$
-

June 30,
2017
$
-

March 31,
2017
$
-

December 31,
2016
$
-

September 30,
2016
$
-

June 30,
2016
$
n/a
n/a
n/a

The company was incorporated on September 12, 2016.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
The Company has limited history and no assurances that historical performance will be indicative of future performance.
The Company is reliant on external financing to take advantage of growth opportunities and its ability to continue as a
going concern is dependent on the Company’s ability to achieve sales through existing and new license agreements.
At March 31, 2018, the Company had negative working capital of $999,904, compared to March 31, 2017 of $nil.
The net change in the Company’s cash position as at March 31, 2018 was $nil. Operating activities used cash of $369
which was primarily due to an operating income combined with changes in working capital items. Investing activities
used cash of $NIL. Financing activities generated cash of $NIL.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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Operation revenues for the year ended March 31, 2018, totaled $335,572. Operating revenues for the year ended March
31, 2018 were comprised 100% of one customer in Colorado. Subsequent to year end the Company signed licensing
agreements for two additional customers in Maryland and Nevada.
Operating expenses for the year ended March 31, 2018, totaled $243,157. Operating expenses for the year ended March
31, 2018 were mainly comprised of salaries and benefits of $202,756, advertising and promotion fees of $20,255, and
professional fees of $18,989.
The Company’s operations commenced in December 2017 and no comparative or trend discussion is relevant.
SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION FOR MOST RECENT COMPLETED YEARS
March 31,
2017
$
$nil
nil

Total revenue
Comprehensive loss

March 31,
2018
$
$335,572
$94,095

Total assets of the company totaled $5,897,587 as at March 31, 2018 compared to $nil as of March 31, 2017. The
increase in assets was primarily due to the acquisition of intellectual property from His Way Herbs LLC and commencing
operations in Colorado.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
His Way Herbs, LLC is controlled by an officer of the Company and is considered a related party.
On December 15, 2017, the Company entered into an assignment and assumption agreement with His Way Herbs, LLC.
to acquire a portfolio of cannabis brands. The consideration paid was the assumption of $5,798,665 in total liabilities in
exchange for $128,869 in amounts due from related parties and $5,669,796 of intangible assets which represented the
Cannamerica and Americanna intellectual property . Fair value of the intangible assets was determined using a multiple
of revenue.

Balance, beginning
Addition
Balance, ending

March 31, 2018
$
5,669,796
$
5,669,796

March 31, 2017
$
$
-

On March 1, 2018, the Company assumed a promissory note from His Way Herbs, LLC whereby US$ 3,650,000 was
lent from HWH Holdings LLC, a Colorado limited liability company. The note bears an interest of 9% per annum and
is due 13 months after the date on which any affiliate that directly or indirectly holds the equity interests in the Company
and becomes a reporting public Company under applicable Canadian Law. As of March 31, 2018, the balance of the
principal and accrued interest is $4,820,044 (2017 - $nil).
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On March 1, 2018, the Company assumed $837,583 in notes payable as consideration paid for intangible assets. The
amounts are non-interest bearing and due on demand.Key management personnel include those persons having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company as a whole. The Company has
determined that key management personnel consist of members of the Company’s Board of Directors and corporate
officers.
Key management personnel include those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Company as a whole. The Company has determined that key management personnel
consist of members of the Company's Board of Directors and corporate officers. The remuneration of directors and key
management personnel included in salaries and wages during the year ended March 31, 2018 was $97,134, (2017 - $nil).
As at March 31, 2018, $168,333 (2017 - $nil), is owed to the Company from His Way Herbs, LLC.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
The Company has prepared the accompanying audited annual financial statements using accounting policies consistent
with IFRS. Significant accounting policies are described in Note 3 of the Company’s annual financial statements.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual outcomes
could differ from these estimates.
The Company’s significant estimates and judgements for the year ended March 31, 2018 included:
Significant judgements
(a) Functional currency
The functional currency as determined by management of the Company is the United States Dollar (“USD”), as this is
the principal currency of the economic environment in which it operates. The presentation currency is the Canadian
Dollar.
(b) Carrying Value of Intangible Assets
Carrying value and recoverability of intangible assets – the Company has determined that intangible assets that are
capitalized may have future economic benefits and may be economically recoverable. The assessment of any
impairment of these assets is dependent upon estimates of recoverable amounts that take into account factors such as
economic and market condition and useful lives of assets.
(b) Income Taxes
Income taxes – in assessing the probability of realizing deferred tax assets, management makes estimates related to
the expectation of future taxable income, applicable tax opportunities, expected timing of reversals of existing
temporary differences and the likelihood that the tax position taken will be sustained upon examination by applicable
tax authorities. In making its assessment, management give additional weight to positive and negative evidence that
can be objectively verified.
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(c) Other significant judgments
The preparation of these financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Company to make judgments,
apart from those involving estimates, in applying accounting policies. The most significant judgments in applying the
Company’s financial statements include:



The assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and whether there are events or
conditions that may give rise to significant uncertainty; and
The fair value and classification of financial instruments;

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
All financial instruments are recorded initially at fair value. In subsequent periods, all financial instruments are measured
based on the classification adopted for the financial instruments: held to maturity, loans and receivables, fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale, fair value through profit or loss liabilities or other liabilities. Fair value through
profit or loss assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with the change in the fair value recognized
in net income during the period. Held to maturity assets, loans and receivable, and other liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Available for sale assets are subsequently measured
at fair value with the change in fair value recorded in other comprehensive income, except for equity instruments without
a quoted market price in active markets and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, which are measured at cost.
Fair Values
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were presented on the Company’s statement of financial
position as at March 31, 2018, as follows:

Cash
Trade
receivable
Due from
related parties
Accounts
payable
Notes payable

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted prices in
Significant other
Significant
active markets for
observable inputs unobservable inputs
identical instruments
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
(Level 1)
$
$
$
–
–
59,458
-

Balance,
March 31,
2018
$
59,458

168,333

-

-

168,333

(390,112)

-

-

(390,112)

(5,657,627)

-

-

(5,657,627)

The Company is exposed to one variety of financial instrument related risks. The Board of Directors approves and
monitors the risk management processes, inclusive of documented investment policies, counterparty limits, and
controlling and reporting structures.
The principal financial instruments used by the Company, from which financial instrument risk arises are includes
amounts receivable, due from related parties, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and notes payable.
The Company’s financial instruments are exposed to certain financial risks, which include the following:
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Financial risk
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, and
foreign currency risk. Risk management is carried out by the Company’s management team under policies approved
by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors also provides regular guidance for overall risk management.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfil its payment obligations. The Company’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to its accounts receivable and its due from related party balances.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company has a planning and budgeting process in place to help determine the funds required to support the
Company’s normal operating requirements on an ongoing basis.
Historically, the Company's primary source of funding has been through funding from related parties. The Company’s
access to financing is always uncertain. There can be no assurance of continued access to significant related party
financing.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in interest rate. The Company is
exposed to interest rate risk on its debt instruments and has determined there is no material exposure related to interest
rate risk.
Foreign currency risk
The Company’s functional currency is the United States Dollar and major transactions are transacted in the United States
Dollar. As of March 31, 2018, the Company had all of its financial liabilities denominated in the United States Dollar.
Management believes that the foreign exchange risk related to currency conversion is minimal and therefore does not
hedge its foreign exchange risk.
OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS
The Company has not entered into any significant off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On May 18, 2018 (the “Agreement Date”), CannAmerica Holdings Inc. acquired 100% of the Company from the
members of the Company.
The following consideration is required in connection with the transaction:







cash on closing of US$1,750,000 to the creditors of the Company as a partial settlement of the Company’s debts
(paid);
cash on closing of US$250,000 to the Company for working capital purposes (paid);
issuance of an aggregate of 35.83 common shares of CannAmerica Holdings to the members of the Company
(issued);
issuance of 15.00 common share purchase warrants of CannAmerica Holdings to the members of the Company
(issued);
issuance of 14.17 common share purchase warrants of CannAmerica Holdings to the members of the Company
conditional upon attaining certain targets (issued); and
The Company agrees to repay the remaining payables of US$2,750,000 (“Note Payable”) as follows:
o Within 150 days of the Agreement Date if CannAmerica Holdings does not complete a merger with a
publicly listed company;
o 13 months from the date CannAmerica Holdings completes a merger with a publicly listed company;
o if the publicly listed company has completed a financing post public listing of more than US$5,000,000,
the entire balance is due; and
o if a publicly listed company has completed its public listing, 50% of any financing post public listing if
less than US$5,000,000 will pay down the outstanding US$2,750,000.

The valuation was determined using valuation techniques derived from multiples of revenue.
The transaction will be accounted for as a business combination in the annual consolidated financial statements. The
purchase price allocation for the consolidated entity will be determined prior to the release of the annual audited financial
statements with reference to a professional valuation to determine the allocation between net assets and goodwill.
Upon completion of the Aquisitions, CannAmerica Holdings Corp. became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and DAFF International LLC continued to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of CannAmerica Holdings Corp. as set out in
the following organizational chart:
CannAmerica Brands Corp.

CannAmerica Holdings Corp.

DAFF International LLC
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The information provided in this report is the responsibility of management. In the preparation of these statements,
estimates are sometimes necessary to make a determination of future values for certain assets or liabilities. Management
believes such estimates have been based on careful judgments and have been properly reflected in the accompanying
financial statements.
RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
Uninsured or Uninsurable Risk
We may become subject to liability for risks against which we cannot insure or against which we may elect not to insure
due to the high cost of insurance premiums or other factors. The payment of any such liabilities would reduce the funds
available for our usual business activities. Payment of liabilities for which we do not carry insurance may have a material
adverse effect on our financial position and operations.

DESCRIPTION OF THE U.S. LEGAL CANNABIS INDUSTRY
In accordance with the Canadian Securities Administrators Staff Notice 51-352 (Revised) dated February 8, 2018 –
Issuers with U.S. Marijuana-Related Activities ("CSA Notice 51-352"), below is a discussion of the current federal and
state-level U.S. regulatory regimes in those jurisdictions where the Company is currently directly involved. In
accordance with CSA Notice 51-352, the Company will evaluate, monitor and reassess this disclosure, and any related
risks, on an ongoing basis and the same will be supplemented, amended and communicated to investors in public filings,
including in the event of government policy changes or the introduction of new or amended guidance, laws or regulations
regarding marijuana regulation.
Legal and Regulatory Matters
United States Federal Overview
In the U.S., 29 states and Washington D.C. have legalized medical marijuana, while nine states and Washington D.C.
have also legalized adult-use marijuana. At the federal level, however, cannabis currently remains a Schedule I controlled
substance under the U.S. Controlled Substance Act of 1970 (the "CSA"). Under U.S. federal law, a Schedule I drug or
substance has a high potential for abuse, no accepted medical use in the United States, and a lack of accepted safety for
the use of the drug under medical supervision. As such, the manufacture, importation, possession, use or distribution of
cannabis remains illegal under U.S. federal law. This has created a dichotomy between state and federal law, whereby
many states have elected to regulate and remove state-level penalties regarding a substance which is still illegal at the
federal level.
While technically illegal, the U.S. federal government’s approach to enforcement of such laws has, at least until recently,
trended toward non-enforcement. On August 29, 2013, the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ") issued a memorandum
known as the "Cole Memorandum" to all U.S. Attorneys’ offices (federal prosecutors). The Cole Memorandum generally
directed U.S. Attorneys not to prioritize the enforcement of federal marijuana laws against individuals and businesses
that rigorously comply with state regulatory provisions in states with strictly-regulated medical or adult-use cannabis
programs. The Cole Memorandum, while not legally binding, assisted in managing the tension between state and federal
laws concerning state-regulated marijuana businesses.
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However, on January 4, 2018 the Cole Memorandum was revoked by Attorney General Jeff Sessions. While this did not
create a change in federal law - as the Cole Memorandum was not itself law - the revocation added to the uncertainty of
U.S. federal enforcement of the CSA in states where cannabis use is regulated. Sessions also issued a one-page
memorandum known as the "Sessions Memorandum." This confirmed the rescission of the Cole Memorandum and
explained that the Cole Memorandum was "unnecessary" due to existing general enforcement guidance as set forth in
the U.S. Attorney’s Manual (the "USAM"). The USAM enforcement priorities, like those of the Cole Memorandum, are
also based on the federal government’s limited resources, and include "law enforcement priorities set by the Attorney
General," the "seriousness" of the alleged crimes, the "deterrent effect of criminal prosecution," and "the cumulative
impact of particular crimes on the community."
While the Sessions Memorandum does emphasize that marijuana is a Schedule I controlled substance and states the
statutory view that it is a "dangerous drug and that marijuana activity is a serious crime," it does not otherwise guide
U.S. Attorneys that the prosecution of marijuana-related offenses is now a DOJ priority. Furthermore, the Sessions
Memorandum explicitly describes itself as a guide to prosecutorial discretion. Such discretion is firmly in the hands of
U.S. Attorneys in deciding whether or not to prosecute marijuana-related offenses. U.S. Attorneys could individually
continue to exercise their discretion in a manner similar to that displayed under the Cole Memorandum’s guidance.
Dozens of U.S. Attorneys across the country have affirmed their commitment to proceeding in this manner, or otherwise
affirming that their view of federal enforcement priorities has not changed, although a few have displayed greater
ambivalence. In Nevada, the U.S. Attorney has yet to make any comments regarding the revocation of the Cole
Memorandum or indicate any changes to enforcement priorities.
While it is too soon to determine what prosecutorial effects will be created by the rescission of the Cole Memorandum,
a nationwide "crackdown" is unlikely. The sheer size of the cannabis industry, in addition to participation by state and
local governments and investors, suggests that a large-scale enforcement operation would more than likely create
unwanted political backlash for the DOJ and the Trump administration. It is also possible that the rescission of the Cole
Memorandum could motivate Congress to finally reconcile federal and state laws. Regardless, marijuana remains a
Schedule I controlled substance at the federal level, and neither the Cole Memorandum nor its rescission has altered that
fact. The federal government of the U.S. has always reserved the right to enforce federal law in regard to the sale and
disbursement of medical or adult-use marijuana, even if state law sanctioned such sale and disbursement. From a purely
legal perspective, the criminal risk today remains identical to the risk on January 3, 2018. It remains unclear whether the
risk of enforcement has been altered.
Additionally, under U.S. federal law, it may potentially be a violation of federal money laundering statutes for financial
institutions to take any proceeds from the sale of marijuana or any other Schedule I controlled substance. Canadian banks
are likewise hesitant to deal with cannabis companies, due to the uncertain legal and regulatory framework of the
industry. Banks and other financial institutions, particularly those that are federally chartered in the U.S., could be
prosecuted and possibly convicted of money laundering for providing services to cannabis businesses.
Despite these laws, the U.S. Department of the Treasury’s Financial Crimes Enforcement Network ("FinCEN") issued
a memorandum on February 14, 2014 (the "FinCEN Memorandum") outlining the pathways for financial institutions to
bank state-sanctioned marijuana businesses in compliance with federal enforcement priorities. The FinCEN
Memorandum echoed the enforcement priorities of the Cole Memorandum. Under these guidelines, financial institutions
must submit a Suspicious Activity Report ("SAR") in connection with all marijuana-related banking activities by any
client of such financial institution, in accordance with federal money laundering laws. These marijuana-related SARs
are divided into three categories – marijuana limited, marijuana priority, and marijuana terminated – based on the
financial institution’s belief that the business in question follows state law, is operating outside of compliance with state
law, or where the banking relationship has been terminated, respectively. On the same day as the FinCEN Memorandum
was published, the DOJ issued a memorandum (the "2014 Cole Memo") directing prosecutors to apply the enforcement
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priorities of the Cole Memorandum in determining whether to charge individuals or institutions with crimes related to
financial transactions involving the proceeds of marijuana-related conduct. The 2014 Cole Memo has been rescinded as
of January 4, 2018, along with the Cole Memorandum, removing guidance that enforcement of applicable financial
crimes against state-compliant actors was not a DOJ priority.
However, Attorney General Sessions’ revocation of the Cole Memorandum and the 2014 Cole Memo has not affected
the status of the FinCEN Memorandum, nor has the Department of the Treasury given any indication that it intends to
rescind the FinCEN Memorandum itself. Though it was originally intended for the 2014 Cole Memo and the FinCEN
Memorandum to work in tandem, the FinCEN Memorandum appears to be a standalone document which explicitly lists
the eight enforcement priorities originally cited in the Cole Memorandum. As such, the FinCEN Memorandum remains
intact, indicating that the Department of the Treasury and FinCEN intend to continue abiding by its guidance. However,
in the United States, it is difficult for cannabis-based businesses to open and maintain a bank account with any
bank or other financial institution.
In the U.S., a bill has been tabled in Congress to grant banks and other financial institutions immunity from federal
criminal prosecution for servicing marijuana-related businesses if the underlying marijuana business follows state law.
This bill has not been passed and there can be no assurance with that it will be passed in its current form or at all. In both
Canada and the U.S., transactions involving banks and other financial institutions are both difficult and unpredictable
under the current legal and regulatory landscape. Legislative changes could help to reduce or eliminate these challenges
for companies in the cannabis space and would improve the efficiency of both significant and minor financial
transactions.
Although the Cole Memorandum and 2014 Cole Memo have been rescinded, one legislative safeguard for the medical
marijuana industry remains in place: Congress has used a rider provision in the FY 2015, 2016 and 2017 Consolidated
Appropriations Acts (currently the "Rohrabacher-Farr Amendment") to prevent the federal government from using
congressionally appropriated funds to enforce federal marijuana laws against regulated medical marijuana actors
operating in compliance with state and local law. Since October 1, 2017, the U.S. federal government has been
temporarily appropriated under a series of continuing budget resolutions. Because the 2017 Consolidated Appropriations
Act has been extended until September 2018 under a continuing budget resolution, the Rohrabacher-Farr Amendment
is still in effect.
Despite the legal, regulatory, and political obstacles the marijuana industry currently faces, the industry has continued
to grow. It was anticipated that the federal government would eventually repeal the federal prohibition on cannabis and
thereby leave the states to decide for themselves whether to permit regulated cannabis cultivation, production and sale,
just as states are free today to decide policies governing the distribution of alcohol or tobacco.
Given current political trends, however, these developments are considered unlikely in the near-term. As an industry
best practice, despite the recent rescission of the Cole Memorandum, the Company intends to abide by the following to
ensure compliance with the guidance provided by the Cole Memorandum:



ensure that its operations are compliant with all licensing requirements as established by the applicable
state, county, municipality, town, township, borough, and other political/administrative divisions; and
ensure that its cannabis related activities adhere to the scope of the licensing obtained.

In addition, the Company may conduct background checks to ensure that the principals and management are of good
character, and have not been involved with other illegal drugs, engaged in illegal activity or activities involving violence,
or use of firearms in cultivation, manufacturing or distribution of cannabis. The Company will also conduct ongoing
reviews of the activities of its cannabis businesses, the premises on which they operate and the policies and procedures
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that are related to possession of cannabis or cannabis products outside of the licensed premises, including the cases
where such possession is permitted by regulation.
U.S. Legal Advice
The Company is in compliance with U.S. state law and the related licensing framework. The Company uses reasonable
commercial efforts to confirm, through the advice of its U.S. counsel, through the monitoring and review of its business
practices, and through regular monitoring of changes to U.S. Federal enforcement priorities, that its business is in
compliance with applicable licensing requirements and the regulatory frameworks enacted. The Company is not aware
of the receipt of noncompliance orders, citations or notices of violation, that may have an impact on such entities licenses,
business activities or operations.
Regulatory Risks
The U.S. cannabis industry is highly regulated, highly competitive and evolving rapidly. As such, new risks may emerge,
and management may not be able to predict all such risks or be able to predict how such risks may impact on actual
results.
Participants in the U.S. cannabis industry will incur ongoing costs and obligations related to regulatory compliance.
Failure to comply with regulations may result in additional costs for corrective measures, penalties or restrictions of
operations. In addition, changes in regulations, more vigorous enforcement thereof or other unanticipated events could
require extensive changes to operations, increased compliance costs or give rise to material liabilities, which could have
a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations and financial condition of the Company. Further, the
Company may be subject to a variety of claims and lawsuits. Adverse outcomes in some or all of these claims may result
in significant monetary damages or injunctive relief that could adversely affect its ability to conduct its business. The
litigation and other claims are subject to inherent uncertainties and management’s view of these matters may change in
the future. A material adverse impact on the Company’s financial statements also could occur for the period in which
the effect of an unfavorable final outcome becomes probable and reasonably estimable.
The U.S. cannabis industry is subject to extensive controls and regulations, which may significantly affect the financial
condition of market participants. The marketability of any product may be affected by numerous factors that are beyond
the control of the Company and which cannot be predicted, such as changes to government regulations, including those
relating to taxes and other government levies which may be imposed. Changes in government levies, including taxes,
could reduce the Company’s earnings and could make future growth uneconomic. The industry is also subject to
numerous legal challenges, which may significantly affect the financial condition of the Company and which cannot be
reliably predicted.
The Company expects to derive most of its revenues from the U.S. cannabis industry, which industry is illegal under
U.S. federal law (other than its business related to high CBD/low THC products, known as "hemp"). As a result of the
conflicting views between state legislatures and the federal government regarding cannabis, cannabis businesses in the
U.S. are subject to inconsistent legislation and regulation. The Company is expected to remain focused in those U.S.
states that have legalized the medical and/or adult-use of cannabis. Almost half of the U.S. states have enacted legislation
to legalize and regulate the sale and use of medical cannabis without limits on THC, while other states have legalized
and regulate the sale and use of medical cannabis with strict limits on the levels of THC. However, the U.S. federal
government has not enacted similar legislation and the cultivation, sale and use of cannabis remains illegal under federal
law pursuant to the CSA. The federal government of the U.S. has specifically reserved the right to enforce federal law
in regard to the sale and disbursement of medical or adult-use use marijuana even if state law sanctioned such sale and
disbursement. It is presently unclear whether the U.S. federal government intends to enforce federal laws relating to
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cannabis where the conduct at issue is legal under applicable state law. This risk was further heightened by the revocation
of the Cole Memorandum in January 2018.
Further, there can be no assurance that state laws legalizing and regulating the sale and use of cannabis will not be
repealed or overturned, or that local governmental authorities will not limit the applicability of state laws within their
respective jurisdictions. It is also important to note that local and city ordinances may strictly limit and/or restrict the
distribution of cannabis in a manner that will make it extremely difficult or impossible to transact business in the cannabis
industry. If the U.S. federal government begins to enforce federal laws relating to cannabis in states where the sale and
use of cannabis is currently legal, or if existing state laws are repealed or curtailed, then the Company’s business would
be materially and adversely affected. U.S. federal actions against any individual or entity engaged in the marijuana
industry or a substantial repeal of marijuana related legislation could adversely affect the Company. The
Company’s involvement in the medical and adult-use cannabis industry is illegal under the applicable federal laws of
the United States and may be illegal under other applicable law. There can be no assurances the federal government of
the United States or other jurisdictions will not seek to enforce the applicable laws against the Company. The
consequences of such enforcement would be materially adverse to the Company and the Company’s business and could
result in the forfeiture or seizure of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets.
Nature of the Company’s Involvement in the U.S. Cannabis Industry
Currently, the Company is engaged in the branding and procurement for companies that manufacture and distribute
cannabis in the medical and adult-use cannabis marketplace in Colorado. At March 31, 2018, 100% of the Company's
assets and revenues are directly attributable to the medial and adult-use cannabis market in Colorado.
As previously stated, violations of any federal laws and regulations could result in significant fines, penalties,
administrative sanctions, convictions or settlements arising from civil proceedings conducted by either the federal
government or private citizens, or criminal charges, including, but not limited to, disgorgement of profits, cessation of
business activities or divestiture. This could have a material adverse effect on the Company, including its reputation and
ability to conduct business, the listing of its securities on any stock exchange, its financial position, operating results,
profitability or liquidity or the market price of its publicly traded shares. In addition, it is difficult for the Company to
estimate the time or resources that would be needed for the investigation of any such matters or its final resolution
because, in part, the time and resources that may be needed are dependent on the nature and extent of any information
requested by the applicable authorities involved, and such time or resources could be substantial. The approach to the
enforcement of cannabis laws may be subject to change or may not proceed as previously outlined.
The Company’s involvement in the U.S. cannabis industry will be (i) only in those states that have enacted laws
legalizing cannabis; and (ii) only in those state's where the Company can comply with state (and local) laws and
regulations and has the licenses, permits or authorizations to properly carry on each element of its business.
The Company will continue to monitor, evaluate and re-assess the regulatory framework in each state in which it may
hold license, and the federal laws applicable thereto, on an ongoing basis; and will update its continuous disclosure
regarding government policy changes or new or amended guidance, laws or regulations regarding cannabis in the U.S.
Anti-Money Laundering Laws and Regulations
The Company is subject to a variety of laws and regulations in Canada and the U.S. that involve money laundering,
financial recordkeeping and proceeds of crime, including the U.S. Currency and Foreign Transactions Reporting Act of
1970 (commonly known as the Bank Secrecy Act), as amended by Title III of the Uniting and Strengthening America
by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (USA PATRIOT Act), the
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Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act (Canada), as amended and the rules and regulations
thereunder, and any related or similar rules, regulations or guidelines, issued, administered or enforced by governmental
authorities in the U.S. and Canada. Further, under U.S. federal law, banks or other financial institutions that provide a
cannabis business with a checking account, debit or credit card, small business loan, or any other service could be found
guilty of money laundering, aiding and abetting, or conspiracy.
The Company’s activities, and any proceeds thereof, may be considered proceeds of crime due to the fact that cannabis
remains illegal federally in the U.S. This may restrict the ability of the Company to declare or pay dividends, effect other
distributions or subsequently repatriate such funds back to Canada. Furthermore, while the Company has no current
intention to declare or pay dividends on its Common Shares in the foreseeable future, the Company may decide or be
required to suspend declaring or paying dividends without advance notice and for an indefinite period of time.
Ability to Access Private and Public Capital
The Company has historically relied entirely on access to private capital in order to support its continuing operations,
and the Company expects on a go forward basis to rely almost exclusively on the capital markets to finance its business
in the U.S. legal cannabis industry. Although such business carries a higher degree of risk, and despite the legal standing
of cannabis businesses pursuant to U.S. federal laws, Canadian based issuers involved in the U.S. legal cannabis industry
have been successful in raising substantial amounts of private and public financing. However, there is no assurance the
Company will be successful, in whole or in part, in raising funds, particularly if the U.S. federal authorities change their
position toward enforcing the CSA. Further, access to funding from U.S. residents may be limited due their unwillingness
to be associated with activities which violate U.S. federal laws.
Canadian Securities Regulatory Matters
The Company’s involvement in the U.S. cannabis industry may become the subject of heightened scrutiny by regulators,
stock exchanges, clearing agencies and other authorities in Canada. It has been reported in Canada that the Canadian
Depository for Securities Limited is considering a policy shift that would see its subsidiary, CDS Clearing and
Depository Services Inc. ("CDS"), refuse to settle trades for cannabis issuers that have investments in the U.S. CDS is
Canada’s central securities depository, clearing and settling trades in the Canadian equity, fixed income and money
markets. The TMX Group, the owner and operator of CDS, subsequently issued a statement on August 17, 2017
reaffirming that there is no CDS ban on the clearing of securities of issuers with cannabis-related activities in the U.S.,
despite media reports to the contrary, and that the TMX Group was working with regulators to arrive at a solution that
will clarify this matter, which would be communicated at a later time. If such a ban were to be implemented, it would
have a material adverse effect on the ability of holders of Common Shares to make and settle trades. In particular, the
Common Shares would become highly illiquid as until an alternative was implemented, investors would have no ability
to effect a trade of the Common Shares through the facilities of a stock exchange.
On February 8, 2018, following discussions with the Canadian Securities Administrators and recognized Canadian
securities exchanges, the TMX Group announced the signing of a Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with
Aequitas NEO Exchange Inc., the CSE, the Toronto Stock Exchange, and the TSX Venture Exchange. The MOU
outlines the parties’ understanding of Canada’s regulatory framework applicable to the rules, procedures, and regulatory
oversight of the exchanges and CDS as it relates to issuers with cannabis-related activities in the U.S.
The MOU confirms, with respect to the clearing of listed securities, that CDS relies on the exchanges to review the
conduct of listed issuers. As a result, there is no CDS ban on the clearing of securities of issuers with cannabis related
activities in the U.S. However, there can be no guarantee that this approach to regulation will continue in the future. If
such a ban were to be implemented, it would have a material adverse effect on the ability of holders of Common Shares
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to make and settle trades. In particular, the Common Shares would become highly illiquid as until an alternative was
implemented, investors would have no ability to effect a trade of the Common Shares through the facilities of the
applicable stock exchange.
Heightened Scrutiny
For the reasons set forth above, the Company’s activities in the U.S. may become the subject of heightened scrutiny by
regulators, stock exchanges and other authorities in Canada. As a result, the Company may be subject to significant
direct and indirect interaction with public officials. There can be no assurance that this heightened scrutiny will not in
turn lead to the imposition of certain restrictions on the Company’s activities in the U.S. or any other jurisdiction, in
addition to those described herein.
Change in Laws, Regulations and Guidelines
The Company’s proposed business operations will directly and indirectly be affected by a variety of laws, regulations
and guidelines relating to the manufacture, management, transportation, storage and disposal of cannabis, but also
including laws and regulations relating to consumablef products health and safety, the conduct of operations and the
protection of the environment. These laws and regulations are broad in scope and subject to evolving interpretations,
which could require participants to incur substantial costs associated with compliance or alter certain aspects of its
business plans. In addition, violations of these laws, or allegations of such violations, could disrupt certain aspects of
the Company’s business plans and result in a material adverse effect on certain aspects of its operations.
Unfavourable Publicity or Consumer Perception
The legal cannabis industry in the U.S. is at an early stage of its development. Cannabis has been, and will continue to
be, a controlled substance for the foreseeable future. Consumer perceptions regarding legality, morality, consumption,
safety, efficacy and quality of cannabis are mixed and evolving. Consumer perception can be significantly influenced
by scientific research or findings, regulatory investigations, litigation, media attention and other publicity regarding the
consumption of cannabis products. There can be no assurance that future scientific research, findings, regulatory
proceedings, litigation, media attention or other research findings or publicity will be favourable to the cannabis market
or any particular product, or consistent with earlier publicity. Future research reports, findings, regulatory opinion and
support for medical and adult-use cannabis use has traditionally been inconsistent and varies from jurisdiction to
jurisdiction. While public opinion and support appears to be rising for legalizing medical and adult-use cannabis, it
remains a controversial issue subject to differing opinions surrounding the level of legalization (for example, medical
marijuana as opposed to legalization in general). The Company’s ability to gain and increase market acceptance of its
business activities may require substantial expenditures on proceedings, litigation, media attention or other publicity that
are perceived as less favourable than, or that question, earlier research reports, findings or publicity could have a material
adverse effect on the demand for cannabis and on the business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows
of the Company. Further, adverse publicity reports or other media attention regarding cannabis in general or associating
the consumption of cannabis with illness or other negative effects or events, could have such a material adverse effect.
Public investor relations, strategic relationships and marketing initiatives. There can be no assurance that such initiatives
will be successful, and their failure may have an adverse effect on the Company.
Local, state and federal laws and regulations governing marijuana for medicinal and recreational purposes are broad in
scope and are subject to evolving interpretations, which could require the Company to incur substantial costs associated
with bringing the Company’s operations into compliance. In addition, violations of these laws, or allegations of such
violations, could disrupt the Company’s operations and result in a material adverse effect on its financial performance.
It is beyond the Company’s scope to predict the nature of any future change to the existing laws, regulations, policies,
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interpretations or applications, nor can the Company determine what effect such changes, when and if promulgated,
could have on the Company’s business.
Regulatory Risks
The activities and products of the Company are subject to regulation by governmental authorities, including, the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration, and others. Achievement of the Company’s business objectives are contingent, in part,
upon compliance with regulatory requirements enacted by these governmental authorities and obtaining all regulatory
approvals, where necessary, for the sale of its products. The Company cannot predict the time required to secure all
appropriate regulatory approvals for its products, or the extent of testing and documentation that may be required by
governmental authorities. Any delays in obtaining, or failure to obtain regulatory approvals would significantly delay
the development of markets and products and could have a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations
and financial condition of the Company.
Limited Operating History
The Company is subject to many of the risks common to early-stage enterprises, including under-capitalization, cash
shortages, limitations with respect to personnel, financial, and other resources and lack of revenues. There is no
assurance that the Company will be successful in achieving a return on shareholders’ investment and the likelihood of
success must be considered in light of the early stage of operations.
Reliance on Management
The success of the Company is dependent upon the ability, expertise, judgment, discretion and good faith of its senior
management. While employment agreements are customarily used as a primary method of retaining the services of key
employees, these agreements cannot assure the continued services of such employees. Any loss of the services of such
individuals could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results or financial condition.
Additional Financing
In order to execute the anticipated growth strategy, the Company will require some additional equity and/or debt
financing to support on-going operations, to undertake capital expenditures or to undertake acquisitions or other business
combination transactions. There can be no assurance that additional financing will be available when needed or on terms
which are acceptable. The Company’s inability to raise financing to support on-going operations or to fund capital
expenditures or acquisitions could limit its growth and may have a material adverse effect upon future profitability.
If additional funds are raised through further issuances of equity or convertible debt securities, existing shareholders
could suffer significant dilution, and any new equity securities issued could have rights, preferences and privileges
superior to those of holders of Common Shares. Any debt financing secured in the future could involve restrictive
covenants relating to capital raising activities and other financial and operational matters, which may make it more
difficult for the Company to obtain additional capital and to pursue business opportunities, including potential
acquisitions.
The cannabis industries are highly competitive
There is potential that the Company will face intense competition from other companies, some of which can be expected
to have longer operating histories and more financial resources and manufacturing and marketing experience than the

17

DAFF INTERNATIONAL LLC
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(All amounts expressed in Cdn dollars, unless otherwise stated)
Company. Increased competition by larger and better financed competitors could materially and adversely affect the
business.
Operating Risk and Insurance Coverage
The Company carries insurance to protect its assets, operations and employees. While the Company believes insurance
coverage can adequately address all material risks to which it may be exposed and is adequate and customary in its
current state of operations, such insurance is subject to coverage limits and exclusions and may not be available for the
risks and hazards to which the Company is exposed. In addition, no assurance can be given that such insurance will be
adequate to cover the Company’s liabilities or will be generally available in the future or, if available, that premiums
will be commercially justifiable. If the Company were to incur substantial liability and such damages were not covered
by insurance or were in excess of policy limits, or if the Company were to incur such liability at a time when it is not
able to obtain liability insurance, its business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely
affected.
Conflicts of Interest Risk
Certain of our directors and officers are also directors and operators in other companies. Situations may arise in
connection with potential acquisitions or opportunities where the other interests of these directors and officers conflict
with or diverge from our interests. In accordance with the BCBCA, directors who have a material interest in any person
who is a party to a material contract or a proposed material contract are required, subject to certain exceptions, to disclose
that interest and generally abstain from voting on any resolution to approve the contract. In addition, the directors and
the officers are required to act honestly and in good faith with a view to our best interests. However, in conflict of interest
situations, our directors and officers may owe the same duty to another company and will need to balance their competing
interests with their duties to us.
Circumstances (including with respect to future corporate opportunities) may arise that may be resolved in a manner
that is unfavourable to us.
Key Personnel Risk
The Company’s success will depend on its directors and officers to develop the business and manage operations, and on
its ability to attract and retain key quality assurance, scientific, sales, public relations and marketing staff or consultants.
The loss of any key person or the inability to find and retain new key persons could have a material adverse effect on
the business. Competition for qualified technical, sales and marketing staff, as well as officers and directors can be
intense and no assurance can be provided that the Company will be able to attract or retain key personnel in the future,
which may adversely impact operations.
Global Economy Risk
The ongoing economic slowdown and downturn of global capital markets has generally made the raising of capital by
equity or debt financing more difficult. We will be dependent upon the capital markets to raise additional financing in
the future, while we establish a client base for our product. Access to financing has been negatively impacted by the
ongoing global economic downturn. As such, we are subject to liquidity risks in meeting our development and future
operating cost requirements in instances where cash positions are unable to be maintained or appropriate financing is
unavailable. These factors may impact our ability to raise equity or obtain loans and other credit facilities in the future
and on terms favourable to us and our management. If uncertain market conditions persist, our ability to raise capital
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could be jeopardized, which could have an adverse impact on our operations and the trading price of our Common Shares
on the Exchange.
Dividend Risk
We have not paid dividends in the past and do not anticipate paying dividends in the near future. We expect to retain
our earnings to finance further growth and, when appropriate, retire debt.
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BACKGROUND
The following management discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the results of operations and financial condition of
CannAmerica Brands Corp. (“CannAmerica”) should be read in conjunction with the accompanying unaudited
condensed interim consolidated financial statements for the three months ended June 30, 2018 of CannAmerica Brands
Corp. and the audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018, and accompanying notes thereto for the
CannAmerica , CannAmerica Holdings Corp. and DAFF International LLC. The unaudited condensed interim
consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of CannAmerica and its legal subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Company”).
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and all
amounts are presented in Canadian dollars unless noted otherwise.
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARDING LOOKING STATEMENTS
This MD&A contains certain statements that may constitute “forward‐looking statements”. Forward‐looking statements
include but are not limited to, statements regarding future expansion, business goals, anticipated business developments
and the timing thereof, regulatory compliance, sufficiency of working capital, business and financing plans, and other
forward-looking statements including but not limited to information concerning intentions, plans and future actions of
the Company.
In connection with the forward-looking information contained in this Management Discussion and Analysis, the
Company has made assumptions about the Company’s ability to expand operations; profitably license its brands and
operate in the future without any regulation or law imposed which would prevent the Company from operating its
business. The Company has also assumed that no significant events occur outside of the Company's normal course of
business.
The forward-looking information in this MD&A reflects the current expectations, assumptions and/or beliefs of the
Company based on information currently available to the Company. Although the Company believes that such
statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. Forward‐looking
statements are typically identified by words such as: believe, expect, anticipate, intend, estimate, postulate and similar
expressions, or which by their nature refer to future events. The Company cautions that any forward‐looking statements
by the Company are not guarantees of future performance, and that actual results may differ materially from those in
forward looking statements as a result of various factors, including, but not limited to, the Company’s ability to continue
its projected growth, to raise the necessary capital or to be fully able to implement its business strategies.

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND OVERALL PERFORMANCE
CannAmerica Brands Corp. (formerly Transform Capital Corp.) (“CannAmerica”) was incorporated in the province of
British Columbia on March 13, 2017, under the Business Corporations Act of British Columbia. CannAmerica’s head
office is located at Suite 3123, 595 Burrard Street, Three Bentall Centre, Vancouver, British Columbia, V7X 1J1, and
its registered and records office is located at 10th Floor, 595 Howe Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 2T5.
On May 30, 2018, CannAmerica entered into an agreement with the shareholders of CannAmerica Holdings Corp. (
“CannAmerica Holdings”) whereby 100% of the common shares and warrants of CannAmerica Holdings were
exchanged for common shares of CannAmerica (“CannAmerica Holdings Acquisition”) (Note 3). The CannAmerica
Holdings Acquisition is a reverse takeover of a non-operating company whereby CannAmerica Holdings, the legal
subsidiary, has been determined to have acquired control of CannAmerica and to be the acquirer for accounting purposes.
In accordance with the principles of reverse takeover accounting, CannAmerica will report the operations of
CannAmerica Holdings and its related historical comparatives as its continuing business, except for the legal capital
shown in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and in Note 13, which have been adjusted to
reflect the share capital of CannAmerica.
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The unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements are a continuation of the consolidated financial
statement of CannAmerica Holdings for the year ended March 31, 2018. The number of the issued and outstanding
shares of the Company was retroactively adjusted to the share exchange ratio of 200,000 shares to 1 share of
CannAmerica Holdings (Note 3).
CannAmerica Holdings Corp. was incorporated in the Province of British Columbia on December 11, 2017, under the
Business Corporations Act of British Columbia and was formed to identify an appropriate business for acquisition or
investment. CannAmerica Holdings completed a business combination (Note 4) on May 18, 2018 and the Company now
owns a portfolio of brands in the medical and recreational cannabis space in the United States through its wholly owned
subsidiary DAFF International LLC. The Company's principal business is to build on and maximize the value of its
brands by promoting, marketing and licensing these brands through various distribution channels, including dispensaries,
wholesalers and distributors. The Company currently has three brand licensing agreements with licensees in the states
of Colorado, Nevada and Maryland. The. The Company has applied for a public listing (a “Public Listing”) on the
Canadian Securities Exchange (the “CSE”).
In December 2017, DAFF acquired the brands AmeriCanna and CannAmerica (the “Brands”) and all related
intellectual property (“IP”) from His Way Herbs LLC (“HWH”), a cannabis cultivation and extraction company. His
Way Herbs is a related party to the Company.

Brands and Licensing Relationships
The Company owns two brands in the cannabis space, CannAmerica and AmeriCanna, which are licensed to
manufacturers and wholesale licensees in the United States. The brands AmeriCanna and CannAmerica (the “Brands”)
have been in existence since early 2016.
Currently, the Company has three brand licensing agreements with licensees in the states of Colorado, Nevada and
Maryland. The Company generates revenue through license agreements whereby licensees are granted rights to utilize
the brand names and related intellectual property. Licensees are responsible for assembling the branded products and
infusing them with cannabis derivatives that are then ultimately sold to the end consumer. The Company does not
cultivate, extract or infuse cannabis for or into products.
The Company's license agreements require a licensee to pay royalties to the Company based upon a fixed price per
package or as a percentage of licensee sales and apply to specific geographical territories and distribution channels in
which the licensed products may be sold. Other significant terms outlined in the licence agreements typically include
the duration of the contract, payment frequency and applicable minimum thresholds.
The Company intends to expand primarily through additional licenses, partnerships and other arrangements. The
Company aims to acquire additional well-known consumer brands in the cannabis space with high potential for growth
and strong brand awareness and select licensees who have demonstrated the ability to cultivate, manufacture, produce
and sell quality products in their respective licensed categories.
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HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Reverse Takeover Transaction
On May 30, 2018 (the “Agreement Date”), CannAmerica entered into an agreement with the shareholders of
CannAmerica Holdings Corp. (“CannAmerica Holdings”) whereby 100% of the common shares and warrants of
CannAmerica Holdings (the “CannAmerica Holdings Acquisition”) were exchanged for common shares of
CannAmerica.
The aggregate consideration for the CannAmerica Holdings Acquisition was comprised of:
(i) 29,166,000 common shares (200,000 shares of CannAmerica in exchange for 1 share of CannAmerica
Holdings)
(ii) 2,833,333 common shares contingent on attaining certain earning targets; and
(iii) 3,000,000 warrants with an exercise price of $0.50 per share exercisable for a period 24 months following
close of a Public Listing.
The CannAmerica Holdings Acquisition is a reverse takeover of a non-operating company whereby CannAmerica
Holdings, the legal subsidiary, has been determined to have acquired control of CannAmerica on the Agreement
Date and to be the acquirer for accounting purposes. The transaction does not constitute a business combination as
CannAmerica, prior to the Acquisition, did not meet the definition of a business under IFRS. Accordingly, the
CannAmerica Holdings Acquisition has been accounted for as an acquisition by CannAmerica Holdings of
CannAmerica’s net assets. In accordance with the principles of reverse takeover accounting, CannAmerica will
report the operations of CannAmerica Holdings and its related historical comparatives as its continuing business,
except for the legal capital shown in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and in Note
13, which have been adjusted to reflect the share capital of CannAmerica.
The acquisition consideration deemed to have been transferred by CannAmerica Holdings, the legal subsidiary, is
in the form of equity instruments issued by CannAmerica, the legal parent company which comprises the
outstanding equity instrument of CannAmerica immediately prior to the reverse takeover. The acquisition date fair
value of the deemed consideration was estimated to be $0.20 per share using the latest private placement completed
by CannAmerica. The difference between the consideration given to acquire CannAmerica, plus the value of
professional fees on the transaction and the net asset value of CannAmerica is recorded as a listing expense to net
loss. The fair value of the consideration was allocated to the deemed equity instruments as follows:

As at May 30,2018
$
1,472,000

Consideration – shares
Cash
Accounts receivable

980,563
2,500,000
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Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Share subscriptions
Total net assets acquired
Listing expense

35,000
(77,758)
(2,192,000)
1,245,805
226,195

Business Combination and Goodwill
On May 18, 2018 (the “DAFF Agreement Date”), CannAmerica Holdings entered into an agreement with the
shareholders of DAFF to acquire 100% of the common shares of DAFF (the “DAFF Acquisition”).
The aggregate consideration for the DAFF Acquisition was comprised of:
(i) $2,255,000 (US$1,750,000) payable to the creditors of DAFF as a partial settlement of DAFF’s debts;
(ii) $322,000 (US$250,000) to DAFF for working capital purposes;
(iii) 35.83 common shares of CannAmerica Holdings;
(iv) 15 warrants of CannAmerica Holdings;
(v) 14.17 shares of CannAmerica Holdings issuable conditional upon attaining certain targets; and
(vi) $3,544,000 (US$2,750,000) payable to the creditors of DAFF for the remaining settlement of DAFF’s debts (the
“Note Payable”) as follows:
a. Within 150 days of the DAFF Agreement Date if CannAmerica Holdings does not complete a merger
with a publicly listed company (“Merged Company”);
b. If CannAmerica Holdings has completed a merger with a publicly listed company, the due date is
extended to 13 months from the date of a public listing of the Merged Company;
c. If the publicly listed company has completed a financing post public listing of more than US$5,000,000,
the entire balance is due; and
d. If a publicly listed company has completed its public listing, 50% of any financing post public listing if
less than US$5,000,000 will pay down the outstanding Note Payable.
The Company has determined that the DAFF Acquisition is a business combination as the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed constitute a business. The transaction was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting whereby
the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed were recorded at their estimated fair value at the measurement date of
May 18, 2018.
The allocation of the purchase price in the DAFF Acquisition to the total fair value of net assets acquired is as follows:
$
Fair value of net assets acquired
Cash
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Investment
Equipment
Intangible assets

26,559
142,593
153,525
54,015
8,136
5,645,241
6,030,069

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

(455,807)
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Notes payable
Identifiable net liabilities assumed
Goodwill

(5,669,870)
(95,608)
1,716,597
1,620,989
$

Consideration paid
Fair value of 35.83 common shares of the Company
Fair value of 15 common share purchase warrants of the Company

1,433,200
187,789
1,620,989

The warrants have an estimated fair value of $187,789, calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
assuming the warrants will expire 24 months following the date the warrants were granted, an average risk-free interest
rate of 1.88%, an expected dividend rate of 0%, and an average expected annual volatility of 100%. Warrants issued
pursuant to the DAFF Acquisition were exchanged for 3,000,000 warrants of CannAmerica as part of the CannAmerica
Holdings Acquisition.
The accounting for the DAFF Acquisition business combination has not yet been finalized and the Company is reporting
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is not complete. These provisional amounts may be adjusted
during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities may be recognized, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognized at that date.
DAFF operations
In April 2018, DAFF signed two new brand licensing agreements in the states of Colorado and Nevada. For the year
ended March 31, 2018, DAFF revenues were concentrated with only one licensee and with the addition of the two
additional agreements, the Company now has three licensees operating in Maryland, Colorado and Nevada. Revenue
for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 includes fees earned from all three licensees. The Company expects to achieve
revenue growth from existing licensees and through obtaining additional license agreements in the future.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the three months ended June 30, 2018
Pursuant to the reverse takeover transaction described above, the CannAmerica will report the operations of
CannAmerica Holdings and its related historical comparatives as its continuing business. CannAmerica Holdings was
incorporated on December 11, 2017 and accordingly there are no historical comparatives for the quarter.
For the three months ended June 30, 2018, the Company had a net loss of $1,104,139.
The key highlights for the period include:
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License revenue of $231,275 from three licensees located in Maryland, Colorado and Nevada for the period of
the DAFF Acquisition covering May 18, 2018 to June 30, 2018.



License operations gross margin of 53%



Listing expense of $226,195 which is a one-time expense arising as a result of the reverse takeover transaction
of CannAmerica Brands Corp. by CannAmerica Holdings Corp.



Professional fees of $288,737 which include legal, accounting and consulting fees incurred in connection with
the prospective public listing, reverse takeover and business combination.



Salaries and benefits of $72,262 paid to the CEO, CFO, COO and operating staff.



Interest expense of $23,704 accrued on the outstanding promissory note payable.



Advertising and promotion of $22,448 associated with the CannAmerica and Americanna brands and licensing
thereof.

CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
For the three months ended June 30, 2018, cash flows used in operating activities amounted to $95,345. Cash flows
resulted from a net loss of $1,104,139 which were partially offset by changes in working capital balances of $188,402
and non-cash items of $820,392.
CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
For the three months ended June 30, 2018, cash flows provided by investing activities amounted to $992,343. Cash
flows resulted primarily from the DAFF business combination and the reverse takeover of CannAmerica Brands by
CannAmerica Holdings.
CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
For the three months ended June 30, 2018, cash flows provided by financing activities amounted to $83,686. Cash
inflows resulted from subscription proceeds received.
SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION FOR MOST RECENT COMPLETED QUARTERS
CannAmerica Holdings was incorporated on December 11, 2017.

Total revenue
Net loss
Basic and diluted income per
share

June 30,
2018
$
$231,275
($1,104,139)
(0.05)
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
At June 30, 2018, the Company had working capital of $1,205,369, compared to March 31, 2017 of $110,000. This
working capital is sufficient to fund operations and working capital requirements for the next twelve months. The
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern over the long term is dependent on the Company’s ability to achieve
positive operating cash flow through existing and new license agreements. The Company is reliant on external
financing to take advantage of growth opportunities. The ability of the Company to generate sufficient operating cash
flow or obtain debt or equity financing in the future is a material assumption. A market downturn or event which
impacts the demand for or ability to supply cannabis infused products would materially affect the Company’s ability to
generate sufficient amounts of cash. There is no assurance that the business will be profitable or that the Company will
be successful in obtaining future financing.
The Company has limited history and no assurances that historical performance will be indicative of future performance.
Contractual obligations due within the next five years are as follows:
Contractual Obligations
Current liabilities
Notes payable (1)

Payments Due by Period
Total
$341,352
$3,819,622

Less than 1 year
$341,352

1-3 years
$3,819,622

Note 1 - The financial statements for the Company as at June 30, 2018 disclose notes payable totaling $3,645,396. These notes
are due 13 months after the date the Company becomes a reporting issuer. The Company expects to generate operating cash flow
to repay the notes. In the event operating cash flow is not sufficient to repay the notes, the company will require and seek additional
financing through debt or equity issuances.

The Company does not have any commitments for capital expenditures as at June 30, 2018.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All related party transactions have occurred in the normal course of operations. Related party transactions occur and are
recorded at the amounts agreed between the parties.
For the three months ended June 30, 2018, the Company was charged $14,011 in salaries (2017: $nil) by the Chairman
and CEO of the Company.
For the three months ended June 30, 2018, the Company was charged $14,011 in salaries (2017: $nil) by the COO of
the Company.
For the three months ended June 30, 2018, the Company was charged $5,000 in management fees (2017: $nil) by the
CFO of the Company.
His Way Herbs, LLC is controlled by the CEO of the Company and is a related party. The acquisition of intangible
assets described in Note 9 is a related party transaction.
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Key management personnel compensation
Key management is comprised of the Company’s directors and executive officers. The Company incurred the following
key management compensation charges during the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017:
2018

2017

$

$

Salaries, bonuses, fees and benefits

33,022

–

Share based compensation

486,686

–

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
The Company has prepared the accompanying audited annual financial statements using accounting policies consistent
with IFRS. Significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 of the Company’s annual financial statements.
The preparation of the unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Estimated useful lives and impairment considerations
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are dependent upon estimates of
useful lives, which are determined through the exercise of judgment. The assessment of any impairment of these assets
is dependent upon estimates of recoverable amounts that take into account factors such as economic and market
conditions and the useful lives of assets.

Business combinations
Judgment is used in determining whether an acquisition is a business combination or an asset acquisition. In a business
combination, all identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired are recorded at their fair values. In
determining the allocation of the purchase price in a business combination, including any acquisition related contingent
consideration, estimates including market based and appraisal values are used. The contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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Warrants
In calculating the fair value of the warrants, the Company includes key estimates such as the volatility of the Company’s
stock price, the value of the common share, and the risk-free interest rate.
Other significant judgments
The preparation of these financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Company to make judgments,
apart from those involving estimates, in applying accounting policies. The most significant judgments in applying the
Company’s financial statements include:



The assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and whether there are events or
conditions that may give rise to significant uncertainty; and
The fair value and classification of financial instruments;

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
All financial instruments are recorded initially at fair value. In subsequent periods, all financial instruments are measured
based on the classification adopted for the financial instruments: held to maturity, loans and receivables, fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale, fair value through profit or loss liabilities or other liabilities. Fair value through
profit or loss assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with the change in the fair value recognized
in net income during the period. Held to maturity assets, loans and receivable, and other liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Available for sale assets are subsequently measured
at fair value with the change in fair value recorded in other comprehensive income, except for equity instruments without
a quoted market price in active markets and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, which are measured at cost.
Fair Values
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were presented on the Company’s statement of financial
position as at June 30, 2018, as follows:

Cash
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Notes payable

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted prices in
Significant
Significant
active markets for
other
unobservable
identical
observable
inputs
instruments
inputs
(Level 3)
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
$
$
$
973,490
–
–
410,333
(335,973)
(3,819,622)
-

Balance,
June 30, 2018,
2018
$
973,490
410,333
(335,973)
(3,819,622)

The Board of Directors approves and monitors the risk management processes, inclusive of documented investment
policies, counterparty limits, and controlling and reporting structures.
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The principal financial instruments used by the Company, from which financial instrument risk arises are includes
amounts receivable, due from related parties, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and notes payable.
The Company’s financial instruments are exposed to certain financial risks, which include the following:
Financial risk
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, and
foreign currency risk. Risk management is carried out by the Company’s management team under policies approved
by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors also provides regular guidance for overall risk management.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfil its payment obligations. The Company’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to cash, and receivables. Cash in banks is held with reputable Canadian and the
United States financial institutions, from which management believes the risk of loss is remote. Receivables trade
receivables which the Company feels there is minimal risk of non-collection. The Company does not have significant
credit risk with respect to customers.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company has a planning and budgeting process in place to help determine the funds required to support the
Company’s normal operating requirements on an ongoing basis. The Company’s access to financing is always
uncertain. There can be no assurance that the company will obtain future financing.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in interest rate. The Company is
exposed to interest rate risk on its debt instruments and has determined there is no material exposure related to interest
rate risk.
Foreign currency risk
The functional currency of DAFF is the United States Dollar and all related major transactions are transacted in the
United States Dollar. All DAFF financial liabilities are denominated in the United States Dollar. The Company does not
undertake currency hedging activities to mitigate its foreign currency risk. The impact on the Company’s profit or loss
resulting from a 10% fluctuation in foreign exchange rates would be approximately $300,000.
OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS
The Company has not entered into any significant off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
As at June 30, 2018, the Company was in the process of a private placement and raised gross proceeds of $2,275,686
for the subscription of 7,585,621 common shares. Subsequent to the period ended June 30, 2018, these shares were
issued to the subscribers.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The information provided in this report is the responsibility of management. In the preparation of these statements,
estimates are sometimes necessary to make a determination of future values for certain assets or liabilities. Management
believes such estimates have been based on careful judgments and have been properly reflected in the accompanying
financial statements.
RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
Uninsured or Uninsurable Risk
We may become subject to liability for risks against which we cannot insure or against which we may elect not to insure
due to the high cost of insurance premiums or other factors. The payment of any such liabilities would reduce the funds
available for our usual business activities. Payment of liabilities for which we do not carry insurance may have a material
adverse effect on our financial position and operations.

DESCRIPTION OF THE U.S. LEGAL CANNABIS INDUSTRY
In accordance with the Canadian Securities Administrators Staff Notice 51-352 (Revised) dated February 8, 2018 –
Issuers with U.S. Marijuana-Related Activities ("CSA Notice 51-352"), below is a discussion of the current federal and
state-level U.S. regulatory regimes in those jurisdictions where the Company is currently directly involved. In
accordance with CSA Notice 51-352, the Company will evaluate, monitor and reassess this disclosure, and any related
risks, on an ongoing basis and the same will be supplemented, amended and communicated to investors in public filings,
including in the event of government policy changes or the introduction of new or amended guidance, laws or regulations
regarding marijuana regulation.
Legal and Regulatory Matters
United States Federal Overview
In the United States, thirty-one (31) states, Washington D.C. and Puerto Rico have legalized medical marijuana, and
nine states and Washington D.C. have legalized “adult use” or “recreational” marijuana. At the federal level, however,
cannabis currently remains a Schedule I drug under the CSA. Under United States federal law, a Schedule I drug or
substance has a high potential for abuse, no accepted medical use in the United States, and a lack of accepted safety for
the use of the drug under medical supervision. As such, cannabis related practices or activities including, without
limitation, the manufacture, importation, possession, use, or distribution of cannabis, remain illegal under United States
federal law. Although federally illegal, the U.S. federal government’s approach to enforcement of such laws has at least
until recently trended toward non-enforcement. On August 29, 2013, the DOJ issued a memorandum known as the “Cole
Memorandum” to all U.S. Attorneys’ offices (federal prosecutors). The Cole Memorandum generally directed U.S.
Attorneys not to prioritize the enforcement of federal marijuana laws against individuals and businesses that rigorously
comply with state regulatory provisions in states with strictly regulated medical or recreational cannabis programs. While
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not legally binding, and merely prosecutorial guidance, the Cole Memorandum laid a framework for managing the
tension between state and federal laws concerning state regulated marijuana businesses. However, on January 4, 2018,
the Cole Memorandum was revoked by Attorney General Jeff Sessions, a long time opponent of state-regulated medical
and recreational cannabis. While this did not create a change in federal law, as the Cole Memorandum was not itself
law, the revocation removed the DOJ’s guidance to U.S. Attorneys that state-regulated cannabis industries substantively
in compliance with the Cole Memorandum’s guidelines should not be a prosecutorial priority. In addition to his
revocation of the Cole Memorandum, Attorney General Sessions also issued a one-page memorandum known as the
“Sessions Memorandum.” The Sessions Memorandum confirmed the rescission of the Cole Memorandum and explained
the rationale of the DOJ in doing so: the Cole Memorandum, according to the Sessions Memorandum, was “unnecessary”
due to existing general enforcement guidance adopted in the 1980s, as set forth in the U.S. Attorney’s Manual (the
“USAM”). The USAM enforcement priorities, like those of the Cole Memorandum, are also based on the federal
government’s limited resources, and include “law enforcement priorities set by the Attorney General,” the “seriousness”
of the alleged crimes, the “deterrent effect of criminal prosecution,” and “the cumulative impact of particular crimes on
the community.” While the Sessions Memorandum emphasizes that marijuana is a Schedule I controlled substance, and
reiterates the statutory view that cannabis is a “dangerous drug and that marijuana activity is a serious crime,” it does
not otherwise indicate that the prosecution of marijuana-related offenses is now a DOJ priority. Furthermore, the
Sessions Memorandum explicitly describes itself as a guide to prosecutorial discretion. Such discretion is firmly in the
hands of U.S. Attorneys in deciding whether or not to prosecute marijuana-related offenses.
Maryland Overview
Maryland has authorized the cultivation, possession and distribution of marijuana by certain licensed Maryland
marijuana businesses. The Maryland Medical Cannabis regulates Maryland's marijuana regulatory program. The
Company is advised by legal counsel regarding compliance with Maryland's cannabis regulatory framework and
potential exposure and implications arising from U.S. federal law and/or other advisors in connection with Maryland's
marijuana regulatory program. The Company only engages in transactions with Maryland marijuana businesses that
hold licenses that are in good standing to cultivate, possess and/or distribute marijuana in Maryland in compliance with
Maryland's marijuana regulatory program. The Company owns a 10% investment in a licensee located in Maryland. To
the extent required by Maryland's marijuana regulatory program, the Company has fully disclosed and/or registered each
financial interest the Company holds in such Maryland marijuana businesses.
Colorado Overview
Colorado has authorized the cultivation, possession and distribution of marijuana by certain licensed Colorado marijuana
businesses. The Colorado Marijuana Enforcement Division regulates Colorado's marijuana regulatory program. The
Company is advised by legal counsel regarding compliance with Colorado's cannabis regulatory framework and potential
exposure and implications arising from U.S. federal law and/or other advisors in connection with Colorado's marijuana
regulatory program. The Company only engages in transactions with Colorado marijuana businesses that hold licenses
that are in good standing to cultivate, possess and/or distribute marijuana in Colorado in compliance with Colorado's
marijuana regulatory program. To the extent required by Colorado's marijuana regulatory program, the Company has
fully disclosed and/or registered each financial interest the Company holds in such Colorado marijuana businesses. The
Company, the Company's subsidiaries, are in compliance with Colorado's marijuana regulatory program.
Nevada Overview
Nevada has authorized the cultivation, possession and distribution of marijuana by certain licensed Nevada marijuana
businesses. The Nevada Marijuana Enforcement Division regulates Nevada's marijuana regulatory program. The
Company is advised by legal counsel regarding compliance with Nevada's cannabis regulatory framework and potential
exposure and implications arising from U.S. federal law and/or other advisors in connection with Nevada's marijuana
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regulatory program. The Company only engages in transactions with Nevada marijuana businesses that hold licenses
that are in good standing to cultivate, possess and/or distribute marijuana in Nevada in compliance with Nevada's
marijuana regulatory program. To the extent required by Nevada's marijuana regulatory program, the Company has fully
disclosed and/or registered each financial interest the Company holds in such Nevada marijuana businesses. The
Company, the Company's subsidiaries, are in compliance with Nevada's marijuana regulatory program.
U.S. Legal Advice
The Company is in compliance with U.S. state law and the related licensing framework. The Company uses reasonable
commercial efforts to confirm, through the advice of its U.S. counsel, through the monitoring and review of its business
practices, and through regular monitoring of changes to U.S. Federal enforcement priorities, that its business is in
compliance with applicable licensing requirements and the regulatory frameworks enacted. The Company is not aware
of the receipt of noncompliance orders, citations or notices of violation, that may have an impact on such entities licenses,
business activities or operations.

Regulatory Risks
The U.S. cannabis industry is highly regulated, highly competitive and evolving rapidly. As such, new risks may emerge,
and management may not be able to predict all such risks or be able to predict how such risks may impact on actual
results.
Participants in the U.S. cannabis industry will incur ongoing costs and obligations related to regulatory compliance.
Failure to comply with regulations may result in additional costs for corrective measures, penalties or restrictions of
operations. In addition, changes in regulations, more vigorous enforcement thereof or other unanticipated events could
require extensive changes to operations, increased compliance costs or give rise to material liabilities, which could have
a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations and financial condition of the Company. Further, the
Company may be subject to a variety of claims and lawsuits. Adverse outcomes in some or all of these claims may result
in significant monetary damages or injunctive relief that could adversely affect its ability to conduct its business. The
litigation and other claims are subject to inherent uncertainties and management’s view of these matters may change in
the future. A material adverse impact on the Company’s financial statements also could occur for the period in which
the effect of an unfavorable final outcome becomes probable and reasonably estimable.
The U.S. cannabis industry is subject to extensive controls and regulations, which may significantly affect the financial
condition of market participants. The marketability of any product may be affected by numerous factors that are beyond
the control of the Company and which cannot be predicted, such as changes to government regulations, including those
relating to taxes and other government levies which may be imposed. Changes in government levies, including taxes,
could reduce the Company’s earnings and could make future growth uneconomic. The industry is also subject to
numerous legal challenges, which may significantly affect the financial condition of the Company and which cannot be
reliably predicted.
The Company expects to derive most of its revenues from the U.S. cannabis industry, which industry is illegal under
U.S. federal law (other than its business related to high CBD/low THC products, known as "hemp"). As a result of the
conflicting views between state legislatures and the federal government regarding cannabis, cannabis businesses in the
U.S. are subject to inconsistent legislation and regulation. The Company is expected to remain focused in those U.S.
states that have legalized the medical and/or adult-use of cannabis. Almost half of the U.S. states have enacted legislation
to legalize and regulate the sale and use of medical cannabis without limits on THC, while other states have legalized
and regulate the sale and use of medical cannabis with strict limits on the levels of THC. However, the U.S. federal
government has not enacted similar legislation and the cultivation, sale and use of cannabis remains illegal under federal
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law pursuant to the CSA. The federal government of the U.S. has specifically reserved the right to enforce federal law
in regard to the sale and disbursement of medical or adult-use use marijuana even if state law sanctioned such sale and
disbursement. It is presently unclear whether the U.S. federal government intends to enforce federal laws relating to
cannabis where the conduct at issue is legal under applicable state law. This risk was further heightened by the revocation
of the Cole Memorandum in January 2018.
Further, there can be no assurance that state laws legalizing and regulating the sale and use of cannabis will not be
repealed or overturned, or that local governmental authorities will not limit the applicability of state laws within their
respective jurisdictions. It is also important to note that local and city ordinances may strictly limit and/or restrict the
distribution of cannabis in a manner that will make it extremely difficult or impossible to transact business in the cannabis
industry. If the U.S. federal government begins to enforce federal laws relating to cannabis in states where the sale and
use of cannabis is currently legal, or if existing state laws are repealed or curtailed, then the Company’s business would
be materially and adversely affected. U.S. federal actions against any individual or entity engaged in the marijuana
industry or a substantial repeal of marijuana related legislation could adversely affect the Company.
Nature of the Company’s Involvement in the U.S. Cannabis Industry
Currently, the Company is engaged in the branding and procurement for companies that manufacture and distribute
cannabis in the medical and adult-use cannabis marketplace. At June 30, 2018, the Company's assets and revenues are
directly attributable to the medial and adult-use cannabis market in Colorado, Nevada and Maryland.
As previously stated, violations of any federal laws and regulations could result in significant fines, penalties,
administrative sanctions, convictions or settlements arising from civil proceedings conducted by either the federal
government or private citizens, or criminal charges, including, but not limited to, disgorgement of profits, cessation of
business activities or divestiture. This could have a material adverse effect on the Company, including its reputation and
ability to conduct business, the listing of its securities on any stock exchange, its financial position, operating results,
profitability or liquidity or the market price of its publicly traded shares. In addition, it is difficult for the Company to
estimate the time or resources that would be needed for the investigation of any such matters or its final resolution
because, in part, the time and resources that may be needed are dependent on the nature and extent of any information
requested by the applicable authorities involved, and such time or resources could be substantial. The approach to the
enforcement of cannabis laws may be subject to change or may not proceed as previously outlined.
The Company’s involvement in the U.S. cannabis industry will be (i) only in those states that have enacted laws
legalizing cannabis; and (ii) only in those state's where the Company can comply with state (and local) laws and
regulations and has the licenses, permits or authorizations to properly carry on each element of its business.
The Company will continue to monitor, evaluate and re-assess the regulatory framework in each state in which it may
hold license, and the federal laws applicable thereto, on an ongoing basis; and will update its continuous disclosure
regarding government policy changes or new or amended guidance, laws or regulations regarding cannabis in the U.S.
Anti-Money Laundering Laws and Regulations
The Company is subject to a variety of laws and regulations in Canada and the U.S. that involve money laundering,
financial recordkeeping and proceeds of crime, including the U.S. Currency and Foreign Transactions Reporting Act of
1970 (commonly known as the Bank Secrecy Act), as amended by Title III of the Uniting and Strengthening America
by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (USA PATRIOT Act), the
Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act (Canada), as amended and the rules and regulations
thereunder, and any related or similar rules, regulations or guidelines, issued, administered or enforced by governmental
authorities in the U.S. and Canada. Further, under U.S. federal law, banks or other financial institutions that provide a
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cannabis business with a checking account, debit or credit card, small business loan, or any other service could be found
guilty of money laundering, aiding and abetting, or conspiracy.
The Company’s activities, and any proceeds thereof, may be considered proceeds of crime due to the fact that cannabis
remains illegal federally in the U.S. This may restrict the ability of the Company to declare or pay dividends, effect other
distributions or subsequently repatriate such funds back to Canada. Furthermore, while the Company has no current
intention to declare or pay dividends on its Common Shares in the foreseeable future, the Company may decide or be
required to suspend declaring or paying dividends without advance notice and for an indefinite period of time.
Canadian Securities Regulatory Matters
The Company’s involvement in the U.S. cannabis industry may become the subject of heightened scrutiny by regulators,
stock exchanges, clearing agencies and other authorities in Canada. It has been reported in Canada that the Canadian
Depository for Securities Limited is considering a policy shift that would see its subsidiary, CDS Clearing and
Depository Services Inc. ("CDS"), refuse to settle trades for cannabis issuers that have investments in the U.S. CDS is
Canada’s central securities depository, clearing and settling trades in the Canadian equity, fixed income and money
markets. The TMX Group, the owner and operator of CDS, subsequently issued a statement on August 17, 2017
reaffirming that there is no CDS ban on the clearing of securities of issuers with cannabis-related activities in the U.S.,
despite media reports to the contrary, and that the TMX Group was working with regulators to arrive at a solution that
will clarify this matter, which would be communicated at a later time. If such a ban were to be implemented, it would
have a material adverse effect on the ability of holders of Common Shares to make and settle trades. In particular, the
Common Shares would become highly illiquid as until an alternative was implemented, investors would have no ability
to effect a trade of the Common Shares through the facilities of a stock exchange.
On February 8, 2018, following discussions with the Canadian Securities Administrators and recognized Canadian
securities exchanges, the TMX Group announced the signing of a Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with
Aequitas NEO Exchange Inc., the CSE, the Toronto Stock Exchange, and the TSX Venture Exchange. The MOU
outlines the parties’ understanding of Canada’s regulatory framework applicable to the rules, procedures, and regulatory
oversight of the exchanges and CDS as it relates to issuers with cannabis-related activities in the U.S.
The MOU confirms, with respect to the clearing of listed securities, that CDS relies on the exchanges to review the
conduct of listed issuers. As a result, there is no CDS ban on the clearing of securities of issuers with cannabis related
activities in the U.S. However, there can be no guarantee that this approach to regulation will continue in the future. If
such a ban were to be implemented, it would have a material adverse effect on the ability of holders of Common Shares
to make and settle trades. In particular, the Common Shares would become highly illiquid as until an alternative was
implemented, investors would have no ability to effect a trade of the Common Shares through the facilities of the
applicable stock exchange.
Heightened Scrutiny
For the reasons set forth above, the Company’s activities in the U.S. may become the subject of heightened scrutiny by
regulators, stock exchanges and other authorities in Canada. As a result, the Company may be subject to significant
direct and indirect interaction with public officials. There can be no assurance that this heightened scrutiny will not in
turn lead to the imposition of certain restrictions on the Company’s activities in the U.S. or any other jurisdiction, in
addition to those described herein.
Change in Laws, Regulations and Guidelines
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The Company’s proposed business operations will directly and indirectly be affected by a variety of laws, regulations
and guidelines relating to the manufacture, management, transportation, storage and disposal of cannabis, but also
including laws and regulations relating to consumable products health and safety, the conduct of operations and the
protection of the environment. These laws and regulations are broad in scope and subject to evolving interpretations,
which could require participants to incur substantial costs associated with compliance or alter certain aspects of its
business plans. In addition, violations of these laws, or allegations of such violations, could disrupt certain aspects of
the Company’s business plans and result in a material adverse effect on certain aspects of its operations.
Unfavourable Publicity or Consumer Perception
The legal cannabis industry in the U.S. is at an early stage of its development. Cannabis has been, and will continue to
be, a controlled substance for the foreseeable future. Consumer perceptions regarding legality, morality, consumption,
safety, efficacy and quality of cannabis are mixed and evolving. Consumer perception can be significantly influenced
by scientific research or findings, regulatory investigations, litigation, media attention and other publicity regarding the
consumption of cannabis products. There can be no assurance that future scientific research, findings, regulatory
proceedings, litigation, media attention or other research findings or publicity will be favourable to the cannabis market
or any particular product, or consistent with earlier publicity. Future research reports, findings, regulatory opinion and
support for medical and adult-use cannabis use has traditionally been inconsistent and varies from jurisdiction to
jurisdiction. While public opinion and support appears to be rising for legalizing medical and adult-use cannabis, it
remains a controversial issue subject to differing opinions surrounding the level of legalization (for example, medical
marijuana as opposed to legalization in general). The Company’s ability to gain and increase market acceptance of its
business activities may require substantial expenditures on proceedings, litigation, media attention or other publicity that
are perceived as less favourable than, or that question, earlier research reports, findings or publicity could have a material
adverse effect on the demand for cannabis and on the business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows
of the Company. Further, adverse publicity reports or other media attention regarding cannabis in general or associating
the consumption of cannabis with illness or other negative effects or events, could have such a material adverse effect.
Public investor relations, strategic relationships and marketing initiatives. There can be no assurance that such initiatives
will be successful, and their failure may have an adverse effect on the Company.
Local, state and federal laws and regulations governing marijuana for medicinal and recreational purposes are broad in
scope and are subject to evolving interpretations, which could require the Company to incur substantial costs associated
with bringing the Company’s operations into compliance. In addition, violations of these laws, or allegations of such
violations, could disrupt the Company’s operations and result in a material adverse effect on its financial performance.
It is beyond the Company’s scope to predict the nature of any future change to the existing laws, regulations, policies,
interpretations or applications, nor can the Company determine what effect such changes, when and if promulgated,
could have on the Company’s business.
Regulatory Risks
The activities and products of the Company are subject to regulation by governmental authorities, including, the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration, and others. Achievement of the Company’s business objectives are contingent, in part,
upon compliance with regulatory requirements enacted by these governmental authorities and obtaining all regulatory
approvals, where necessary, for the sale of its products. The Company cannot predict the time required to secure all
appropriate regulatory approvals for its products, or the extent of testing and documentation that may be required by
governmental authorities. Any delays in obtaining, or failure to obtain regulatory approvals would significantly delay
the development of markets and products and could have a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations
and financial condition of the Company.
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Limited Operating History
The Company is subject to many of the risks common to early-stage enterprises, including under-capitalization, cash
shortages, limitations with respect to personnel, financial, and other resources and lack of revenues. There is no
assurance that the Company will be successful in achieving a return on shareholders’ investment and the likelihood of
success must be considered in light of the early stage of operations.

Reliance on Management
The success of the Company is dependent upon the ability, expertise, judgment, discretion and good faith of its senior
management. While employment agreements are customarily used as a primary method of retaining the services of key
employees, these agreements cannot assure the continued services of such employees. Any loss of the services of such
individuals could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results or financial condition.
Additional Financing
In order to execute the anticipated growth strategy, the Company will require some additional equity and/or debt
financing to support on-going operations, to undertake capital expenditures or to undertake acquisitions or other business
combination transactions. There can be no assurance that additional financing will be available when needed or on terms
which are acceptable. The Company’s inability to raise financing to support on-going operations or to fund capital
expenditures or acquisitions could limit its growth and may have a material adverse effect upon future profitability.
If additional funds are raised through further issuances of equity or convertible debt securities, existing shareholders
could suffer significant dilution, and any new equity securities issued could have rights, preferences and privileges
superior to those of holders of Common Shares. Any debt financing secured in the future could involve restrictive
covenants relating to capital raising activities and other financial and operational matters, which may make it more
difficult for the Company to obtain additional capital and to pursue business opportunities, including potential
acquisitions.
The cannabis industries are highly competitive
There is potential that the Company will face intense competition from other companies, some of which can be expected
to have longer operating histories and more financial resources and manufacturing and marketing experience than the
Company. Increased competition by larger and better financed competitors could materially and adversely affect the
business.
Operating Risk and Insurance Coverage
The Company carries insurance to protect its assets, operations and employees. While the Company believes insurance
coverage can adequately address all material risks to which it may be exposed and is adequate and customary in its
current state of operations, such insurance is subject to coverage limits and exclusions and may not be available for the
risks and hazards to which the Company is exposed. In addition, no assurance can be given that such insurance will be
adequate to cover the Company’s liabilities or will be generally available in the future or, if available, that premiums
will be commercially justifiable. If the Company were to incur substantial liability and such damages were not covered
by insurance or were in excess of policy limits, or if the Company were to incur such liability at a time when it is not
able to obtain liability insurance, its business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely
affected.
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Conflicts of Interest Risk
Certain of our directors and officers are also directors and operators in other companies. Situations may arise in
connection with potential acquisitions or opportunities where the other interests of these directors and officers conflict
with or diverge from our interests. In accordance with the BCBCA, directors who have a material interest in any person
who is a party to a material contract or a proposed material contract are required, subject to certain exceptions, to disclose
that interest and generally abstain from voting on any resolution to approve the contract. In addition, the directors and
the officers are required to act honestly and in good faith with a view to our best interests. However, in conflict of interest
situations, our directors and officers may owe the same duty to another company and will need to balance their competing
interests with their duties to us.
Circumstances (including with respect to future corporate opportunities) may arise that may be resolved in a manner
that is unfavourable to us.
Key Personnel Risk
The Company’s success will depend on its directors and officers to develop the business and manage operations, and on
its ability to attract and retain key quality assurance, scientific, sales, public relations and marketing staff or consultants.
The loss of any key person or the inability to find and retain new key persons could have a material adverse effect on
the business. Competition for qualified technical, sales and marketing staff, as well as officers and directors can be
intense and no assurance can be provided that the Company will be able to attract or retain key personnel in the future,
which may adversely impact operations.
Global Economy Risk
The ongoing economic slowdown and downturn of global capital markets has generally made the raising of capital by
equity or debt financing more difficult. We will be dependent upon the capital markets to raise additional financing in
the future, while we establish a client base for our product. Access to financing has been negatively impacted by the
ongoing global economic downturn. As such, we are subject to liquidity risks in meeting our development and future
operating cost requirements in instances where cash positions are unable to be maintained or appropriate financing is
unavailable. These factors may impact our ability to raise equity or obtain loans and other credit facilities in the future
and on terms favourable to us and our management. If uncertain market conditions persist, our ability to raise capital
could be jeopardized, which could have an adverse impact on our operations and the trading price of our Common Shares
on the Exchange.
Dividend Risk
We have not paid dividends in the past and do not anticipate paying dividends in the near future. We expect to retain
our earnings to finance further growth and, when appropriate, retire debt.
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SCHEDULE "C"
CANNAMERICA BRANDS CORP.
(the "Company")
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER
I.

MANDATE

The Audit Committee (the "Committee") of the Board of Directors (the "Board") of CannAmerica
Brands Corp. (the "Company") shall assist the Board in fulfilling its financial oversight responsibilities.
The Committee's primary duties and responsibilities under this mandate are to serve as an
independent and objective party to monitor:
1.

The quality and integrity of the Company's financial statements and other financial
information;

2.

The compliance of such statements and information with legal and regulatory requirements;

3.

The qualifications and independence of the Company's independent external auditor (the
"Auditor"); and

4.

The performance of the Company's internal accounting procedures and Auditor.

II.

STRUCTURE AND OPERATIONS

A.

Composition

The Committee shall be comprised of three members, a majority of which shall be independent.
B.

Qualifications

Each member of the Committee must be a member of the Board.
A majority of the members of the Committee shall not be officers or employees of the Company or
of an affiliate of the Company.
Each member of the Committee must be able to read and understand fundamental financial
statements, including the Company's balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement.
C.

Appointment and Removal

In accordance with the By-laws of the Company, the members of the Committee shall be appointed
by the Board and shall serve until such member's successor is duly elected and qualified or until such
member's earlier resignation or removal. Any member of the Committee may be removed, with or
without cause, by a majority vote of the Board.

D.

Chair

Unless the Board shall select a Chair, the members of the Committee shall designate a Chair by the
majority vote of all of the members of the Committee. The Chair shall call, set the agendas for and
chair all meetings of the Committee.
E.

Sub-Committees

The Committee may form and delegate authority to subcommittees consisting of one or more
members when appropriate, including the authority to grant pre-approvals of audit and permitted
non-audit services, provided that a decision of such subcommittee to grant a pre-approval shall be
presented to the full Committee at its next scheduled meeting.
F.

Meetings

The Committee shall meet at least once in each fiscal year, or more frequently as circumstances
dictate. The Auditor shall be given reasonable notice of, and be entitled to attend and speak at, each
meeting of the Committee concerning the Company's annual financial statements and, if the
Committee feels it is necessary or appropriate, at every other meeting. On request by the Auditor,
the Chair shall call a meeting of the Committee to consider any matter that the Auditor believes
should be brought to the attention of the Committee, the Board or the shareholders of the Company.
At each meeting, a quorum shall consist of a majority of members that are not officers or employees
of the Company or of an affiliate of the Company.
As part of its goal to foster open communication, the Committee may periodically meet separately
with each of management and the Auditor to discuss any matters that the Committee believes would
be appropriate to discuss privately. In addition, the Committee should meet with the Auditor and
management annually to review the Company's financial statements in a manner consistent with
Section III of this Charter.
The Committee may invite to its meetings any director, any manager of the Company, and any other
person whom it deems appropriate to consult in order to carry out its responsibilities. The Committee
may also exclude from its meetings any person it deems appropriate to exclude in order to carry out
its responsibilities.
III.

DUTIES

A.

Introduction

The following functions shall be the common recurring duties of the Committee in carrying out its
purposes outlined in Section I of this Charter. These duties should serve as a guide with the
understanding that the Committee may fulfill additional duties and adopt additional policies and
procedures as may be appropriate in light of changing business, legislative, regulatory or other
conditions. The Committee shall also carry out any other responsibilities and duties delegated to it
by the Board from time to time related to the purposes of the Committee outlined in Section I of this
Charter.

The Committee, in discharging its oversight role, is empowered to study or investigate any matter of
interest or concern which the Committee in its sole discretion deems appropriate for study or
investigation by the Committee.
The Committee shall be given full access to the Company's internal accounting staff, managers, other
staff and Auditor as necessary to carry out these duties. While acting within the scope of its stated
purpose, the Committee shall have all the authority of, but shall remain subject to, the Board.
B.

Powers and Responsibilities

The Committee will have the following responsibilities and, in order to perform and discharge these
responsibilities, will be vested with the powers and authorities set forth below, namely, the
Committee shall:
Independence of Auditor
1)

Review and discuss with the Auditor any disclosed relationships or services that may impact
the objectivity and independence of the Auditor and, if necessary, obtain a formal written
statement from the Auditor setting forth all relationships between the Auditor and the
Company, consistent with Independence Standards Board Standard 1.

2)

Take, or recommend that the Board take, appropriate action to oversee the independence of
the Auditor.

3)

Require the Auditor to report directly to the Committee.

4)

Review and approve the Company's hiring policies regarding partners, employees and former
partners and employees of the Auditor and former independent external auditor of the
Company.

Performance & Completion by Auditor of its Work
5)

Be directly responsible for the oversight of the work by the Auditor (including resolution of
disagreements between management and the Auditor regarding financial reporting) for the
purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or related work.

6)

Review annually the performance of the Auditor and recommend the appointment by the
Board of a new, or re-election by the Company's shareholders of the existing, Auditor.

7)

Pre-approve all auditing services and permitted non-audit services (including the fees and
terms thereof) to be performed for the Company by the Auditor unless such non-audit
services:
(a)

which are not pre-approved, are reasonably expected not to constitute, in the
aggregate, more than 5% of the total amount of revenues paid by the Company to the
Auditor during the fiscal year in which the non-audit services are provided;

(b)

were not recognized by the Company at the time of the engagement to be non-audit
services; and

(c)

are promptly brought to the attention of the Committee by Management and
approved prior to the completion of the audit by the Committee or by one or more
members of the Committee who are members of the Board to whom authority to
grant such approvals has been delegated by the Committee.

Internal Financial Controls & Operations of the Company
8)

Establish procedures for:
(a)

the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Company
regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters; and

(b)

the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Company of concerns
regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

Preparation of Financial Statements
9)

Discuss with management and the Auditor significant financial reporting issues and
judgments made in connection with the preparation of the Company's financial statements,
including any significant changes in the Company's selection or application of accounting
principles, any major issues as to the adequacy of the Company's internal controls and any
special steps adopted in light of material control deficiencies.

10)

Discuss with management and the Auditor any correspondence with regulators or
governmental agencies and any employee complaints or published reports which raise
material issues regarding the Company's financial statements or accounting policies.

11)

Discuss with management and the Auditor the effect of regulatory and accounting initiatives
as well as off-balance sheet structures on the Company's financial statements.

12)

Discuss with management the Company's major financial risk exposures and the steps
management has taken to monitor and control such exposures, including the Company's risk
assessment and risk management policies.

13)

Discuss with the Auditor the matters required to be discussed relating to the conduct of any
audit, in particular:
(i)

The adoption of, or changes to, the Company's significant auditing and
accounting principles and practices as suggested by the Auditor or
management.

(ii)

Any difficulties encountered in the course of the audit work, including any
restrictions on the scope of activities or access to requested information, and
any significant disagreements with management.

Public Disclosure by the Company
14)

Review the Company's annual and quarterly financial statements, management discussion
and analysis (MD&A), annual information form, and management information circular before
the Board approves and the Company publicly discloses this information.

15)

Review the Company's financial reporting procedures and internal controls to be satisfied
that adequate procedures are in place for the review of the Company's public disclosure of
financial information extracted or derived from its financial statements, other than disclosure
described in the previous paragraph, and periodically assessing the adequacy of those
procedures.

16)

Review any disclosures made to the Committee by the Company's Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer during their certification process of the Company's financial statements
about any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls or material
weaknesses therein and any fraud involving management or other employees who have a
significant role in the Company's internal controls.

Manner of Carrying Out its Mandate
17)

Consult, to the extent it deems necessary or appropriate, with the Auditor but without the
presence of management, about the quality of the Company's accounting principles, internal
controls and the completeness and accuracy of the Company's financial statements.

18)

Request any officer or employee of the Company or the Company's outside counsel or Auditor
to attend a meeting of the Committee or to meet with any members of, or consultants to, the
Committee.

19)

Meet, to the extent it deems necessary or appropriate, with management and the Auditor in
separate executive sessions at least quarterly.

20)

Have the authority, to the extent it deems necessary or appropriate, to retain independent
legal, accounting or other consultants to advise the Committee advisors.

21)

Make regular reports to the Board.

22)

Review and reassess the adequacy of this Charter annually and recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval.

23)

Annually review the Committee's own performance.

24)

Provide an open avenue of communication among the Auditor the Board.

25)

Not delegate these responsibilities other than to one or more independent members of the
Committee the authority to pre-approve, which the Committee must ratify at its next
meeting, non-audit services to be provided by the Auditor.

C.

Limitation of Audit Committee's Role

While the Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in this Charter, it is not the duty
of the Committee to plan or conduct audits or to determine that the Company's financial statements
and disclosures are complete and accurate and are in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable rules and regulations. These are the responsibilities of management and the
Auditor.
Approved by the Board of Directors on October 9, 2018

CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPANY
Dated: October 9, 2018
This prospectus constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities
previously issued by the issuer as required by the securities legislation of British Columbia.
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Dan Anglin
Chief Executive Officer
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Dylan Easterbrook
Chief Financial Officer
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Director

CERTIFICATE OF THE PROMOTER
Dated: October 9, 2018
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APPENDIX “B”
Capitalization
14.1

The following tables provide information about the Company’s capitalization upon listing on
the Canadian Securities Exchange:

Issued Capital
Number of
Securities
(non-diluted)

Number of
Securities
(fully-diluted)

% of Issued
(non-diluted)

% of
Issued
(fully diluted)

Total outstanding (A)

49,684,865

56,784,865

100%

100%

Held by Related Persons or
employees of the Issuer or
Related Person of the Issuer,
or by persons or companies
who beneficially own or
control, directly or indirectly,
more than a 5% voting
position in the Issuer (or who
would beneficially own or
control, directly or indirectly,
more than a 5% voting
position in the Issuer upon
exercise or conversion of
other securities held) (B)

13,846,230

20,346,230

27.87%

35.83%

Total Public Float (A-B)

35,838,635

36,438,635

72.13%

64.17%

Number of outstanding
securities subject to resale
restrictions, including
restrictions imposed by
pooling or other
arrangements or in a
shareholder agreement and
securities held by control
block holders (C)

32,820,864

38,520,864

66.06%

67.84%

Total Tradeable Float (A-C)

16,864,001

18,264,001

33.94%

32.16%

Public Float

Freely-Tradeable Float

-2-

Public Securityholders (Registered)
For the purposes of this report, "public securityholders" are persons other than persons enumerated
in section (B) of the previous chart.
Common Shares
Size of Holding
1 – 99 securities

Number of holders

Total number of securities

1

1

500 – 999 securities

4

3,225

1,000 – 1,999 securities

18

28,500

2,000 – 2,999 securities

72

170,335

5,000 or more securities

120

35,636,574

Total

215

35,838,635

100 – 499 securities

3,000 – 3,999 securities
4,000 – 4,999 securities

-3-

Public Securityholders (Beneficial)
Common Shares
Size of Holding

Number of holders

Total number of securities

1 – 99 securities
100 – 499 securities
500 – 999 securities
1,000 – 1,999 securities
2,000 – 2,999 securities
3,000 – 3,999 securities
4,000 – 4,999 securities
5,000 or more securities

27

741,835

Total

27

741,835

-4-

Non-Public Securityholders (Registered)
For the purposes of this report, "non-public securityholders" are persons enumerated in section (B)
of the issued capital chart.
Common Shares
Size of Holding

Number of holders

Total number of securities

1 – 99 securities
100 – 499 securities
500 – 999 securities
1,000 – 1,999 securities
2,000 – 2,999 securities

1

2,000

5,000 or more securities

5

13,844,230

Total

6

13,846,230

3,000 – 3,999 securities
4,000 – 4,999 securities

14.2

Securities convertible or exchangeable into any class of listed securities

Description of Security
(include conversion / exercise
terms, including conversion /
exercise price)

Number of convertible /
exchangeable securities
outstanding

Number of listed securities
issuable upon conversion /
exercise

Common Share Purchase
Warrants

3,000,000

3,000,000

Options to purchase Common
Shares

4,100,000

4,100,000

14.3

There are no listed securities reserved for issuance that are not included in section 14.2.

CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPANY
Pursuant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, the Company hereby applies for the
listing of the above mentioned securities on the Exchange. The foregoing contains full, true and plain
disclosure of all material information relating to the Company. It contains no untrue statement of a
material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is
necessary to prevent a statement that is made from being false or misleading in light of the
circumstances in which it was made.
Dated at Vancouver, British Columbia
this 11th day of October, 2018.

Dan Anglin
Promotor and Chief Executive Officer

Dylan Easterbrook
Chief Financial Officer

Frank Falconer
Promotor and Chief Operating Officer

Russell Henderson
Director

Jordan Crockett
Director

